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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STQOCKHOLDERS' MEETING
TO! ALL 3HAREHOLDERS
NOTICE |3 HEREBY GIVEN that the annual stockhoiders’ mesling of PH Resorta Group Holdings, Ine. (the
‘Corporation”) will ba held on 23 May 2018, Thureday, at 11 o’clock, at Quast Hotel and Confarence Centar,

Clark, Filinvest Mimosa + leisure estate, Mimoss Dr, Clark Freeporl, zone, 2023 Pampang, for the purpose of taking up
tha follawing:

AGENDA
1. Call to Crdar
2. Proofof Netice of Mesting
3. Cerlificadion of Cluorum
4. Approval of Minutes of Meeting of Stockholders held an 25 June 2018
5 Report of the Pregidant
€. Managemen Report
7. Approval of the Auglited Financial Stafements as of 31 December 2018
8. Rafificafion and confirmation of all acts and resalutions of ths Board and Management executed in the harmal
course of business covering the period 25 June 2018 to A0 Aprll 2018
9.

Approval of the Amendmeants of the Artickes of Incorporation of the Corporation for the followdng matters:

*  Ta change the principal office of the Corparation is located fram GGDC Admnistrative Services
Building, Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga, Philippines 2023 to Udenna Tawar,
4th Ave. cor. Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global Gity, Taguig City

*  To increase the authorlzed capital stock of the Corparation from Php 8,000,000,000 to up to
Php15,000,000,000 divided inta 15,000,000,000 common shares or as determined by the Board of
Directors,

18, Approval of the Amendment of the By-Laws of the Lorporation to change date of the annual shageholders
meeting fram any the 3™ Wednesday of June to the 3™ Wednesday of May.

1. Appreval of tha merger of the Comparty with its subsidiary, PH Travel and Lelsyre Heldings Corp.

12, Approval of the acquisition of 100% of the issved and outstanding commion shares of Lapulapu Land Corp. by
the Company's subsidiary, Lapulap Leisure, Inc. at the consideration determinad by the Board of Directors

13, Approval of the grant of authority 1o the Board of Directors to issue sueh pumber of shares of stock aut of the
existing capital stock and increase in authorized capital stuck and at an iasue price of nat less than par valug
as the Board of Directors may determine and to accept cash or non-cash proparfies a8 payment for such
subscription and the listing of such shares with the Philippine Stock Exchamgs.

14, Approval of issuance of shares pursuant to an equity offering, private placeman, or similar transaction fo be
delermined by the Board and the listing of such shares.

16.  Approval by the stockhalders of the Employse Stock Incentive Plan,

18. Elaction of the Board of Directars for 2018.

17, Appointment of External Auditors

13.  Other Matters

13.  Adjournment

In accordance with the rules of the Phifppine Stock Exchange, only stockhalders of record as of 3 May 2019 ara
entided to notice of and fo vote as such in the annuel shareholders' mesting and any adjournment thereof, Registatien for
those who are personally attending the meeting will start at $:00 amand end prompily at 10:30 am on 23 May 2018,
All stockholders wise will not, are unable, or do nat expect ko attend the meeling in pereon are encouraged 1o fll out, dale,
lgn and send a proxy to the Comporation. Al proxies should be receivad by the Caorporation at least four {4) business
days before the maeting, or on or bafore 17 May 2019, Proxies submitted will be validated by & Committee of Inspectors
on 20 May 2019 at 10:00 o'lock in the maming. For corporate stockholders, the prouies should be accompanied by a
Eecretary’s Certiflcatlon on the appaintment of the corporation’s authorlzed signatory.

To avoli neohverience in registering your attendance at the teeting, you of your proxy is requested to bring identfication
paper(s) contalning a phatograph and eignature, e.9. passport, divar's licanss, .or credit card. Attendses unabla to
- pregent identificaion document upon registration shall not be admiited to the mzeting.

s & April 2019,
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 2018

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECFIDf 2§ #it1 EXCHARCE
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION c,ic»!}:;e{[ﬂh PR SRR
L] =P SRR R A _,._E ¢
il Fits
Check the appropriate box: ,L / E?! APR ng 2089 f: E
[ ¥] Praliminary Information Statement i ,,}},i:, ria . Peh)

[ ] Definitive Informaticn Statement MRAL A | REGU_ATILN 1“&{-;/
Y oo TiVE: L€ T
Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS iNC.

Country of incorporation: PHILIPPINES

EEC ldentification Number:  $S200901289
BIR Tax ldentiflcation Code: 007-236-853-000
Address of principal offics:

GGDC Administrative Sarvices Building, Postal Cade: 2023
Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zane,
Pampanga, Phllippines

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 403-4015

- Dats, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

23 May 2018 (Thursday), 11:00 a.m.;

Quest Hotel and Conference Center, Clark
Filinvest Mimosa + laisure sstate,

Mimosa Dr, Clark Freeport, zons, 2023 Pampangs

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders 30 April 2019

Securitiss registerad pursuant 1o Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sactions 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on mimber of shares and amount of debt is applicable anly to

corporate registrants).

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Qutstanding
Commeon Stock, B1 par valua 4,793,2686,504 shares

Ars any or all of registrant's sacurities iisted on a Stock Exchange?

Yes _ vV No

It yes, disciose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein:

Fhere sire: 243,241,504 comimon shares in the Company that are listed in the Philippine
Slock Exchangs.



PART I.
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN THE INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

tem 1. Date, Time, and Place of Meeting of Security Holders

Date : 23 May 2019
Time 11:00 am.
Place Quest Hotel and Conference Center, Clark

Filinvest Mimosa + leisure astate,

Mimosa Dr, Clark Freeport, zons, 2023 Pampanga
Principal; GGDC Admintstrative Services Bldg.
Office Clark Glokal City, Clark Fraaport Zane,

FPampanga Philippines

The approdimate date on which the information statement and proxy fom will be sent to ail
shareholders is on 30 April 2019,

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TQ
SEND US A PROXY

Item 2. Dissenter's Right of Appraisal

The stockholders of the Company may exorcise tha right of appraizal with respect 1o the aclions
1o be taken up at the meeting pursuant to Title X on Section 81 govarning the exercize of Appraisal
Rights undar the Corporation Cade of the Phllippines which states thet:

“Any stockholder of a corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair
valug of his shares in 1he follow!ng instances:

1. Incase any amendmeart to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or resiricting
the rights of any steckholdaers or class of shares, or of authorizing preferencas In any respect
superior to those of ouistanding shares of any class, or of extending or shorlening the terms
of corporate existence.

2. In case of sale, lease, exchangs, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposilion of all or
subsiantially all of the corporate properly and assets as provided in this code: and

3, Incase of merger or consolidation.

An appraisal right is also available to dissenting shareholders in casa tha corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business as pravided for in Section 42 of the Carporation
Code,

Thera is na matter to be takan up which wili give rise to the exercise of this right.

ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

There is no substantizl interest, diract or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, of any directer
‘ot pificer of the Company, any naminee or associate thereof, in any matter to be acted upon, Othst
than elections o office,



The Board of Diractors of the Company is not awvare of any party who has indicated an intention
te oppose the motions sef forth in the Agenda.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

item 4. Vating Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of 28 February 2019, there are 4,793,266,504 shares of PH Resorls Group Holdings, ine.
tomimon stock outstanding and entlitled fo vote at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting. Each
common shane shall be entitied (o one {1) vata. Onty holders of the Company’s siock of record af
Ihe clese of business on 3 May 2019, acling in parson or by proxy on the day of the meeling, are
ertited to riotice and to vote at the Annual Stockholders’ Mesting to be held on 23 May 2019.

Cumulalive voting is allowed far slection of the membars of the Board of Directors. Each
stockholder may vote the number of shares of stock outstanding in his ¢wn name as of the record
date of the mesting for as many persons as there are dirsctors to be elected or ha may curmulate
5aid shares and glve one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elested
multiplsd by the number of his sharas shall equal, ar he may distributs them on tha same principle
among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided thal the total numbser of vates cast by him
shall not exceed the number of shares cwned by him &3 shown in the baoks of the eorparation
multiplied by the whole number of directors 16 be elacted and provided, howevear, that no
dalinquent stock shall be voted.

a sSecurity Ownership of Certain Record ang Beneficial COwners

The fallowing table presents the record/beneficial owners knowrn to the Company wha in person
0r &8 groun own morea than five percent (5%} of the issuad and outstanding capital stock of the
Company as of 28 February 2019**+,

Nama, Mame of
Address of Baneficial
Title of Record Owner Owner and
Class of and Relationship
Shares Ralationship  with Record MNo. of Percent
Held with lssuer Owhner Citizenship Shares Held Held
Common Udenna Dennls A, Uy / Fllfping 4313927702 90%
Comoration Cheryyn C, Uy

b, Securily Ownership of Mansgement

As of 28 February 2019, the shares owned of record or benefictally by the directors and the
execttive officers are as follows:

Nature of
Beneficial
Name of Benefivial Ownership
Titleof  Owner of Common (D) Direct/’ Percent of
s Class Stock () Indirect _Citlzenship  Na, Of Shares Clags
Comman  Dannis A Uy” Drl Fillpine 3.018748402 = ©3%
Gomraon  Cherylyn C. Uy* D/l Fllpino 1,204,179,212 2%
: Raymurkio Martin M.
Gommon:  Escalena - D Fliipino 1 0%



Common  Jose Angel Sueiro b} Spanish 1 0%
Commaon  Lara C, Lorenzana o Filigine 1 0%
Commar  William W, Yap D Filiping 5,300 0%
Common  Eric O, Recto D Flliping 1,000 0%

*Indirect benaficial ownership thru PHR's pasmnt eompany, Udenna Corporation.
Directors and officers as & group hold a total of 4,313,934,007 shares equivalent to 80% of the issued
and outstanding capital stock of PHR, Dennis A. Uy and Cheryiyn C. Uy own indirectly more than 5%
shares of the Company's fotal outstanding capital stack,
& Voling Trust Holders of 5% ar more

The Company has no knowledge of any voting frust agreement or any other similar arangement which
may result in & changs in contro! of the Company.

g Changes fn Controf

There is no arrangemant whish may result in & changa In contrd of the Gompany.
Item 5. Directors and Executiva Officers

a Directors and Sanfor Officers

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibls for the overs|| mansgatment and direction of the
Company. The Board mests reguiarly on @ monthly basis, or as often as required, {o review and
monitar the Company’s financial position and operations.

The dirsctors of the Gompany are elected at the Annual Stockholters’ Maeting to hold office for
ana (1} year and until thelr respective successors have been slacted and gualified.

Except for Dennis A. Uy and Cherylyn C. Uy, none of the mesnbers of the Board of Dirgctors and
Officers of the Company own directy or indlrectly more than 5% of PH Resorts Group Haldings
Ine."s shares,

The table below sets forth the members of the Company’s Board and senior officers as of the date
of this Report;

Name Age Citizenghip Position

Dennis A, Uy 44 Filipino Chairman, Directar

Cherylyn . Uy 35 Filipino Director

E:z:::::o Martin M. 57 Fllipino Prasident, Diractor

Lara Lorenzana 44 Filiplhe Chilef Financial Officer, Treasurer,
Director

Joge Angel Susiro 46 Spanish Chief Operating Officer, Diractor

Erc D. Reeto g4 Fllipino independent Director

William W. Yap 43 Filipino Independent Director

Leandre E. Abarquez 38 Fllipino Corporate Secretary

Below are summaries of the business exparisnce and credentials of the Directors and the oificers:

Denris A, Uy

Dennis A. Ly is tha founder and Chainman of the Company. He is aiso the Chalman and

President of Udenna Corporatian, the Company's parent campany, which has businesses in the
shipping, logistics, distributlon, real estate, and service industrias. Among the subsldiaries of |
Udenna Carparation are Phoenix Petralalrm Moldings, (ne. ("PPHI"), Chelsea Logistics Holdings: .~

Cop. (CLC'), Udsting Managament & Resources Corg. 'UMRC?), UDEVCC, PH Travel and- L

Leisure, La Penseur, Ing., and Udenna Water and integrated Servicas, inc. Mr. Uy is the Chalrman -
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and President of PPHI, the holding company of Phoenix Petroleyim Fhifippines, Inc. {"PPEI") and
senves as the President and Chief Executive Officer of PPPL. He s cuirently the Chairman of
CLC. Hé is likewise the President and Chlef Exscutive Officer of UMRC and its subsidiares. in
addition, Mr. Uy is the Chairman of F2 Logistics, Phoenix Philippines Foungation, and Udenna
Foundation, He is a director af shipping and icgistics provider 260 Group, Ine. through Udenna
Investments BV'3 subsidiary KGLI-NM Holdings Inc, He al3o serves as Independent Director of
Apex Minlng Corp.

He is & member of the Young Presidents Qrganization — Philippine chapler and the Philipine
Buslness for Social Progress, Since November 201 1, Mr. Uy has been the Honorary Consul of
Kazakhstan to the Phillppines. In 2018, he was appointed as the Presidential Adviser on Sports.
He Is a graduate of De La Salle University with a degree in Business Management.

Charylyn C. Uy

Cheryiyn C. Uy, is a Director of the Company. Ms. Uy is ong of the pioneersfincorporators of
Udenna Corporation, the ultimate parant sompany of PNX-Chelsea, and which has subskliarias
engaged in the petrolsumn, shipping, logistics, services, and real estate businesses, among others.
She |s the Corporate Treasurer of Udenna group. She Is also a director of PPPI and CLC,

She is zlko one of the Directors of Phoenix Philippines Foundation, Inc. and of Udenna
Foundation, Ing,, the comporate social responslbility entiffies of the Udenna Group. Ms. Uy is tha
Carmporate Treasurar of UMRC, Chelasa Shipping Corp. and other Udenna cornpanies. She also
servas as the Corporate Secretary of Allied Guard Security Agency Philiopinas, Ine. Ms. Uyis a
graduate of Business and Finance from Atenao de Davao Univeraity.

Raymunde Martin M. Escalona

Rayrnundo Martin M. Escalona is the President of the Company. He ie also currently a Dirsctor of
Udenna Corporation. Mr. Escalona has over 28 years of experlence In carporate finance and
banking, primarily in the areas of treasury ang refationshily management. Prigr to Jaining the
Company, Mr. Escalona was the Execulive Vice President and served a8 the Head of the
Institutional Banking Group of CTBC Bank {(Philippines) Corp. Ha also served as tha Exscutive
Vice Prasident and Gorporate and Inslitutional Bank Head of Australle and New Zealand Bank,
Manila Branch. Mr. Escalona was also previously the First Vice President and Unit Haad of
Corporate Banking and Financial Institufions in BDQ; Vice Prasident and Head of Large Local
Carporate Unit and Deputy Corporate Banking Head in Oeutscha Bank AG, Manita Branch; and
Aesistant Vice Prasident of Rslationship Management Unit in Citytrust. Mr, Escalana samad his
Sachelor of Science in Commerce degree, Major in Management of Financial Institutions, at the
De La Salle University.

Lara Larenzang

Lara Lorenzana-Kolling is the Chisf Finance Officer of the Company. Ms. Lorenzana has gvar 20
years of experlence in invastment banking, profect and structured finance. and risk and porifolio
managemant. She started har caresr in Citihank Manila's Corporate Finance department which
was ihe leadsr in project and structuned finance for the privatization of power, water and tekacorm
industrias in the Philippines. Ms. Larenzana spent the next 17 years in New York Gity as the Global
Fartolio Risk Mangger for Barclays Capital, Portfolo Managsi/Director for Unicredito tallano New
York Branch, and Portfolio Ms=nagerManaging Director for fixed income for Modarn Bank, NA,
Ms. Lorenzana has a Masters in International Managernent from .Thunderbird Schoel of
Management In Arizona, a Masters in Business Administiation from Fordham University in New
. Yark Clty, and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economlcs from the Atenso de Manila. University,

oy .E o

Josa Arigel Susiro




Jose Angsl Sueirpis the Chisf O perating Offlcer of the Company. Mr. Suelro has over 20 yaars of
experiencs in the hote! and gaming industry and has worked on over 30 hate! and casito projects
In 1B countries, such as Fiesta Casino Alajuela, Intercortinental Hotel Fiesta Casine Guatemala,
Hilten Masgarita Cirsa amd Centrum Casine Lodz. He hes extensive inowiedge about product
. creation and marketing and has a deep understanding of the local regulatery environment, the

relation and balance betwsan different political, sconamic and soclal fames. During his tme with
Thunderbind Rasorts {including the Thunderbird Hotel and Casino in Rizal, Poro Point and
Daman), 2 company with eperations in more than 20 countries, he sarved the as the Chiof
Operallng Officer, Vice President for Corporate Affairs and Vies President for Design and
Construction. He was resgonsible for creating and executing sirategy, communicating cubture and
running daily matters with the objective of Increzging stakehglder value. Mr. Sueiro holds an MBA
from EUDE Business Schaol, Madrid.

Erle Q, Racto

Eric C. Recto is one of the two Independent directors of the Company. He is the Chaiman and
President of 1S\ Communications Comoration and Bedfordbury Develapment Corporation, Ha
glso serves gs the Chairman and Director of Phiiippine Bank of Communications. Previously the
Fresident, he now serves as a Director of Petron Corporation. He Is aiso an independent director
for Aboltiz Fower Corporation, His previcus positions Include Vise Chairman of Alpnaland
Comoration, Director of San Miguel Corporation and Manila Electric Company, and
Undersecretary far the Department of Finance.

William W. Yap

William V. Yap is one of the two independent directors of the Company. He is currently the CEQ
of YYKredit Inc #nd the President of YYKaizen Foud Labs Inc. and Udlot Realty Corparation. Mr.
Yap also serves as the Treasurer for Nissan Csbu Bisfributors Inc. ang Palawan Resources
Development Corporation. Mr. Yap has a Bachelor's Degres in Industrial Engineering from the
University of San Carlos,

Leandro E. Abarquez

Leandro E. Abarquez is the Carporate Secretary of the Company. Pricr o joining the Company,
hé was a Senior Assaciate at Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & de los Angeles from
210 ko 2017, whare he advised clients oh various diverse matters and special projects including
mergers and acquisitions, [nitial public affering, gaming regulatory advice, public-private
partnerships, profect finance, and dispute rasolution metters. He received his bachelor's degree
in Biclogy from the Atenea de Manlla University in 2004, and his juris doctor degree from the seme
university in 2009. He s also the Compliance Officar of GLG.

D, Family Relationships

Dennis A. Uy, Chairman and Diractor of the Company, is the spouse of Charylyn C. Uy, Director
of the Cornpany,

Other than as disclosed above, thare ars no other family relationships between Directors and
members of the Company’s sanior management known to the Cormpany.

c indepsndant Directors

As of the submission of this repant, Messrs. Eric Q. Recto and William W. Yap are nelther officers
rer substantial sharehaiders of PH Resorts Group Holdings, ins. nor are they directors or officers
ot any of its related companies. :

Effective 1 January 2017, the Company has adopted the new rufes on the term limits of
Indapendent Directors under the New Code of Comorate Governance {"New GG Coda"). Current

. .Independent Directors are allowed to serve for a sumulative term of fine (9) years, with or without
- i the eopling-off period. After which, the independent diractor shauld be perpstually barred from re-
v election as such in e same company, but may continue to qualify for mormination and election as
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a non-indepandent director.  Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year term is fram 202, in
connaction with SEC Memcrandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2011,

Inthe instance that the Company wants to retaln an | ndependent Director who has sarved for nine
yaars, the Board shall provide meritarious justification/s and sesk sharehoiders’ approval during
the annual shareholders” masting.

d. Stgnificant Employess

While the Company values the conbribution of sach executive and ren-axacutive employee, ng
single employee who is not an executive officer Is expactad to make a significant contribution to
the business. Other than standard emplaytiant contracts, there are no arrangemants with non-
executive employees that will assure the continued stay of these ampioyses with the Company.

e Pending Legal Procsedings

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the present memkers of the Board of
Directors or its Senior Officers and the nominees for election as director named in the subsequent
goctions are not, as of the past five (5} years, been adjudged with finality in any material legal
proceeding affecting/involving themselves anadfor their propertias before any court of law or
administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhare. To the knowledge andfor infarmation of the
Company, the said parsons have nol been convictad by final judgment of any offense punishable .
by the laws of the Republic of the Philippinas or any ather nation/country.

f Certein Relationships and Relatod Transactions

Historically, the Company receives or extends acvancas from and to its major sharsholders from
time-to-time as the need arises, ‘These advances are non-interast hearing and payable under
certain terms ang! conditions primarily dependent on the Company's cash posiion,

The Company, in the regular course of trade or busiass, erters into transactions with
affillatediretated companies principally consisting of managemsnt fess, leasing agreements and
cash advances. Generally, management and Jsasing arrangemeants ara renewed on an annual
basts and are based on terms similar to those offered o non-related parties.

There are no other transactions undartaken or to be undertaken by the Company in which any
Director or Executive Officer, nominea for slection as Director, or any member of their immediate
family was or will be involved or had ar will have a dlrect o indirect malerial inderest,

g Efertions of Directors

The dirsctors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to held office for
one (1) year and unti! their respective sucnessors have besn alected and quaiified,

The direclars an the Nominations Gommittee are Mr. Raymunco Martin M. Escaloha, Mr. William
W.Yap, and Mr. Jase Angel Sueira. The chai rparsor is Mr. Escalona and the Independent Director
is Mr. Yap.

Tha following have bean nominatad as Directors of the Company for 2018-2020;

1. Dannis A. Uy

2. Gherylyn C. Uy

3. Raymundo Martin M. Escalona
4. Jose Angel Susirg

6. Lera C. Lorenzana

6. Ma. Concepcion de Clare

7. Eric O..Radto

8 Willam W. Yap

9. Angel E. Ignacic



The nominaes were formally nominated to the Nemination Committee by a stackiolder of the
Company, Eric O. Recto, Willam W. Yap, and Angel E, Ignacic are the nominess for
Independent Director.

A background on the new naminees can be found below.
Ma. Concepcion F. De Claro

Ma. Concepsion F. De Clero holds & Bachslor of Science degree in Gommercs, Major in
Accounting from the Colegio de San Juan de Letran. She has been the Company's Ghief Financial
Officar sinca March 2018. S8he was Director of Alsons Prime Investment Corporation and Alsons
Power Holdings Corporation and the Vice-President and Chief Operating officer of Alsons
Comperation. She also served as the Director of Limay Energen Corporation and Manila Morth
Harbour Port, Inc. Ma. de Claro also worked with Petron Corporation for sevaral years. She was
& Consultant for M&A Frojscts and @ member of the Board of Trustees of Petron Corparation
Employees Retirement Fund. She also servad as Petran's Vice President for Corporate Planning
& Services, Controller for the company and its subsidiaries, and held various positions in
Corporate Planning. In addition, Ms. De Clam also served as a Director of New Venturas Realty
Corporation, Las Lucas Developrment Corparation, Petron Marketing Corporation and Petran
Freeport Corporation.

Angela E. Ignacia

Angsla E, Ignacio is also the Executive Vice President of R.A. Ignaclo Constructian Corporation
and the Managing Cireclor for Corporate Advisory for Avisaz Asia, Inc. She le a fellow of the
institute of Corporate Directars. She is also a Director of ESNA Financing 8 Investrnent Corp.,
ESNA Reslty Corp., and ESKA Holdings; and Direcior and Vice President of Folastrom
Consulting, Inc. She I3 also an independsant direclor of Ayala Land, Inc. since 2017. She is a
Ceitified Finance and Treasury Professional in Australla and a Member of the Finance and
Treasury Association of Ausfralia. She was an Intsmational Consultant for The World Bank’s
Puklic Financial Management Assistanca Program in Vietnam for the oversight of state owned
enterprises and the Infrastructure Sector Asseasment Program (InfraSAP) SOFE Mission in
Indonesia. She served as a Commisslaner of the Governanoe Commission for GovernmentOwmed
or Controlled Gorporations (“GCG”") with a rank of Undersecretary from Novembear 2011 to Jure
2015, Prior to her sppointment as GCG member, sha served as Vice President under the Office
of the Board Chainman at the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation and also served
concurrently as Special Assistant for Corparate Affairs and Management Information Systems to
the Secretary of the Department of Financa {'DOF") from September 2010 to October 2011, She
was a Director of the United Gocanut Planters Bank where she was also a member of the
Exscufive, Risk Management and Gampensation and Benefits Commiftees; and a Directar of
UCPB Savings Bank and UCPB Securlties. She obtained har double degres in Applied Economics
and Commerge, major in Management of Financial Institutions from De La Salle University in 1954
whare she was awarded Best Thesis by the Economics Department for her work on Financial
Distregs Pradiction Madels In the Phillppines. She earmned a Master's Degree in Applied Finance
fram the University of Melboume in 20040.

As recuired under SRC Rule 38 and as ratified for inclusion In the Corporation's By-Laws by the
stockholders in its meeting held November 24, 2010 {the amended By-Laws was approved by the
SEC on Decemnber 23, 2008}, the following criteria and guidelines shall be observed in the
nomtination and election of independent directors:

A Dafinifion

1. Asused in Section 38 of the Code, independent director means a parson wha, apart from
his fees and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business
of other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived ko, materially interfere
with his exercise of Independent Judgment in camylng out his regponsibililies as a director

. Imany coverad company and includaes, amang others, any person who:
.a s not a director or officer of the covered company or of s related cormpanies ar any
- ofits substantlal share wlders except when the same shall be an independent director

of any of the foregaing; T T



. Does naot own rmore than two percent (2%) of the shares of the covered company
and/or its related companies or any of its substantial sharshaldars:

¢ Is$ mob related to any direcior, officer or substantial sharsheldar of the covered
company, any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholdars. Forthls
purpoge, relatives includes spouse, parent, child, brather, sister, end the spouse of
such child, brother or sister

d. s naotacting as & nominee or reprasentative of any dirsctar or substantial shareholder
of the covered company, andfor any of its related companles ancdior any of its
substantial shareholders, pursuant 10 & Dsed of Trust or under any coniract or
arrangament;

e Hss not been employed in any exscutive capaciy by the covered company and/or by
any of its substantial sharehoiders within the last five (5) years;

1. 13 not retalned as professional adviser by the Corporatian, andfor any of its related

companies and/or any of ts substantial shareholdar within the last five {8) years;

g. ls nol retained, eithar personally or through his fi'm or any similar entity, as

professional adviser, by that covered company, any of its related companies andfor
any of its substantial sharehplders:

h. Has nol engaged and does hot engage in any transaction with the covered company
andigr with any of its relsted compenies andior with any of s substantial
shareholders, whether by himself andfor with other persons andfor through 2 firm of
which he is a partner and/or 8 company of which he is a director or substantial
shareholder, other than tranasctions which ars conductad at amm’s length and are

Immaterat,

Mo person cenvicted by final judgment of an offense punishable by imgrisonment for a period
exceeding six (&) years, or a violation of this Code, committed within five {5} years pricr to the
dlate of his alection, shall gualify as an independent diractor. This is without prejudice to other
disqualifications which the covered company's Manual on Corporate Governance provides.

Any cantroversy or issue ariging from the selection, nomination or election of Indepeandent
directors shall bs resolvexd by the Commission by appointing independent directors from the
list of nominees submilted by the stockholders.

VWhen used in relation to 8 company subject to the reguirements of this Rule and Section 38

of the Code:

2. Related company means ancther company which is: (a) its parent campany, (b) its
subsidrary, or {c) a subsidiary of jts parent company; and

b. Eubstantial shareholder means any parson who is directly or indirectly the beneficial
ownar of mare than ten percent (10%) of any class of its equity security.

B. Qualifications

1. Musl he the halder of at least one share of the Corporation;

2. College gradualte of has sufficlent management experance to cornpensate for lack of
formal education or has been engaged or exposad to the business of the corporation for
at least five (5} years;

3. OFflegal age:

4. Passesses integrity and probity; and

5. Assiduous.

. Disqualifications

1. Falls under Section Il {8) of the Code of Corporate Governance:

2. Becomes an amplovae; _

3. Beneficial ownership exceeds two percent (2%);

4. Absent in meetings up to 50%; and '

h

Others as per. Corporate Govgmarq;é Manual, .



D. Maminations

1. The Nomlnations Commitiee conducts nominations prior o the Annuwal Stockholders'
Mesating.

2, The HNominations Committee sclicils candidates for indspendent director.  All
recommenciations are siined by the nominating shareholder together with acceptance and
conformity by the prospactive neminse.

3. The Nominations Committee pre-scraens candidates whether they meet the requirermnents
as an independent director per criteria mentioned above, general guldelings in the
{Comorate Governance Manual, Articles of Incarporation, By-Laws and perceived nasds
of the Board of Directors and tha Corporation such as, bul not limited to:

&. Nature of businass of cerporations which he iz 2 diractor of;

h. Age

c. No. of directorships/active memberships/officer in  other corporations and
organizations;

d. Possible conflict of interest,

4. The Nemingtions Committes shall prapars a list of all candidatas and evaluate hased on
the abovedisted required qualifications to enable it to effectively review the qualifications
of tha norinees for indepeandant director.

5. Afler the nomination, the Cornmittee shall prepare a final list of candidates which shall
¢ontain all the information about the nominges for independent director, as required under
Fart IV (&) and {C) of Annex G of SRC Rule 12, which list, shall be made available to the
BSEC and to all sharehclders through the flling and distribution of the Information
Statement or Proxy Statement, in accordance with SRC Rula 20, orin such other reports
the company is required to submit to the SEG.

The name of the person or group who recommendead the nomination of the independent
direstor shall be identified in such report including any relationship with the nominee.

6. Only nominees on the final list of candidates will be aligible for elaction. Mo other
nominees shall be entertained after the final list is prepered. No further nomination will
be allowed during the annual stackholders’ mesting.

E. Elegiion

1. Except as those required under the Rule and subject to pertinent existing laws, rules and
regulatlons of the Commissian, the conduct of tha slection of indapsndent directors shall
be made in accordance with the standard election procedures of the company or ite by-
s,

2. It shall be the responsibility of the Chairman of the Maeting to infomm all stockholders In

attendance of the mandatory requirement of electing independent directors. He shalt

efsure that independent directors are elected during the stockholders' mesting,

&pecific slots for independent directors shall not be Alled-up by ungualifled nominess,

In case of failure of election for independent diractors, the Chaimman of the Meeting shall

call a separate eleclion during the same maeting to fill up the vacancy.

= o

in case of resignation, disqualification or cessation of independsnt directorship and only after
notice has been made with the Commission within five (5) days from such resignation,
disqualfication or cessation, the vacancy shall be filled hy the vote of at least a malorlty of the
remaining directors, If still constituting a quorum, upon the nomination of the Cammittes atherwiss,
said vacancies shall be filled by lhe stockhalders in a reguiar or special meeting called for that
purpose. An Independent director so elected to fill a vacancy shall serve anly for the unexpired
tarm of his predecessor in office.

The following nominees, as submitted to and pre-screenad by the Nomingtions Committee of the
Corporation, qualify a2 independent director,

-1 Eric Q. Racto
20 William W, Yap
& Angellgnacio

iy
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Tha nams of the person who recommended Mr. Yap and Mr. Reclo is Mi. Reymundo Martin
M. Escalona. Mr. Escatona is not related by consanguinity or affinity 10 any of the nominated
independent directors,

lter 6. Compensation of Directors and Exacutive Officers

Far the period ending 31 December 2018, the Company paid an aggragate ramuneration
of approximately P27.8 million te the senior executives of the Company, incuding the
President, Chief Finandai Officer and Chief Operating Officer, during the currant fiscal
year, based on certain assumptians by the Campany.

SUMMARY ANMNUAL COMPENSATION TABLE

(F milllong)
Name and Principal Positions Period Salary Bomus
Tatal compensation of execntives 2018 PI5s -—

There is no compansatory plan or arrangement with respect to any of the Company's
executiva officers that will result from the resignation, retirement or termination of such
executive officer or from a change of control in the Company.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

Constantino, Guadalgulver & Co. (CGCa) has been the Company's indepandant auditars since
2009 until 2& June 2018, On 28 June 2018, the Company change itz External Auditors to SyCip
Gorres Velayo & Co, (SGV & Co).

Representatives of SGV & Co. will be present during the annual stockholders’ meeting and will be
given the opportunity o make a statement if they so desire. Thay are also axpacted to respand. to
appropriale questions from stockholders, if needed, GV & Co. has acceptad the Company's
invitation {o stand for re-slection this year.

Mr. Eric O. Recty, an [ndependent directur, chairs the Audit Committee. The mambers ars Mr.
Raymundo Martin M. Escalena and Ms. Lara C. Lorenzana.

Marta Piiar 8. Haermandsz is the current audit pariner for the Company and ile subsidiaries.

Pursuant to SRC Rule 88, Paragraph 2(b){iv}, the Company will either changs its External Auditor
or rotate the engagement pariner every five (§) years.

Itern &. Compensation Plana
Approval Is sought for the Company's Employes Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan”) for quslified
employees, directors, officers and other gualified persons, the terms of which shall be determined
by tha Administrative Committee of the Plan, and to be approved by the Board of Directors.
The Purpose of the Plan is to: {(a) raward and retain high perfarming employees; (b) motivation for

work increased work performance; (c) to atfract qualified and young talemts: (d) improve
employees’ net worth; and (e} broaden the Company’s cwnrarship bace.

lterm 9. Authorization or [ssuance of Securities Other than for Exchange
A. Increase in Authorized Capital Stock
The: Comparty i& propasing an increase in authorized cepital stock of the Corposation from Eight

Billion Pesos (PhP&,000,0006,000.00) divided into Efght Blllion {8,6Q0,000,000) shares with a par
- value of One Peso (PhP1.00) per share to up to Fifteen Billion Pesos (PhP15,000,000,000.00)
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divided into Twelve Billion (15,000,000,000) sheras with a par value of One Pesa {FhP1.00} per
shara or such other amount as determined by the Board of Directors.

Approval of the stockhokders is heraby sought for szid incraase in authorized capital stock, the
subscription 1o the increase in autharized capital stock, and to grant the Board of Directors the
autherity {0 fssue such number of shares of stock gut of the existing capital stock and increase in
authorized capital stock and at an issue price of not (283 than par value 23 the Board of Directors
may determine and to accept cash or non-cash properties as payment for such subscriplion.

B. Issuance and Listing of Shares

Approval of the stockholders is also sought to grant Boand of Directors the autharity to issue shares
pursuant 1o equity offering, private placement or such simllar rensaction under such terms and
condiions ag the Board of Directors may determine, and to list such shares with the Philippine
Stoek Exchange.

Iteam 11. Financlal and Other Information

The Company’s financlal statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018 and
Management Feport are attachad herato 25 Annaxas "A" and "B".

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY WILL PROVIDE,
WITHGUT CHARGE, A COPY OF THE COMPANY'S SEC FORW 17-A DULY FILED WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION.

ALL REQUESTS MAY BE SENT TO THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

MR. LEANDRQ E. ABARQUEZ
Comporate Secretary '

PH Resorts Group Hoidings, Inc.
GGDC Administrative Services Building,
Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone,
Fampanga, Philippines

Itam 12. Mergers, Consolldations, Acquisitions and other Similar Matters

It is proposed that a marger of the Company and its subskidiary, PH Trave! and Lelsure Haldings
Corp. (*PH Travel”] be appreved by the shareholders. PH Travel is 100% owned by the Company,
and is the holding company for the gaming and hespitality anm of the Udenna Groug, which
hncludes Lapulapu Leisure, Inc., Clark Grand Leisure Corp., and Donatela Hotel Panglas Carp.
The merger is being proposed for betler efflclency and consolidabion,

tem 13. Acquisitien/Disposition of Property

In gcldition to the merger in [tem 12, for approval and/or rafification is the acquisition of 100% of
the kssued and outstanding common shares of Lapulapu Land Corp, by the Company's subsidiary,
Lapulapu Leisure Ing, at the consideration determined by the Board of Directors,

ltem 14, Restatament of Accounts

The accounting policies and discfosure set out in the audited financial statements have heen
eppllad cansistently to al! the years presented except for the following amendsd FFRS and PAS
which became effechve in 2017

* PAS 7, "Cash Flow Statameants”: Disclosura Initiative .

The amendments require the entity to provide disclosures thai enable users of financial statement
-to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activitiss, ineluding badth changes arising
from cash flow and non cash changes. The specific disclosuns that may be necessary.in order to

12



satisfy the above requirament Includes:

» changes in llabillties arising from financing activiies caused by changes in financing cash tlows,
forgign exchange rates or fair values, or abtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other

businesses; and :
« a reconciliation of the opening and ¢losing balances of liabilitias arising from financing activities
in the statement of financial position including Bhose changes identiied immedistely above.

The amendments did not have significant impact on the finendial statemenis as this affects
disclosures only.

« PAS 12, “Income Taxes™ Racognitlon of Defgrred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

The amendments in recognition of deferred fax assets for unreslized losses clarfy the
requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unreallzed losses related o dabt
instruments measuned at fair value.

The amendments did not have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Item 15. Action with Reapect to Minutes of Pravious Meeting

Actions to be taken will constiete reading and approval of the minutes of the previous
stockholders’ mesting, approval of the Annual Report of Management, approval of the amendment
of the Articles of Incorporation, and ratification of all acts of the officers and management for the
year ended 31 December 2018, The minutes of the Annual Stockholdars’ Maeting held on 25
June 2018 and the relevant resalutions approved by the Board of Directors for ratification ky the
stockholders are attached hereto as Annexes "C" and "D,

"~ kem 17, Amendments of Charter, By-Laws and Other Doguments
Amendment of the Arficlas of [ncorporation of the Corporation as follows:

i. T chande the principal office address of the Comporation te "Udenna Towaer, 41 Ave. car.
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.”

. To increass the authotized capitat stock of the Corporation from Eight Billlon Pesos
{FhPa,000,000,000.00) divided into Eight Bllllon Commun shares (8,000,000,000} with a
par value of One Peso (PhP1.00) per share fo Fifteen Bilion FPesos
{PhP15,000,000,000.00) divided into Fitteen Billion {14,000,000,000) shares with a par
value of One Peso (PhP1.00) per share.]

Amendment of the By-Laws of the Corporation as follows:

l. Tochange the date of ths annual stackholders meating to “ths third Wednesday of May "

item 18. Other Maiter=

Asg of the date hereof, there are no other matters which the Board of Directors intends to present
or has reggon to believe others will present at the meeting.

Item 19. Voting Procedures

The afcrementioned motions will require the affimative vote of 2 majority of the issued and
outstanding shares of the Company's commaon stack present and represented and entitlad to vote

at tha Apnual Mesting, except for the matters which reguire an amendment of the Adicles of
Incorperation of the Company, which will require & voie of 2/3 of the issued and outstanding shares

of the Company's commen stock - present and reprasenterd and snfitled ta vots at the Annual

- Meeling. Because abstentions with respect io any malter are trealed as shares present and
- tepresented and entitled o vote for puiposes of delermining whether the stockholders have
appravad that mattér, abstentions hava the same affect s negative voles. Broker non-votes and
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shares as {o which proxy authority has been withheld with respect to any matter are not deemed
to be present or represented for purposes of detemining whether stockholder approval of that
mafter has bean obtaine,

Iterms requiring the vole of stockholders will be presented for approval of (he stockholders at the
meeting and voting shall ba by viva voce, SGV & Co., the Company's independent auditors, were
requasted and have agreed to manually tally the votes at the meeting. They will present the regults

afterwards.
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SIGNATURE

Fursuant to the requirements of the Securlies Regulation Codg, the issuer has duly caused tis
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

After reasonable inguiry and to the best of my knowledge and bellef, | cartlly that the information
set farth in this report is true, complste and cormect. This report is signed in Taguig City on this 5th day of

Agril 2019.
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PHRESCRTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

DRAFT

{Formerly Philippine H20 Ventures, Corp.) AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Decomber 31

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash snd cssh equivalents (Note 5) PGR6,846385  P165.586,738
Trade and other receivables (Notes 5, & and 7) 13,986,884 3,124,797
Advances to related parties (Note 7) 45,068,343 351,404,302
Inventories 1,761,569 -
Restricted fund (Note 11) 139,955,985 -
Prepayments and other current assets (Notes 7 and 8) 62,563,121 3,077,481
Total Current Assets 950,182,087 343,193,318
Noncwrrent Azsefs
Property, plant and equipment (Noie ¢, 11 and 20) 3,932,239,892 472,810,002
Deposit for future property acquisition {Note 10) 111,430,494 470,687,857
Cash in escrow (Notes 5 and 20) 1,315,.918,711 751,913,965
Iput value-added tax (VAT) 230,192,836 21,764,439
Advances to suppliers (Note 9) 213,337,217 84,242,355
Deferred tax asset (Note 16) - 503124
Other noncurrent 4ssets 14,347 898 149,786
Total Noncurrent Assels 3,868,467,108  1,803,171,338
TOTAL ASSETS P6,818,64%,195  B2,328,364,856
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Linhbilitics
Current portion of loans payable (Motz 11) 13,849,608,994 R1,649,124.684
Trade and other payables (Notes 7 and 12) 397,254,293 125,533,173
Advances from relaied parties {Note 7) 1,279.332,675 129,367,293
Total Current Liabilities 5.526,195.962 1,904,025,1 50
Noncurrent Liablilities
Noneurrent portion of logns payable {Note 11) 064,864,063 787,089
Retention payable (Note ) 85,776,468 -
Defemred tax liabilities- net (Note 16) 15,644,701 —
Total Noncurrent Fiabilities 1,066,285,232 787,089
Tatal Ligbilifies 6,592,481.194  1,904,812.239
Equity
Capital stock (Mote:13} 4,2386,58%.813 243,241,504
Additional paid-in capital (Note 13) - 58.073,612
Equity reserve (Wotes 2 and 13} i (4,050,000,000) 198,684 B34
Defigit 2" - : i (110,721,812) (76,447,383)
Total Buity. - 226,168,001 423,552,617
TOTAL LIABILEFIES AND EQUITY E6,818,649,195 B2 37 E,Bﬁ#ﬁiﬁm .

(e P

Jee aooompanying Noles to the Consolidaied Fiiarcial Statements.



PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC,

DRAFT

(Formerly Philippine H20 Ventures, Corp.) AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2018 2017
NET OPEBATING REVENUES
Food and bevetage $43,8589,021 P~
Rooma 35,148,627 -
Others 3,720,804 —
82,758,452 —
DIRECT COSTS AND EXPENSES
Inventories eonsumed 19,786,070 -
Solaries and wages 11272482 -
Other costs and expenses (Hote 14) 4,963,537 -
36,022,089 -
GROSS INCOME 46,736,363 -
OPERATING EXFENSES (Nota 15} 175,162,104 35,308,775
OPFERATING LOSS (128.425.741) (55,398,775)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSLES)
Interest cxponse (Notes 7 and 11) (§1,354,913) (15,654,302)
Interest income (Note 5) 20,643,486 12,053,748
Gain on disposal of B subgidiary WNote 19} 617,037 -
Foreign exchange loss — pet (15.185,103) (16,613,035)
Oither expenses (344 375) {45.391)
(76,621,568) (20,263,000}
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (205,049,609) (75,661,775)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX {Note 16)
Currend 3,104,145 1,288,732
Deferred 16,147,525 (503,124)
10,251,973 785,608
NET LOSS/ TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Note 23) [224,301,582) {76,497.383)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share (Note 21) @®0.7754) (P0.3143)

Jee accompanying Notes fo the Conselidated Financial Statemernds.
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PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

DRAFT

(Formerly Philippine H20 Ventures, Corp.) AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIER
Loss before income tax (B211,066,782)  (B75,661,775)
Adjustments for: _
Interest expenss (Note §) 81,334,552 15,654,302
Interest income (Note 8) (18,131,138) (12,053,748)
Unrealized forsign exchange loss {gain) 11,606,347 16,613,055
Gain on dispasal of a subsidiary (Note 21} {617,037) -
Depreciation (Notes 10, 15 and 16) 3,848,295 307,512
Loss before worldng capital changes (133,025,763) (54,940,654)
Decresge (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables {2,929.550) -
Advances to related parties 339,611,120 {351,404,302)
Inventories {1,761,309) -
Prepayments and other current assets (38,248,013) {3,077,481)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and other current liabilities 209,193,377 125,533,173
Nat cash generated from (used in) operations 372,839,802 (283.889,204)
Income taxes paid {591,800) {1,288,732)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitics 372,248,002 (285,177,995)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Forward)

Acquisition of property, plent and equipment (Note 10) (3,393,675,928)  (463,741,058)
Diecrease (increase) in;

Deposit for future property acqisition 359,257,373 {470,687,867)

Input value-added tax (258,943,861) {21,014,225)

Advances to suppliers (129,094,862) {34,242 ,355)

Other nonourrent assets {15,198,112) -
Tramsfer of cash to escrow fund (539,985,086)  (751,913,265)
Interest received 26,187,614 6,928,951
Cash and cash eguivalents of deconsolidated subsidiary (Note 21} (7,251,958) -
Net cash used in invesing aeiivities (3,958,704,790) (L,785,570.519)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from related parties 1,096,782 404 129,367,203
Paymenis of'

Interest (97,251,107) (26,330,758)

Mortgage loan (1,296,629) {343,827
Proceeds from:

Baok lpans 3,055,044,015  1,650,255,600

Mortgage loan 3,102,400 -
Increase in relention payable 845,776,468 -
Share issuance costs (Note 18) (65,650,064) -
Debt ismuance eosts {Note 13) (52,354,488) ' -
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock (Note 18) — . 500,600,000
Netcash provided by financing activities __4,069,803,063

3.252,948 308



DRAFT

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

CASH ANI} CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE PERIOD - EFFECT OF REYERSE

P483.346.275  P182,199,793
473,280 (16,613,055)

ACQUISITION 37,440,093 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE PERIOD (Note 6) 165,586,738 —

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE PERIOD {Note 6)

PE36,846,385  P165,586,738

See accompanying Notes fo the Consolidmied Fingnoial Staiements.



PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC,
{Formerly Philippine H20 Ventures, Corp,) AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

General Information

Corporate Information
PH Resotts Group Holdings, Inc, (formerly Philippine H20 Ventures Comp. “PH Resorts™, “Parent

Company™ or *H20"} was incorporated in the Philippines and was registersd with the Securitics and
Exchangs Commission (SEC) on January 30, 2009. The commeon shares of the Parent Company are
listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The registered office address of the Parent
Compeny is at GGIXC Administrative Services Building, Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone,

Pampanga,

Om June 25, 2018, the Board of Directars {(BOD) and the stockholders approved the following
amendmemnts to the Parent Caompany’s Articles of Ingorporation, (ACH):

Change of corporate nama from Fhilippine H20 Ventures Corp. 1o PH Basorts Group Holdings,
Inc.

Change the primary purpose of H20 from “to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own,
hold, uss, develop, lease, scll, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, operate, enjoy or
otherwise dispose of, as may be permitted by law, all properties of every kind, natmre and
description and wherever sifuated, including but not limited to real estate, whether improved or
vnimproved, agriculiurs] and natural resource projects, buildings, warchouses, factories, industrial
complexes and facilities; shares of stock, subscriptions, bowods, warrant, debentures, notes,
evidences of indebiedness, and other securities and obligations of eny corporation or corporations,
associations, domestic or foreipn, for whatever lawfil to pay therefore stocks, bonds, debentires,
cottracts, or obligations, to receive, callect, and dispose of interest, dividends, and income arising
from such property; and to possess and exercise in respact thereof all the rights, powers, and
privileges of ownership, including complying with the provisions of Revised Securities Act” to 4o
subscribe, acquire, hold, sell, assign, or dispese of shares of stock and other securities of any
carporation including those engapged in the hotel andfor gaming and entertainment husiness, witheut
however engaging in the dealership of secutities or in the stock brokerage business cr in the
business of an investment company, to the extent permitted by law, and to be involved in the
management and aperations of such investee companies; and to gussantee the obligetions of its
subsidiaries or affiliates or any entity in which the Corporation has lawful irterest”.

Changs of registered principal offico address from 4th Floar, 20 Lansbergh Place Bldg., 170 Tomeas
Muorate, Quezon City to GGDC Admunisirative Services Building, Clark Global City, Clark
Fresport Zone, Pampanga, Philippines, 2023,

Change the number of directors from seven to oine.
Increase in authorized capital stock from B300.0 million, eonaisting of 500.0 millicn common

shares with a par value of 1.00 per ghare to 28,000.0 millien consisting of 8,000.0 million commaon
shares with a par value of £1.00 par shara. e

The consolidated financial statements as at December 3'1'. 2018 a:nd 2017 and for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 were authorized for issue by the BOD on March 29, 2019,



nership of

On December 19, 2017, the Parent Company was notified by Jolliville Holdings Corporation (JHC,
former parent company of H20) that the Jatter along with its subsidiaries and related parties will be
selling all their sharchaldings in the Parent Company representing 62.006% of the issued and
outstanding capital of the Parent Company to Udenna Development Corporation (UDEVCO), or to any
of the latter’s subsidiaries or affiliates (the TL20 Sale). Ong of the conditions to the H2O Sale is the
implementation and cotnpletion by H20 of & spinoff by selling all of its existing business and assets,
including shares and interest in its subsidiaries. The Parent Company shall also collect all receivables,
settle all its obligations, assign its contractual interests, transfer or reassign all of its employces and
settle and dissolve its retirement fond.

On February 21, 2018, Tubig Pilipinas Corp, (formerly Tabuk Water Corp, “TPC”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of THC), entered into a purchase agreement, subject to conditions, with the Parent Company
to purchase the latter’s shares and interests, in Calapan Waterworks Corporation (CWWC) consisting
of 137,045,398 shares representing 99.75% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of CWWC for
atotal consideration of 2442 0 million. On April 4, 2018, the Parent Company’s stockholders approved
the CWWC sale. On June 1, 2018, the Parent Company sold all of its shares and interests in CUWWC
to Tubig Pilipinas Corp. Accordingly, the Parvent Compeany lost (s control over CWWC,

On February 28, 2018, JHC and UDEVCQ entered into & Share Purchase Agreement {SPA) to acquire
150,824,890 common shares representing 52.006% of the issued and outstanding commaon sheares of
H2G for a total purchase price of 2647.9 miliion or #4.30 per share under the terms and conditiona set
forth in the SPA. On April 25, 2018, UDEYCO subsequenily assigned all of its righis and obligationa
under the SPA to Udenna Corporation (Udenna, Ultimate Parent Company), a company incorporated
in the Philippines. H20 will become a holding company for the tourism-related businesses of Uderma.

From April 30, 2018 to May 29, 2018, the tender offer commenced for the remaining 92,416,614
common shares, representing approximately 37,994% of the issued and owtstanding common shares of
HZ0, Udenna conducted 2 tender offer for the remaining common shareg, No other sharsholders
tendered their shares,

On June 1, 2018, upon completion of the tender offer and fulfillment of the conditions as provided in
the SPA, the comrmon shares of H20 were transferred io Udenna through & special block sale in PSE,
Accordingly, on the same date, the Parent Company became a subsidiary of Udenna. All the assets and
Liabilitics as of May 31, 2018 of the subsidiaries of the Parent Company were disposed through spin-
off on June 1, 2018 as part of the conditions set forth in the SPA.

Frem June 13 to July 3, 2018, Udenna acquired additional 19,457,486 shares through a special block
sale in PSE, effectively owning additional 7.994% ownership in H20.

On June 2? 2018 Udenna an.d FH Rasorts f:ﬁ.‘ibﬁ:ﬂtﬁd a deed of agsignment wherein Udenna assigned,
transferred, and uonwyed 44,554,000 shares of PH Travel and Lefsure Holdings Corp. (PH Travel, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Udenna), representing its 8.93% interest ownetship, to PH Resorts in
exchange fot cash consideration in the amount of P406.4 milliorn.

On the same date, Udenne and PH Resorts also executed a deed of assignment wherein Udenna
assigned, transferred, and conveyed 453,346,000 shares of PH Travel, sepresenting its 91.07% interest
ownership, to PH Resorts in exchange for the issusnce of 4,143,648,309 shares of PH Resorts (0 be
issued at B1.00 par value per share for a total share swap consideration of P4,143 6 million (Share Swap
Consideration). The DUltimate Parent Company shall apply the share swap consideration in payment of
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its subscription to the additional shares in the capital stock of PH Regorts to be issued at the price of
£1.00 per share from the proposed increase in the authorized capital sfock of FH Resorts.

On December 10, 2018, the SEC approved the amendments in the Parent Company’s AQL The
issuance of 4,143,648 300 shares of the Parent Company was made on December 26, 2018 and on the
same datg, the assignment of shares and equity share swap transaction became effective. Consequently,
as at December 26, 2018, PH Travel became 1 legsl subsidiary of PH Resorts.

Subsidiaries of PH Resorts

PH Travel was incorporated and registered with the 8EC on Januery 3, 2017. PH Travel's registered
office and principal place of business is lacated at 26th Floor, Fort Legend Towers, 3nd Ave, cor, 318t
Street, Brgy. Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City. PH Travel’s primary purpose 19 fo invest in, purchase
or otherwisc acquire and own, hold, use, construct, develop, mamitain, subdivide, sell, assign, lease and
hold for investment, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispese of real and personal
property of every kind and description, including the management and operation of the activities
conducted therein pertaining to general amusement and recreation enterprises, such ag bui not Hmited
to resorts, clubhouses, and sports facilities, hotels, casino and gaming facilities, including all the
apparatus, equipment and other appurtenances as may be related thereto or in cormeetion therewith.

PH Trawel holds investments in certain subsidiaries that are all incotporated in the Philippines and are
engaged in businesses related to the main business of PH Travel. PH Travel and its aubsidiaries shall

herein be referred to as FH Travel Group.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, PH Travel holds ownership itwerests in the following entities
incorporated in the Philippines:

¥ of Quinershli as at

Die of December 31, December 31,

Shbeitfiary Nome Nagyre of Busivesy Incorporatinn 208 2017

Lapelapu Letsore, Ine, {13} Hetels, casing and gaing Jomuary 25, 20017 100 100
Aeto8 Adr Philippines, Tne, (AAPT) Trangportation February 24, 2017 - 00
Donatsla Hetel Panglae Corp. (DHPC) . Haowel and recreztion November 7, 2017 LD 100
Tronatcla Resorts and Development Corp.  Tlotel and recreation Fromary 27, 2013 106 -

(DRIXC)

Clark Grand Leisure Corp, (COGLEC) Hotels, casina and gaming hdareh T, 2018 104 -
CD Teeasures Holdings Corp. {CTHC) Holding ¢crnpany tdarch 8, 2018 140 -
Davac PH Resarts Corp. (DERC) Hoiel and vecreation April 8, 2013 100 -

On January 12, 2018, PH Travel sold its 100% interest ownership in AAP] to Udenma Menagement &
Besources Corp. (a related party) for a consideration of 210.0 million which is equal to the investment
cost of AAPT m PH Travel’s books (see Note § and 19).

Un December 26, 2018, s a result of the effectivity of the assignment of shates and equity share swap
ransaction, PH Travel Graup became wholly-owned subsidiarics of PH Resarts.

Provisional Licenses

On May 3, 2017, Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporafion (PAGCOR) issued a Provisional
License (License) authorizing L3 to develop of approximately 13.5 hecfares in Mactan Islands,
LapuLapn City, Cebi and to establish and operate casinos and engage in gaming activities. The term
of 13’s Licanse shall be for a period of 15 years or until May 3, 2032, which may be renewed subject
to the terms of conditicns of the License.

0 OncAugust 6, 2018, PAGCOR issued a meslonal License to CGLC for the development uf an
" . integrated tourism resort end to es Lahhsh and operatﬂ a casino within Clark Freeport Zone.
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Further details of the terms and commitments under the Provisiongl Licenges are included in Hote 20,

Stafus of tions
DHFC has commenced its hotel and restaurent operations in January 2018, All other entities within the

Crronp is stall in ils pre-operating siages.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Complinnce

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis, These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine paso, which is the Group's functional atd
presentation currency under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). All values are rounded
to the nearest peso, unless othenwise indicated,

Por statutory reporting puiposes, the Parent Company prepates the consolidated financial statements
avery 31st of December.

Statement of Compliance

The coneolidated financial statements of'the Group as at Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards {(FERS). The term PFRS, in general, inchudes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issned by former Standing Interpretations Commitées,
the Philippine Interpretations Committze and the Internafional Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) and adopted by the Philippine SEC. )

Basis of Comsolidation

As at December 26, 2018, the equity share swap transaction betwoon FH Rosorts and PH Travel became
effective, Because PH Resorts did not meet the definition of a business, PH Travel was degmed to be
the aceuirer for accounting purposes. The acquisition was accouied For similarto a reverse acquisition
following the punidance provided by the standard. In a reverse acquisition, the legal parent, PH Resorts,
is identified as the acquiree for accounting purposes because hased on the substance of the transaction,
the legal subsidiary, PH Travel, is adjudged to be the cmity that gained control over the legal parent.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of PII Resorts have been prepared as a continnation
of the {inancial statements of the PH Trave] and subsidiaries. The PH Travel Group has accounted for
the acquisition of PH Resorts on December 26, 2018, which was the date when PH Travel acquired
control of PH Regorts,

The comparative financial information for the vear ended December 31, 2010 has not been presented
in the consolidated financial statements as all companies within the PH Travel Group were incorporated
in or affer Jarmary 2017 and the effective date which PH Travel gained contrel on PH Resorts as
described above was on December 26, 2018, The consolidated halance sheet as of December 31, 2017
prezentad in the consolidated Hoancial staternents as of Degember 31, 2018, for comparative purposes,
are reiroactively adjusted to reflect the legal capital (i.e. the number and fype of capital stock issued,
and additional paid-in capital} of PH Resorts, The adjustocent, which is the difference between the
capital structure of the PH Travel and PH Resorts, i3 recognized as part of equity reserve in the
consolidated balance sheats as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.



In accounting for this transaction, the consclidated financial information will reflect the following;:

(a) The consolidated assets and liabilities of PH Travel Group (legal subsidiary/accounting acguirer)
will ke recognized and measured at carrying smount and the assets and liabilities of PH Resoris
(legal parent/accounting acquiree) which only comsisi of casb and cash equivelents will be
recognized and measured at acquisition ¢ost,

(b} The equity will reflect the combvined equity of PH Travel Group and PH Resorts. However, the
legal capital of PH Travel Group will be elintinated as the legal capitel that will be reflected would
e that of I'H Resoris (legal parent);

() The income statement for the current period should reflect that of PH Travel for the fufl period
together with the past-acquisition results of PH Resorts; and

{(d)} Aoy difference between the comsideration transferred by PH Resoris and the legal capital of
PH Travel Group that is eliminated is reflected as “Equity reserve”.

Reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial statements of PH Resorts. The Parent
Company financial stetements will continue to represent PH Resorts as & stand-alene entity as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017,

The consolideted financial staterments include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
aforementioned subsidiaries (see Note 1) held divectly or indirectly through wholly and majerity-owned
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has tho ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee, Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the
following:

= Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the cument ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variablc retuens from its involvement with the investee; and,
The ability to vse its power over the investee to affect its retums,

When Company hag less than a majority of the voting rights of an investes, the Company considers alt
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over the investes, inclnding:

* Any contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the mvestee
= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
" The Company or its subsidiary’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Company reassesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and ¢ircumstances indicate that
there are changes to ong or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated fiom the dste of acquisition, being the date on which the Company
obtaing control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such conrel ceases, Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the yecar are included in the
. consolideted statement of income from the date the Gnmpauy galns nurllml u:n.tll the date when the
. Company ceases to control the subsidiary. e

The financial statements of the subsidiaries ate prepared for the same reperting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. AN intra-group balances, transactions and gains and losses
resulting from intra-group trancactions and dividends arc climinated in full. Profit or loss snd cach
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component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are artributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the noncontrelling interests, even it this results in the noncontrolling interests having a deficit
balance.

Mongeurrent Assets Eeld For Sale and Discontinued Operations
The Group classifies noncurrent assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts

will be recovered peincipally through & sale transaction rather than through continuing use, Noncurrend
agsets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to 3¢ll are the incremental costs directly atiributable to the
disposal of an asset {disposal group), excluding finance eosts and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the ssle is highly probable and
the assct or dispesal group is available for imumediate sale in itz present condition. Actions required to
complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or
that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to seli the asset
and the sale is expected to be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Property and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified as held
for sale.

Agsets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the
consolidated statetrents of finaneial position,

A disposal group qualifies ag discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

» Represents A soparate major line of business or geographical ares of operations

» I3 part of a single ¢coordinated plan to dispose of n separate major line of business or geographical
ares of operations; or

» Ts a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontitued opetations are excluded from the resnlts of continuing operations and are presented 2s a
single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income,

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 19 ¢o the consolidated financial staternents. All ofher notes
to the consolidated financial statements include amounts for continuing operations, unless indicated
otherwias.

Changes in Aecounting Policies and Financial Reporting Policies

The accounting policies sdopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the
Group has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2018. Adoption
of these pronouncements did net have any significant impact on the Group's financial position or
performance unfess otherwise indicated.

« Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-baved Payment, Classificotion and Measurement of Shave-based
Poayment Transactions :



PERES 9, Fingncial Instruments

PFRS B, Financial Instruments, replaces PAS 39, Fimancial Instriments: Recogrition and
Measuremeny, for annual periods heginning on or after JTanuary 1, 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instrurpents: classification and measurement; impairment;
and hedge acooumting.

The Group has applied PFRS @ with an indtial application date of January |, 2018. The Group has
not restated the cormparative information, which continues to be reported under PAS 39. The
edoption of PFRS ¢ did not have material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

&) Classification and measurement

Under FFRS 9, debt ingtruments are subsaquently measured at fair value through profit or loss,
amortized cost or fair value through OCIL. The classificatian is based on two criteria: the
Group’s buginess model for managing the agsets; and whethar the instruments’ cantractual cash
flows represent 'solely payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI) on the principal amount
mutstanding.

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made at the date of initial application,
January 1, 2018, The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are
SPPI was based on the facts and circumstances at the initial recopnition of the assets.

In summary, upon the adoption of FFRS 9, the Group had the following required ar elected
reclassifications as at January 1, 201 8:

PFES 9 Measurement Caiegory

Fair value through

other

Fair value thtough comprehenzive

As at January 1, profit or loss ineome

PAS 39 Measgroment Catogory an13 (FVPL) Amoriized cost (FYOCh
Loane and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents P165,576, 738 P B165,576,738 I

Trade and other receivables 312477 - 5,124,797 -

Advances o related parties 351,404,302 - 331,404,302 -

Cash in escrow T51,913,965 - 751,913,965 —

Toial £1.274,019,802 B- B 2010802 P

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of the financial Liabilities. As at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group does not hold financial liabilities desighated at FYPL.

bl Impairmernt

The adoption of PFR.S ¢ has fundamentally changad the Group's accounting for impairment lassey
for financial assets by replacing PAS 35°s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
eredit loss {(ECL) approach. PFRS 9 requires the Group to recond an allowance for ECLs for all
lpans and other debt financial assets not held at fair value through profit or logs. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the asset’s oripinal effective interest raie. Impairment on cash and cash
equivalents, accrued inferest and cash in escrow has been measured on 5 12-mwonth expected loss:
basis and reflects short-term maturities of tie exposures. :



The Gnoup congiders that its high-prade cash and cash in equivalents, acerued interest and cash in
escrow have Jow credit risk based on external credit ratings of the banks, The counferpartics have a
very remote likelitood of default and have consistently exhibited good paving habits. The identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

For advances io related parties, the ECL is based on the 12-month BCL. However, being due and
demandable, the intercompeany receivables, will atract a negligible ECL, since ECLs are only measured
over the perind in which the entity is exposed to credit risk. Ne other factors heve been noted by the
Group that would indicate that the advances are incapahle of being repaid on demand, such that the
borrower would default if the loan were called wherein the prebability of default would be need to bhe
aet o 100%.

Amendments (o PFRS 4, msurance Contracts, Applying FFRS 8, Financlal Instrumernts, with
PEFRE 4

PFRS 15, Revenue from Confracts with Clesiomers

PFRS 15 supersodes PAS 11, Conséruction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related Interpretations
and applies, with limited exceptions, to all revemie arising from contracis with ils customers.
PFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers.

The five-step model is as follows:

Identify the contract with a customet;

Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Determine the transaction price;

Allpcate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the coniract; and,
Recognize revenue as the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

e

PFRS 15 requires that revenue be recognized at an amount that refleets the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

PFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judpment, taking into consideration all of the relevant (acts
and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The
standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obizining a conizact and tho cosis
directly related to fulfilling a coniract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date af
initial application of January [, 2018, There is no impact on the consolidated financial statements
as at Jatmary 1, 2018 since most of the Group®s subsidiaries either have not yet started their
operations or have just started their operations during the year.

Amerximents o PAS 28, fmvesimenis in Associgier and Joimt Vemtures - Clarification that
measuring. investees at FYTPL is an lnvestmcnt—hy investment choice

Amendments to PAS 40, Invesiment Pmpen)’, Transfers of Investment Property
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Curvency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The interpretation clarifics that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, exponse or Income {or part of it) on the derecognition of & non-monetary assel
of net-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the tramsaction is the date
an which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonstary asset or non-monetary lisbility arising from
the advance consideration, If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity
must determine the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration,
Retrospective application of this interpretation is not reguired,

Since the Group’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the Group does not expect
any effect on its consolidated financial statements upon adoption of this imerpretation.

tandards and Inte ation Issued i December 31, 2018

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below, Tnless otherwise indicatad, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact an
its consclidated financial statements. The Group intenda to adopt the following pronouncements when
they become effective.

Effective January 1, 2012

Amendments to FFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

PEFRS 16, Leases

PEFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases £ncl requires lessees to sccount for sll leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar
1o the accounting for finance leases under FAS 17, Leases. The standard includss two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of 'low-value® assets {e.z., personal computersy and shorf-term
leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less), At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (1.e., the lease liability} and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying assct during the lease term {i.e., the right-of-use asset),
1.essess will be required to separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use aszet. '

Leasees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the ocourrence of cerfain gvents
{e.e., a change in the lease term, & change in future leass payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments), The lessec will generally recognize the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17, Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finanee: leases.

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make mote extensive disclosures than under PAS 17,
A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a medified
retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PERS 16.

Amendments to PAS 1% Employer Bendfits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setilement
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Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interesty in Associates and Joint Ventures

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 23, Unceriminiy over Income Tax Treaiments

Anntal Improvements 200 5-2017 Cycle

v Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFR8 11, Joint Arrangements,
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation

v  Amendments {0 PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified s Eaqueity

*  Amendments to PAS 23, Borvowing Casts, Horrowing Costs Efigtble for Capiialization

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activides necessary
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applics those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the begimming of
the annuzl reporting peried in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity
applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted.

Since the Groap’s current practice 18 in line with these amendments, the Group does not expect
any effect on its consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

Effective baginning on or after Jamiary 1, 2020

Amendments to PERS 3, Definifion of & Business

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant’s ability to replace missing ¢lements, and narrow the definition
of outputs. The amendments zlso add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and add illustrative oxamples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business,

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments will apply on foture business combinations of the Group.

Arpandments to PAS 1, Preseruarion of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, dccounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates armd Evrors, Definifion of Material

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and alipn the definitions vused across
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are mtended to improve the understanding of the existing

“requirements rather than (o significantly impact an entity’s matenality judgements.

An enfity applies those amendments prospectively for anmual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier apphication permitted.

Effective Beginning on or After Sanuary 1, 2021 -

PFRS 17, Insirance Coniracis e
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Deferred Effecitvity

s Amendments o PFRS 10, Consolidated Fimancial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
af Assets between an Invesior and its Asseciate or Joint Venture

Current versns Noncurrent Classification
The Group prescnts assets and ligbilities in the cansolidated statements of financial position besed on

current/noncurrent classification. An asget is current when:

» Itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
» [t i3 held primarily for the purpose of trading

s [tis expected to be realized within 12 montha after the eporting period, or

» [t is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanped or used to settle a liability for

at least 12 months after the reporting peried.
All other assgets are classified as noncurren,
A liahility is current when:

It is expected to be settled im nonmal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within 12 months afier the reporting period, or

There is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

tha reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilitics as noncurrent,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ¢lassified as noncurrent agsets and liabilities, respectively.

Financigl instruments

Initial Recagnition and Subsequent Meastirement Prior to ihe Adoption of FFRS 2

Finaneial insiruments are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are inclnded in the initial
measurement of all financial assets and Liabilitics, cxccpt for financial instruments measured at FVPL,

= Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial instrument in the statement of financial
position on the date when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, All
regular way purchasss or sales of financial assets, recognition and disposals or retirements, as
applicable, are recopnized on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to purchase
ur dispose the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace,

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangerhent. Interest, dividends, gaing and losses relating to a financial instrument o .~

a component that is a financial Hability are repotted as expense of income. Distributions to holders

of financial instruments c]asmﬁecl as etp.uty are charged directly to equity, net of any related (neome.«~ .~ -

tax benefits.

T ndioaTE
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Deterninction of Fair Vahze, The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
the repotting date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positiona end ask price for shott posilions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instrumenss not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation methodologies.

Valuation methodologies include net present value techniques, comparison to sitnilar instruments
for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models and other relevant valuation

mxials.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured
gre provided in Nota 14.

= “Day 1" Differenice. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair

value of other ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument or based an a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the
diffarence between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the statement of
comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset, In cascs
where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recogmized in the statement of comprehiznsive income when the inputs become
obsarvable or when the instrument is derecognized. For cach transaction, the Group determines
the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" difference amount.

Financial Assets. The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: Bnancial
assets at FVFL, held-fo-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS investments, and loans and receivables,
as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which these were acquired and
whether they are cquoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-svaluates such
designation at every reporting date. .

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at
FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s fipancial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
advances to related partias, and cash in escrow.,

a. Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets ar liabilities at FVPL include
finaneial assets and liabilities held for trading and ficancial sssets and liabilities designated
upor initial recognition as at FVPL, Financiel assets and liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.

Financial assets or liabilities may be designated by management at initial recognition as at
FVPL if any of the following criteria are met;

- “The dest gnalmn elitninates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
- otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gaing or lusses on ﬂlE[[l on a

Lo " different basis;
""" The assets and liahilitics are part of a group of financial assets, liebilities ‘Srsoth which are

- ‘miiaged and their performance are evaluated on a fair value besis in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or
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- The financial instroment contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
doss not significamtly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no apalysis that it
wonld not be separately recorded.

Pinsncial assets or Habilities at FVYPL are recorded in the statement of financial position ai falr
value, Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized directly in the statement of income.
Interest earnad or incurred is recorded as interest income or expense, respectively, whilae
dividend income is recorded as other income according o the terms of the contract, or when
the right of payinent has been established.

The Group has no financial assets and liabilities at FYPL as at December 31, 2017,

. Loans and Receivabies, Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
detonminable peyments that are not quoted it ant active market. Such assets are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate {EIR) method, less any allowance for
impairment losses. Amortized cost i3 calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR and transaction costs.
(rains and losses are recopnized in the staternent of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, advances to related partics
and cash in escrow are included in this category.

HTM Invesiments. HTM investments are quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to te held for an
undefined period are not included in this category. After initial measurement, HTM
ihvestments are measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially
recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the qumulative amortization using the
effective intersst method of any differance between the initially recognized amount and the
maturity amount, less allowance for bmpairment. This calculation includes all fecs paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an-integral part of the effective interest rate,
trapsaction. costs and all other premiyms and discounts,

Gains and losses arg recognized in the statemenl of comprehensive income when the
investments are dexecognized or impaired, as well as throygh the amortization process.

The Group has no HTM investments as at December 31, 2017,

. AFS Investments. AFS investments are those nonderivative financial assets that are designated
as AFS or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial measnrement,
AFS investments are measured at fair vakue, with unrealized gains ot losses being recomnized
as COCI until the investment is derecognized or determined to be impaired, at which time the
cummlative gain or loss previously reported in OCI is included in the statement of income.
Unquoted equity instniments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at
cost,

The (Group has no AFS investments as at December 31, 2017,
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v Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial
liabilitics at FVPL, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an ¢iTective hedge, as appropriate. The Groop determines the classification of its financisl
liabilitics at initial recognition,

All financial liabilities are recoghized mitially at fair value and in the case of leans and borrowings,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial labilities include loans payable, trade and other payables, and advances from.
related parties.

The measurement of financial lisbilities depends on its classification.

Cther Financial Liabilitizs at Amortized Cost. This includes the Group’s loans payable, trade and
other payables, and advances from related parties.

The Group has no finaneial liabilities at FVFL or derivatives designated as hedging instruments as
of December 31, 2017,

Subsegrent Measuremeni.  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Ameortized cost is calculated by
teking into account any related issug costs, discount or premium,

Gaing andl logses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process,

Classification of Financial Instrumenis between Debi and Eguwity. A financial instrument is classified
as debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to;

deliver cash ar anather financial asset to ancther entity; or,
exchange financial assets or financial liabiliies with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group; or,

* satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed nuober of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to aveid delivering cash or another financial asset to
settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meots the definition of & finamcial liability.

The components of issued financial instroments that sontain both liability and equity elemwnts ares
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting
from the insfrument as & whole the amount separately determined as the fzir value of the liability
component on the dafe of issua.

Impairment of Financial Aszets, The Group assesses at cach financial reponting date whether there is
phjective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets s impaired;

For loans and receivables carmried at amortized eost, the Group [irst assesses whether an objective
evidence of impsirment exiats individuslly for Boancial assets that ate individually:sigmificant, or
collactively for [inancial assets that are not individually signifieant, 1Tit is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exista for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
the asset, together with the other sssets that are not individually significant and, thas, were not
individually assessed for impairment, is included in a grovp of financial assets with simdlar eredit risk
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charactetistics and that proup of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairmnent. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss i3 or continues o be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there i3 an ohjective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor) that an impairment 10ss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has
heen incurred, the amount of loss is measured a3 the difference betwsen the asset’s camying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s otiginal effective interest rato (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Impaired receivables are derecopnized when they are assessed as
uncollectible.

The carrying amount of the assct is reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account and
the amount of loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive incoms. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based an the oripinal effective interest rate of the asset.

If in case the receivable has proven to have no realistic prespect of future recovery, any allowance
provided for such receivable is written off agamst the carrving value of the impairsd recoivable.

I, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impaittnent loss increases or decreases because of
anl event occumring after the impairment was recognizerd, the previously recognized impairment loss is
ittoreased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is Tecognized in the gtatemsent of comprehensive ineome. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment lpss is recognized in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

As at Degember 31, 2017, there was no impairment recognized on its financial asssts.

Derecognition of Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

» the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assurned an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through® artangement; ot

*  the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred,
substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, ot (b} has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from. at asset and haa neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continning involvement in the asset.
Contimuing involvement that takes the form of & puarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lowerof original carrying amount of the asset and the maximuwm smouni of consideration that the Group

could be nequired to repay.
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Classification and Measurement upon Adoption of PFRS 9

Classification of Financial Assets. Financigl assets are classified in their entirety based on the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asscts and the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets. The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
measurement categorics:

»  Finanocial assets measured at emartized cost .

*  Financial assets measured at FVPL

* Financial assets measured a1t FVOCI, where cumulative gains or losses previounaly recognized
are reclassified to profit or loss

*  Financial assets measored at FYOCI, where cumulative gains or losses previously recognized
are not reclassified to profit or loss

Contraciual Cash Flows Characteristics. If the financial asset is held within 2 business model
whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ar within a busiress model whose
objective is achicved by both eollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial nssets, the
Group assesses whether the cash flows from the financial asset represent solely payments of
principal and imterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

In making this assessment, the Group determines whether the contracival cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement, i.¢., interest includes consideration only for the time value of
money, credit risk and other basic lending risks and costs assoclated with holding the financial asset
for a particular period of time, In addition, interest can include a profit margin that is consistent
with a basic lending atrangement. The assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is
made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any other conteactual terms that
imiroduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that is unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not
give rise to contractiial cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amouti outstanding.

Business Model. The Group’s business model is determined at & level that reflects how groups of
financial assets arc managed together to achieve a parficular business objective. The Gronp’s
business model does not depend on management’s intentions for an individual instrument.

The Group's business model refers to how it manages ity financial asgets in order to generate cash
flows. The Group’s business model defermines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling finencial assets or both. Relevant factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a group of financial assets inchide how the performance of
the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evalualed and
reported to the Group's key management personnel, the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held within that business model} and how thesa risks are
managed and how managess of the buginess are compensated.

Firanciod Assets at Amortized Cost. A financial asset is measured at amoertized eogt if (8) it ia held
within a business model for which the objective (s to hold financial assets In order to collect
contractual cash flows and (b) the coniraciual terms of the fimancisl asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plos directly atiributable
transaction costs and subsequently meagured at amortized cost using the EIR method, less any
impairment ih value, Ameortized cost is-ealenlatad by taking into account any discount or premiunm
on goquisition and fees and costs that aré’an integral part of the BIR: The amortization is included
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in “Interest income™ In the consolidated statement of conmprehensive income and is calculated by
applying the EIR io the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, except for (a) purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets and (b) financial assets that have subsequently hecome
credit-impaired, where, in both cases, the EIR is applied to the amortized cost of the financial asset.
Losses arising from impaitment ate tecognized in “Provision for eredit and impairment loases™ in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group bas financial assets at amortized cost consisting of cash and
vash equivalents, trade and other receivables, advances 1o related parties, restricled fund, cash in

cscrow and security doposits.

Financial Assets at FYOCE A financial asset is measured at FYOCT if (a) it is held within a
tusiness model for which the objective is achieved by beth collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and {b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and {nterest on the principal amount cutstanding, These financial
assets are initially recogrized at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at fair value, Gains aml losscs arising from changes in fair value are
meluded in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses
or reversals, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recopnized in profit and
loss until the financial assct is dorccognized. Upon derecognition, the cunmulative gain or loss
previously recogmized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
This reflects the gain or losa that would have been recognized in profit or loss upon derecognition
if the financial agset had been measured at amortized cost. Impairment is measured based on the
expected credit loss (ECLY moxlet,

The Group may also make an irrevocable election to measure at FVOCT on initial recognition
investments in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination in accordance with PFRS 3. Amounts recogrized in QCl are
not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Group may transfer the cunmlative
gain or loss within equity, Dividends on such investments are recognized in profit or loss, unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the eost of the investment.

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when:
» the Group's right to receive payment of the dividenl is established;
» it is probable that the sconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group;

and,
* the amount of the dividend ¢an be measured reliably.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group does not have any financial assets under this category,

Financial Assets qt FVPL, Financial assets at FVPL are measvred al FVPL unless these are
measured at amortized cost or at FYOCT, Included in this elassification are equity investments held
for trading and debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Financial assets held at FVPL are initially recognized at fair value, with
trensaction costs recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recogmized in the sfatement of
comprehensive income.
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Additionally, even if the asast meets the amortized coat or the FVOCT criteria, the Group may
choose at initial recopnition to designate the financial asset at FWFL if dving so climinates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (an accounting mismaich) that
would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets on a different basis,

Trading gains or losses are caloulated based on the resubts arising from trading activities of the
Group, including all gains and losses from changes in fair value for fnancial assets and financial
liahilities at FVPL, and the gains or losses from disposal of financial investments,

Ag at December 31, 2018, the Group does not have any financial assets wnder this catogory.

= Classification of Financial Liahilities. Financial liabilibes are measured at amortized cost, except
for the following:

»  fnancial liabilities measured at fair value theough profit or loss;

= finaneial liabilities that arise when a transfor of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the Group retains continuing involvernent;

» financial guarantee eortracts;

= commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and,

= contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in accordance with PFRS 3.

As gt December 31, 2018, the Group™s financial liabilities at amortized costs consist of loans payable,
accounis pavable and other lishilities, advanoes from related parties and retention payables,

A financial liability may be designated at FVPL (£ it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (an accounting mismatch) or:

if a host contract contains one or more embedded dervatives; or,

» if a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and liabilitios is managed and its performance
evaluated on a falr value basis in accordance with & doommented risk management or investrient
strategy.

Where a financizl liability is designated at FVPL, the movement in faic value attributable to changes in
the Group’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above
observable market interest rates and is presenfed separately in other comprehensive income.

A3 at December 31, 2018, the Group does not have any financial assets under this category.

Reclassifications of Financial Instrumenis. The Group reclassifics its financial assets when, and only
when, there is a change in the business model for managing the financial assets. Reclassifications shall
be applied prospectively by the Group and any previously recognized gains, losses or interest shall not
bo rostated. The Group doss not reclassify its financial liabilities.

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets when:

» A financial asset that was previously a designated and effective hedging instrument in a cash flow
hedge or net investment hedge no longer qualifics as such;

v A financial asset becomes a designated and effeciive hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge or

net investinent hedge; and,
o Therels a change in measm‘emcnt on crcd:lt €XpOSULES measured at fair valne through profit or loss,
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Derecognition of Financial Instriments

Financial dssets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a past of a financial asset ot part of a

g:uup pf financial assets) is derecognized when, and only when:
the contractnal rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expive, or,

»  the Group {ransfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset ina
transaction in which it either (a) tremsfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial assef, or (b) it neither transfers nor retaing substantially sl the risks and
rewards of ownership of the (inancial asset and the Group has not retained control,

When the Group refains the contraciual rights th receive the cash flows of s financial asset but
assumes 2 contractual obligation to pay those cash flows 1o one or more entities, the Group treats
the transaction as a transfer of a financial asset if the Group:
" has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects aquivalent
amounts from the original asset;
= ig prohibited by the terms of the transfer contract from selling or pledging the original asset
other than as security to the eventual recipients for the obligation ta pay them cash flows; snd,
=  hasan obligation to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay,

Where the Group has tranaferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into &
‘pags-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the rigks and
rewards of the asset nor has transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involverrent in the assef. Coutimuing nvelvement that takes the form of 2
guarantee over the tranaferred asset is measured at the lower of originsl carrying amount of the assat
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could ba required to repay.

Modificatier of Contractunl Cash Flows. When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are
renegotiated or otherwise modified and the remegotiation or medification does not result in the
derecognition of that financial asset, the Group recalculates the grosa carrying amount of the
fingneial asset as the present value of the renegoiiated or modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the original EIR. {or cradit-adjuatad EIR for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial aasets) and recopnizes & modification gain or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income.

When the modification of a financial asset results in the derecognition of the existing financial asset
and the subsequent recognition of the modified financial assct, the modified asset 15 considered a
‘new’ financial asset. Accordingly, the date of the modification shall be treated as the date of initial
recognition of thet financial asset when applying the impairment requirements to the modified
financial asset.

Financial Liabifities. A financial lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
has expired, or ia discharged or has cancelled. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchanpe or modification is treated as a derecogmition of the
original | mb:ht_v and the recognition of a new liahility, and the difference in the I‘ﬂspﬂctlve carrymg
arneunts is recopnized in the statement of Income,

e

O_;j‘.'smmg F,:mmmf Tnstruments. Finenclal instruments are offset and the net amount repqﬂed in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a curremly enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounta-and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability sinmhaneously.
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This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are
presented at gross amounts in the balance sheet.

Impairment of Financiol Asseis

Prior to the sdoption of PFRS 9, the Group asseased ai each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a finaneial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of ficancial asscis is deemed to be impaired if, 2nd only if, there is objective evidence of impainment
as a result of one or more events that bas ocourred afier the initial recognition of the assst (an mouwrred
“loss event™} and that loss event has sn impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial agset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimatad.

BEvidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptey or other financial recrganization and whers observable data indicate that
there i4 a measureble decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changea in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults,

w  Financial Asseis Carried af Amortized Cost. For financial assets camried at amortized eost,
the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for fimancial assets that are not individually
significant, If the Group determines thet no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually agsessed financial aaget, whether significant or net, it inchudes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk charactenistics and collectively asscsses them for
impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or contimues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impaitment loas has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets” carrying amount and the presant value of estimated.
future cash flows {excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present valna of the estimated fiture cash flows is discounted at the finaricial asset’s original EIR.
If & loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current EIR.

The carrying amount of the 2sset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recopnized in the statemnent of income.  Interest income continues to be acctued on
the reduced carrying amount and is acerued wsing the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded a3
patt of imterest incame in the statement of income. Loans, together with the associated allowance,
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized or has been transferred o the Group. 1, in 2 subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event acewring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account,

. ~izIfa future write-oLf is later recovered, the racovery is creditad to interest expense in the statement
of pormprehensive income,

"+ Upon: adoption of PFRS 9, the standard introduces the single, forward-looking “expected loss™
" dmpairment model, replacing the “incurred loss” imﬁ;itmcnt model vmder PAS 38,
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The Group recognizes ECL for the following financial assets that are not measured at FVPL:
v debt instruments that are measured at amortized cost and FVOCT;

®  loan commitments; and,

» financial guarantee contracts,

No ECL is recognized on equnty investiments,

ECLs are measured in a way that reflects the fellowing:

» gn unbissed and probebility-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes,

=  the time value of money; and,
regsonable and supporteble information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, cumwent conditions and forscasts of future economic conditions.

Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the chanpe in credit quality since
initial racognition:

v Stage 1: 12-month ECIL. For credit exposures where there have not been significant increases in
¢redit risk since initial recognition and that are nof eredit-impaired upon origiration, the portion of
lifetime ECLs that represent the ECLa that result from default events that are possible within, the
12-months after the reporting date are recognized.

v Siage2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired. For credit axposures where there have been significant
increasas in credit risk since initial recognition on an individual or collective basig but are not
eredit-impaired, lifetime ECLs representing the ECLs that regult from all passible defanlt events
over the expected life of the financial asset are recognized,

v Stgpe 3. Lifetime ECL - credif-impaired. Financial assets are credit-impaired when one or mose
events that have a detrimental impact on the estitmated fufure cash flows of those financial assets
have occurred. For these credit exposures, lifetime ECLs are recognized and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset.

Loss allowances are recognized based on 12-month BCL for debt investiment securitics that are agsessed

to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if:

= the financial ingtrument has a low risk of default;

= the borrower has a strong capacity o meet its contraciual cash flow obligations in the near term;
0L,

" adverse changes in econmomic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the boreower to fulfil ita contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers & debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
wquivalent to the globally vndersiood definition of ‘Investment grade®, or when the exposure is less
than 30 days past due.

Determination of ihe stage for impatrment. Al sach reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant inerease in eredit risk for financial assets sinec nitial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurting over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition., The Group considers reasonable and supporiable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose This inchides quantitative and quahtatwe mfmmahon
and forward-looking analysis.
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An exposure will nrigrate through the ECL siages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent
period, assel quality improves and also reverses any praviously assessed significant increase in erodit
risk since origination, then the loss allowance measurement reverts from Jifetime ECL fo 12-month
ECL.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cach in banks. Cash in banks earn interest af the regpective banl
deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term placements and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or lzss and that are
subject to 2o insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash and cash equivalents exclude any restricted cash (presented under “Restrictad fimd™) that is not
available for use by the Group and thersfore is not considered highly liquid.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist only of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizabie value, Cost i3 deteemined primarily on the
basis of the moving average method. Net realizable vahie is the selling price in the ordinary course of
buginess, less the costs of completion, marketing and other costs necessary to make the sale.

In determining net realizable value, the Group considers any necessary adjustment for obsolescence.

Other Current Assets

Advances to suppliers, prepayments and deposits are amounts paid in advance for poods and services
that are yai to be delivered and from which finure economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group
within, its aormal operating cycle or within 12 months from the reporting date,

Input value-added tax (¥ AT) represents VAT imposed om the Group by its suppliers for the acquisition
of goods and services. Output VAT represents indirect tax on consumption levied on the sale of goods
and services, which i3 passed on by the Group to its customers. Where VAT incurred on a purchase of
asset ot services is not recovetable from the taxation anthority, such VAT is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset of patt of the expense item, as applicable.

Toput VAT on its ¢onstruction ¢osis and other purchase of asset or services expected to be recoversd
for more than a year upon the start of its commercial operations is recorded under Noncurrent assers
portion in the consclidated statements of financial position,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except for land, is stated at cost less acoumulated depreciation, amortization
and any acounmlated impairment,

Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of propetty and equipment comprises its piirchase price, including import duties, taxes
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the ageets to their worldng condition and location for
their imended use. Cost includes interest related to the ﬁnanmng of property, plant and equipment
during the construction period. Expenditurés incurred after the fixed assets have been put into
opetation, such as repaits and maintenance and overhianl coits, zré normally charped against income in
the period in which the costs are incurred. In situations where it.can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditures have resalted in an increase in the futurc coonomic benefits expected to be obtained from
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the vze of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of perfnnnance,
the expendiiures sre capitalized as an additional cost of property and squipment.

Depreciation and amortization, recognition of which commences when the asset becomes available for
it3 intended wse, are computed on & siraight-line bazis over the following cstimated usefial lives:

Land Improvements and Infrasttuctures 5-14 years
Buildings 25 years
Office Purniture, Pixtures and Equipment 2-10 veats
Tremsportation Equipment 5-7 yenrs
Leasehold Improvements and Others Jyears

The estimated useful lives and deprecaation and armoriization method are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods, estinwated residual valves and method of depreciation is congistent with the
expected pattern of economic benafits from the items of property and equipment,

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depresiation,
amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gein or loss
ia credited to or charged against current operations.

Construction-in-progress (CIF) represenis properties under construction and is stated at cost. This
includes cost of consiruction and other direct coats.  The account is not depreciated until such time that
the assets are completed and available for use.

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers under Nonowrent Assets represent initial payments made to suppliers as
mobilization funds for use in the construction of the Giroup’s buildings and building impravements and
are initially recognized at cost. These are subsequently reduced proportionately upon receipt of
proereze billinge.

Fropatrment of Nonfinancial Assels
The carrying walues of property and equipment and other non-financial assets are reviewed for

impaitment when eveots or changes 1o circumstances indicate that the carrying value may pot be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and whees the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generatingunits are written down to their recoverable amounts,
The recoverable amount of the assets is the graater of fair value less cost ta sell and value-in-use.

The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-length
transaction while value-in-use [a the present value of the estimated future cash flows axpected to arise
from contimying use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of itg useful life. For an asaet that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amoutt is determined for the cash-
gencrating unit to which the azsef belongs. Any impairment losses are recognizexd in profit or loss.

An assessment 18 made at each reporting date &s to whether there is any indication that previously
recognizad impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such mdication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used fo détermine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carying amount of the asset is increased to its
recovetable amount, That increased amdunt-¢annot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in pno:r years.
Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried af revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Afigr such a reversal, fhe depreciation charge is
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adjusted in future periods o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, ona
systematic basis over ils remaining useful life.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured st par value for all shares issued. When the sheres are sold at
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is cradited to edditional paid-in capital.
When shares are 1szued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds are meagured by the fair valus
of the consideration received. Any receivable is treated as deduction in the subscribed capital stock,

Additional paid-in capital. Additional paid-in capifal pertains to proceeds andfor fair value of
considerations received in excess of par value, if any, net of the iransaction costs incurred a9 stock
1S5UANCE 0OStS.

Deficir. Deficit represents accumulated losses, net of earnings. The balance is also increase for
incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares incurred in excess of additional

paid-in capital.

Equiry reserve, BQuity reserve accoumt pertains to the equity adjustments resulting from the effect of
the revarge aequisition,

Revenue Recognition
Upon adoption of PFRS 15, revenne from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the

200ds or services dre wansferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
lhe Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goeds or services, excleding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, The Group assesses its revenue arrangements agaiost specific criteria to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

Revemue i5 recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incirred or to be neurred can be measured
telizbly. Specifically, interest income is recognized as the interest acetnes taking into account the
sffective yield on the asset.

The Group recognizes as revemnme, the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that
performance obligation. Revenue i3 recorded net of trade discounts, estimates of other variable
consideration and amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

Consideration payable to a customer i3 recognized as & reduction of the trangaction price and, therefore,
of revenue unless the payment to the customer i3 in exchange for & distinet good or secvice that the
enstomer transfers to the Group. If consideration payable to the customer is a payment for s disiinet
good or service from the customer, then the Group records such purchese of the good or service in the
same way that it accounts for other purchases from suppliers,

Cost and Expenses
Costs and expenses are recognized when incwrred. These are measured at the fair value of the

consideration paid or payable.

-ferm I Benefits
Short-term employee benefits include items such a3 salaries and wages, social security contributions
and nontronetaty benefits, that are expected to be settlad wholly within twelve months after the end
of the reporiing period in which the employees rendered the related services, Short-term employee
bensfits are racognized as expente as incurred. When an emplovee has rendered service to the Group
during the reporting period, the Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-tertn employee
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benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service ag a liability {accrued expense), after
deducting any amount already paid.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable fo the acquisition or construction of a

qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, Capitalization of bortowing
costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expendimres and
borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds iis recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recorded.

Interest income earned on the temporacy investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
an qualifying assets is daducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization,

Leages

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or confains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement eonveys a right to use the assat. A reassessment is mada
after the inception of the lease, only if any of the following applies: (a) there is 2 change in contractual
terros, other tham a renewal or extension of the arrangement; (b) 8 renewal option ia exercised or
extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease termy;
{c) there is & change in the determination of whether bulfillment iz dependent on a specified asset; or

(d) there is substantial change to the asaet.

‘Where the reassessment is made, lease accountiing shall commence cor cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave tise to the reassessment for scenarios {a), (c), or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension peried for scenatio (b).

Lenases where the lesgsor retaing substantially all the riske and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease expense 18 recognized in proiit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the lease agreements. Operaling lease costs incurred on land, direcily
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by meanagement, 1s capitalized as part of CIP.

Income Taxes
Crrrernt Ineome Tax, Current income tax assels and income tax Habilities are measured at the amount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the fax autherities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compurte
the amount are thoge that are enacted or aubatantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Income Tox, Deferred income tax is provided Bsing the balance sheet liability method on all
temporary differences at the end of reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred incomee tax liabilities are recognized
far all 1axable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that 1t is probable that
fisture taxable income will be avaitable against which the deductible tenoporary differences and NOLCO
can be utllized.

The camrying amount ef deferred mmma‘tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
. the extent that it ie no tonger probable thatsuffclent taxable profit will be availabla to sllow all or part
. of the defesred income tax assets to be utilizad. . Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed al the

-end of each repurting period and are récogriized 1o the extent that it has become probable thal fture

taxable incomne will allow the defereed tax asgels (o be recovered.
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Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expecied to apply to the period when the assct is realized or the liability is settled], based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in profit or
loss.

Daferred income tax assets and deferred tax liabnlities are offset, if a legally enforceable right ¢xists to
offset cwrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same tax authernty.

Foreien Currency Transactions and Translations

Transactions denominated in foreign courrency atre recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Outstanding monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rate at balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are eredited
to or charged against current operations.

Related Party Transactions amd Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the Group and its
related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the othet party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. These parties
include: (a) inlividuals ewning, directly or indirectly throuph one or more intermediaries, control or
are contralled by, or under common control with the Group; (b) associates; (¢) individuals owning,
direcily or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influsmce
over the Group and close metnbers of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded
retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form

Eamings Par Share (EPS)

EPS is determined by dividing net profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares
outatanding during the year including fully paid but unissued shares as of the end of the year, adjusted
for any subsequent stock dividends declared. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net
income for the year by the weighted average number of common shares issucd and outstanding dwring
the year after giving effect to asswmed conversion of potential common shares, The Group has no
existing dilutive shares.

Sezment prh

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separarely according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with rapmsenting a strategic business unit that offers different products.
Financial mfmnatmn on business sepments is presented in Note 25 to the conmhdated ﬁnancml .
staterments. 7 ool MUY R

Prcrvismns

Provisions are recognizsd: “whEn. (1) the Group has a present obligation (legal or consfructive) as &
rosult of past cvents; £2) #tds Piobable that an cutflow of resources embodying economiabenefits will
be: required 1o scttla“thb-‘ﬂbli_g‘aﬁqn;faﬁd (3) a relinble estimate can be made of the-amo(nt of the
obligation. If the -effect of the time value of money is matetial, provisions are--determined -by
disconnticp the effiectivie firture cash>flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market-assesswient of
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the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 'Where discounting
i nsed, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Contingengies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized 1n the consolidated financial statements, They are disclosed
in the notes to the vonsolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying cconomic benefits is remote, Confingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefit is probable. If it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and the related income is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Post yesr-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s finaocial position at the
reporting period (adjusting events), are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-
end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the noles to the consolidated financial

statements when matarial,

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements in accordance with PERS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reportex in the consolidated
financizl statements, The judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial
statements are based upon menagement’s evabuation of relevant facts and circumsiances that are
believed to be reasonable as of the date of comparable consolidated financial statements, While the
Group believes that the assurmmtions are reasonable and appropnate, differences in actual experience er
changes in the assumptions may materially affect the astimated amournes, The effects of any change in
estimates are reflected in the consclidated financial statements as they become reasonably
determinahle.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the
amoynts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Determipation of funciional currancy

The functional curency of the Group is the currency of the primary economie environment in which
it aperates. It is the awrrency that mainly 1nﬂumc&s the rovenue and cost of products, Based on the
economie substance of the reievant undetlying circumstances, the functional currency of the Group is
the Peso.

dentifving performance obi’igm‘fom I food and beverages and rooms revenues, a bundled sole of
services. The Group provides hotel services that are either sold separately or bundled together with the
ather s¢rvices, -

For its hotel service, the Group determined that each of the services is capable of being distinct, The

fact that the Group regularly sells each service on a stand-alone basis indicates that the customer can
_ ‘benefit from both products on their own. The services are not highly iftendependent or highly .

- Hrtmelﬂtﬂd, because the Group would be able to transfer each service oven if the customer dechined the -

"7 othes, Consequently, the Group allocates the transaction price using the residual appeoach. Under this

appi'oauh the Group determines the stand alone se]lmg price by relevance to the iotal transaction prm:

B and dﬂ&uctlng the sum nf the swndaalnna selling price of food and beverages promised in the comiraet..
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For its restaurant services, the Group reconds its service charge to the extent that if is viewed as an
additional consideration for the services provided, and benefits directly inure to the restaurants thus,
excluding the amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Determination of operating lease - Group ay Lessee
The Group has operating lease agreements on land and various equipment. The Group has determined
that the risks and rewards of ownership for the underlying properties have beenretained by the lessors.

Accordingly, the leases ave accounted for as operating leases (see Note 7).

Capliaiization of operating lense payments

The Group determines whether the amount of operating lease costs qualify for capitalization as patt of
construction costs, ot should be expensed outright, Manageinent assessed that the rent on land is a
direcily atiribuigble cost to bringing an ssset to the location and condition necesasry for it to be capable
of opersting in the manner intended bry management.

Lease paymentz capitalized as part eof construction in progress amounted to B128.4 million and
2631 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Notes 7 and 9).

Capitalization of Borrowing Cost: The Group determines whether the amount of horrowing costs
qualify for capitalization as part of the cost of the qualifying asset, or should be expensed outright. The
accounting treatment for the finance costs is determined by assessing whether the asset is a qualifying
asset taking into consideration the period of time to bring the asset ready for its intended use, Failure
to make the right judgment will resulf in rmisstatement of assets and net profit.

Capitalized bomowing costs squivalent to the effective interests incurred on the loans amounted to
B80.8 million and #10.7 millien for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively
{see Note 9)

Transfer of risks and revards over a property under condifional purchase

In 2018 and 2017, the Group enterad into contracts to sell, to acquire various parcals of land. The lerms
include the transfer of title only upon full payment of the agreed price az stated in the contract for DHPC
and upon payiment of 95% of the total purchase price as stated o the contract for DPRC. The contracis
are subject to cancellation by the seller upon breach of the contract or default by the Group and the
saller may forfert the improvernents therein. As at Decetnber 31, 2018 and 2017 the Group has paid
approximately 89% and 42% of the agresd price, respectively on the contract to sell entered by DHPC
and 40%% on the contract to sell of DPRC. Hence, management believes that as of the same date, the
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties have been retained by the selles, Aceordingly,
installment payments totaling B111.4 million and P470.7 million as of the same dato were presented as
“Deposit for fuhwe property acquisition™ in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 10),

Estim ions

The key assumptions concerning the fufure and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
financial reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of asscts and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimation of probabie losses on inpwe VAT, The Group estimates the level of provision for probable
losses on input VAT based on the probability that the input VAT may be used in the fimre, taking into
consideration the prescription period within which the Group can apply for a tax refund or-tax credit.
The carrying value of the input VAT (included under “Other current assets™) amounting to Fl 3 rmlhqn
petiaining to thﬂ Parent Company as at Decentber 31, 20018 is ass:.sse.d h}r managﬁm .| ba '
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recoversble as the Parent Comnpany is expected to have an active participation in its subsidiaries®
management.

Estimuation of useful lives of praperty and equipment!

The vgefiz] lives of the property and equipment are estimated based on the period over which the assets
are expected to be available for use and for the collective assessment of indusiry practice and
experience with similar assets, The estimated wweful lives of property and equiprment are reviswed at
each financial year-end, and updated if expectations differ materially from previous sstimates due to
physical wesr and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and other limits on the use of the property

and equipment.

The carrying value of the property and equipment as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 smounted to
£3,932.2 million and P473.9 million, respectively.

Determination of Fair Value of Financtal Instruments. Where the fair value of financial asscts and
liahilities recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position cannot be derived from active
matlets, they ate determined using vabuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a depree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, eredit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of finaneial instruments.

The fait value of financial assers and fnancial liabilities are disclosed in Note 18,

Determining Realizable Amoun! of Deferred Taxes

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its deferred income fax assets at the end of each balance
sheet and rocognized the deferred income tax assets 1o the extent that it 15 no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilized. Mo deferred tax asset was recognized as of Decernber 31, 2018 and 2017 as manageiment has
nssessed that the related tax benefits may niot be realized prior to its availment period (see Note 16).

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2018 2017
Cash on band and in banks Po86,346,385 #116,560,731
Short-term placements - 49,025,987

686,846,385  P165,586,738

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term placements are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediata cash requirements of the Group,
and carn interest of 1.25% in 2418 and 2017,

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to B0.7 million and #3.1 millien for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

. ... The' Group hes cash i escrow amounting to B1,3158 million and. PZ51.9 million as ar
sove - Degenaber 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is presenied under the Nonctorert Assets section of
" the ponsolidated statements of financial position. Inlerest ineome erred on eash ip escrow amounted
L e R19.91 million and £3.94 million for the years endad: Dacember 31 2018 and 201 7;.tespectively.
L ,'I,Accmed Jinterest as gt December 31, 2018 and 2017 amountﬁcl to -Pl & h‘quiun and Pﬁ 1. million,
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respectively, and is presented under the “Trade and other receivables™ sceount in the consclidated
staternents of financial pogilion (see Nete §). Tha Group’s escrow account represents the aggregate
balance of short-term placements maintained in local banks primarily to mect the requirements of the
License Agreement with PAGCOR in relation to L33 and CGLC?s investment commmitments (see Wote
20).

6. Trade and (ther Receivables

20138 2017
Trade B2.700.,432 B
Receivable from sale of & subsidiary
{sae Notes 1 and 19) 106,000,000 -
Accrued inderest receivables (see Note 5) 1,078,944 5,124,797
Others 207,508

P13,986,884 B5,124.797

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are normally on & 30 to 120 days’ tenm. Receivable from
sale of 2 subsidiary is nonintcrest-bearing and collectible upon demand, Infersst receivables are
normally collectible within 120 days.

Other receivables are noninterest-bearing and include advences subject to liquidation and normally en
a 30 10 120 days’ term,

No provision for doubtful accounts was provided for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

7. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exisis when one party has the ability to eonirod, directly or indirectly, through
one or mors intermediaries, or exercise significant influence aver the othar party in making financial
and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or among entities which are under
comunen eentrol with the reporting entity and its ey management personnel, directors or stockholders.
In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationahip and not merely the legal form.

Chtstanding balances at year-end are unsscured and non-interest bearing and settlement oceuss in cash
throughout the finrocial year. There have besn no guarentees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. The impairment on advances to related parties, is based on the 12-menth BCL.,
However, being due and demandable, the intercompany receivables, will attract a negligible ECL, since
ECLz are only measured ovar the pericd in which the entity is exposed to credit risk. No other factors
have been noted by the Group that would indicate that the advances are incapable of being repaid on
demand, such that the borrower would default if the loan were called wherein the probability of default
would be need to be set to 100%. For the years ended Deceniber 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has not
recorded any impairment of receivables on amounts owed by the related parties.

The Group, in the normal course of business, has trans:a_(':ti_cins with the fullﬁwing companies which have
“common members of BOD and Eti:rl:'r_k_hﬂld.crs as the Grpupy .

~ Relativaship MName . -
. Ultimaie Parent Company " Uderna Corporation
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Relationship Name

(Forward)

Affiliates under Common Control  Bunbkers Mamila Ing,
CULE Cultral Heritage Foundation, Inic.
Chelsea Logistics Holdings Comp,
Chelsea Shipping Corp.
Dennison Holdings Com.
Enderun Hospitality Matagemant aod Consultancy Services (Enderum)
1.3 Concrate Specialist
Lapulapu Coltural Herimge Foundation, Tne,
LapuLapu Land Corp. (LLC)
Phoepix Petrolevm Philippines, Inc,
Udenna Development Corporation
Udenna Infrastructure Corp.
Udenna Management & Resources Cotp,
Udenna Water & Integrated Services, Inc.
UDEVCO LLC
Vahie Leases Inc.

The consolidated statements of financial position inchide the following amounts with respect to the
balances with related parties for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Arnonmt!
Volumeof Cuistandlong Balance
Yeour Transaction Recervable - Payable Texms Conditiens
Ulinsite Faront Company
Cash advences toa relsted pany 2018 RIOS 100,000 F41,332,707 P~ Nonimeresi-bearing; not  Unscoured
2047 - - -~ impaired; due and
demandakle
("ash advancss from a related 608 14478810 — 942,195,175 Nonintescsi-beaving; due  Unsecurad
paty for working cupitgd and 2017 139,367,293 - 120367205 and demmxdable
praject completion
Afflllaces vnder Comman Cemtral
Cash advenoas to related parties 2018 178,425,279 3,735,036 - Momimost-hearng oot Unsecneed
2017 1,533,184,517 351214517 - impaited: dee and
dermnandabla
Cash advances o related 2018 265,107,825 —~  FIS03T500 Nonintceest-besring: doe  Ulnsecined
parites M7 - - —  and demandsble
Cash advances [fom related 2018 281,100,000 - 191,941,990 Totcrott-bearity; dyeand  Unsectred
Daries (e 27 - damyndable
Lease (ses Notes 8 PlE ] 118,383,568 40,298,414 — Manintsest-bewring, due  Unscomed
and ¥ (b amz7 63,1 16280 - - and demandable

Mamagemaut sud coomultancy 213 10, 262.6M 3,474,530 Momingsrest-bearing; due  Unsecored

pervioes (3ec Wates 12 2017 - - 2 demandable
and 15] (g}*2®
Die from & related paity forsle 2018 10,000,400 10,000,000 — Noninteeest-bearing: doe  Unazoured
of & subsdiary (see Notes 1 2007 - - and demandable
and L9
Stockhkelder
Chash advacees toa plockhnlder 2018 - - . — Houintarest-bearing; not  Unecomrnd
2017 189,79% 149,785 © — . impaited; dnaand
. demandable
Cash advanses from a 1] 135,000,000 - 135,000,000 Nonintercat-bearing; due  Unseoured
stockholder L7 — — ) = and demandshls

“Ourstimtding bakmes ir Moluded tn Trade nd odher recelvwabler ar or Deoember 31, 2008,
O vestanding Balastes i included in Prepayments ang odher aeren arsels oz at December 31, 2018,
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¥4 0urmiarding balonse iz irofuded in Thade and oher papables as ol December 31, 218,
vk iending interest i freluded i Thade and opher poyvalles as of December 31, 2075

fa) [nferest-bearing cash advances from related parties
For year ended December 31, 2018, various related parties granted advances to the Group
amounting to B281.1 million to bridge operating requirements of the Group. The advances are
payable on demand at 6.5% to 76 interest per annum. Principal of 2104.0 million was paid as at
December 31, 2018.

Inferest expense incurred on these cash advances For the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted
to Bt 7.4 million, Qut of the 17,5 million, BI14.8 million i3 still unpaid and included in Interest
Fayables under “Trade and other paysbles” account in the consolidated statetnents of financial
position as at Diecember 31, 2018 (see Note 12).

th} Lease
On July 14, 2017, L3 emtered into a lease agresmsmt with LLC, a related party under common
ownership, for parcels of land with 116,382 sgquare meters in Punia Engano, Lapulapu City, Cebu
(Om August 30, 2018, L3 entered into another lease agreement with LLC covering additional parcels
of 1and in the property with 5,975 square meters.

The lease agreements are for a pericd of 23 years commencing upon the signing of the agreemenits
and will be renewed for an additional 25 years at the option of L3. L3 shall pay s monthly aggregate
of 210.5 miflion for the original coniract and 80,3 million for the additional lease. L3 and LLC
ghall agree on an escelated mate of the consideration three years from the sigming of the lense
agreement and for every three-year interval thereafter. The most recent rantal rate will be used a2
basis of the consideration in the event the parties fail to agree on an escalafed rate at the end of sach
three-yaar interval.

The estimated armual minimum rentals under this lease agreement as at December 31, 2018 are
shown below:

Feriod Arnouit
Within one vear R132.685.560
More than one vear but not more than five vears 530,742,240
More than five years 2.462,211,36{

P3,125 639,160

Lease payments capitalized ag part of CIP amountad to P128 4 million and Ba3.1 million for the
vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively {see Note 9). As at December 31, 2018,
the Group has prepaid rentel payments to LLC atmounting to P41.6 million presented as patt of
“Prepayments and other current assets”™ acecunt 1n the consolidated statements of [inancial position

(see Note 8).

(c) Managemeni fees
DHPC enterad into a Management Services Agreement in November 2017 for certain mahagement
and operational services with Enderun.  Enderun manages the hotel operations starting January
2018 according 1o the terms and canditions set forth in the agreement as Enderun has substantial
experience and knowledge of the operation of atandard full service hotels throughout the
Philippines. Management fees consist of basic management fee, incentive fee, marketing fee and
corporate shared service foes (see Note 15}~

T LA M
AT T T LD O
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fd) Guaramtoes
L3"s bank loans with China Banking Corparation (CBC) ate secured by a corporats guaranty by
Udenna and by certain stockholders through a Contimuing Surety Agreement with the banlc
(see Note 11).

The performance of the obligations of DHP( {0 United Cocomut Planters Bank ((FCPB) at any time
under the loan agreement and the payment of the availments therein shall be the joint and several
lighility of the PH Travel emd DHPC (see Note 11), _

(e} Compensation and Qther Penefiis of Key Management Persannel
The compensation of key management personnel for the yeats ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
pertaining to short-term employee benefity amounted to B35.5 million and B7,1 million,
Tespectively.

There are 1o other sbort-term and long-term benefits given to key management personnel,

8. Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2013 20017
Prepaid rent (ses Note 7) 41,643,503 -
Short-term security deposits 9529758 220,000
Advances to suppliers 4,403,210 650,000
Input VAT 3,401,568 . -
Prepaid insurance 1,604,853 43,391
Prepaid expenses 1,307 457 805,136
Creditable withholding taxes 145,628 -
Advances to employees 66,470 1,100,000
Others 460374 258,954

F62,563,121 $3,077,481

Prepaid rent, prepaid insurance and prepeid expenses are amortized on a periodic basis over a period
not exceeding 1 year.

Short-term security deposits and rental deposits represent unsecured and noninterest-bearing deposiis
for nas of equipment and for offico rontals which are renewable annually.

Advances to suppliers represents downpayments made for contrects entered to suppliers which will be
applied to future billings upon completion of the contract within a year.

Advances o emplovees and other current assets represent unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash
advances for business-related expenditures and are subject to Liquidation.



TO0IGELEE PG D6 G TENTETd AT SLE P05 — — —= BNE A, 0y B

LIS 08 - CTREl Ty LTEEE - - - (£1 AI0R] 395) WOPEIRRHIX] PARTMERSSY
PISLIFPLPE  VR6O6L 6% 518'¢o14 052196 T — - - KD
1EaL {0z pue ] LI T anmimbg 1wemdmby P SOOI PUB ]
“L STI0N] 205) suramaanaduy uouEUOdsIRL], TN SEnw SIeEMrAord ) poE]
sfomd-ug Flopsea | “EHIIm.Y FHE0
~TOTLHSHT )
L102
T BT TEEEE  EOTISh 6l TR FLELOE T 0TI EGTELTE A5 LPF L9 IESIT Ld s1E' AT LT T anfE A Jeog 15
STLETT = GPEFFE 9ECETS TETRRT L LSTT68 1 SEOTRL = 3OME[E() Burpug
B E1T) - = (GEFHTY) - - - - (67 TN 755}
ATETEQNE £ fO UROSPTI0SEIS 3O 1333
6L LFT'E - TINEE EEgSLS 07959 LEF IR0 SLTET - {51 ON #95) SUCTDRY
TTIELDs - £THEN TILLF LIS - - - RooUmEq U
wop PRI Ad] PALETRLNRY G
19T LLEICECE UL P6 6L T 5 TILT BEUTIGT STEME T Sieiis e LLESSFR I T L0 T SO ST
ITETLEFD - - [{ PR 1] - - — - (6T 230M 298}
ATRTETRGHS v 10 COHEPHIEN0SRP [0 1R
ROFTER'EM'Y GITUSTEET SEOUEES oMSF'E DTO WS BT S[4TEERY Lgssn's GIE00T LTOT TNy
FISLIFPLRD  PREMEL G0 A5 ([ IH7L Tl | S06 ORLHE ~ 3 — SR B
i
™y, (0x pws 1 S} PUe Jozurd iy lnand by S g SMNLOSEIN] POE [Ty
L1, weMOp] aw) smelaAGldun  wonmpzodarery  pow sampR)g e dmy puee|
scaadoad-my POy AL 2D
- N STy
gI0z

yoowdmby pue fpodorg g

IvMI



“35-

The CIP account mainly pertains to the TJS$300.0 million (approximately B14,976.9 million)
investiment eommitment required by the License Agreement with PAGCOR. The cost of the Praject
includes land ecquisition costs, costs related to securing development rights, construction, development
coata and all other expenses directly related to the completion of the Project. The account also includes
capitalized borrowing costs amounting to B80.8 million and B10.7 million for the years endsd
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, equivalent to the effective interests inencred on the loans
(see Note 11). Lease payments capitalized as pert of CIP amounted to B1284 million and
P63.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7).

Advance payments made to seppliers by the Group in reladon to the constroction of the project
amounted to 22133 million and ¥84.2 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, while
pavable to contractors amounrad to £309,7 million and B102.4 million as at those periods, respectively
(see Note 12). Retention payable to suppliers and contractors related to the construction project
amounted to B85.8 million as at Decetber 31, 2018 (nil as at December 31, 2017).

DHPC’s land, land improvements and infrastructurcs and building are used as a real estate mortgage
for the long-term loan acquired from UCFB (see Note 11},

Pursuant to the bank loans, L3 entered into a real estate mortgage and chaite] mortgage indeniure over
the property and equipment to collateralize its bank loans. The carTying value of properties used as
collateral amounted to B2,786.9 million and P465.8 million a3 at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2017 (see Note 11).

The Group has no idle and fully depreciated property and equipment as at December 31, 2018 and
2017,

10.

Deposit for Future Property AcquisiGion

On October 18, 2017, DHPC entered into 2 contract ta sell, to acquire various parcels of land simated
in Tawala, Panglac and in Tagbilaran, with a (otal area of 74,578 square meters. The pareels of land
vontain improvements, consisting of several structures/buildings, walkways, gardens, as well as
fixtures, furniture, and other personal properties and accessories owned by the seller.

The Deeds of Absalute Sale for the 67,853 square meters were executed in August 2018 for a total
consideration amounting to #1,033.2 million which were subsequenily reclassified as property and
equipnment. Remaining deposit for the fufure property acquisition amounting to B25.8 million pertains
to the partial scttlement of the total purchase price for the remaining area of 6,725 square meters, As
at December 21, 2018 and 2017, DHPC has already paid P1,060.0 million and 2470.7 million,
respectively, which represents 89% and 429%, respectively, of the toial purchase price.

On April 20, 2018, the DPRC enteted into a contract to sell, to acquire various parcels of land in Lanang,
Davao City with a total area of 3,134 square meters, The Deed of Abacluta Sale for the parcel of land
to be acquired in Lanang shall be executed upon payment of 3% of the total purchase price of
BE211.5 million. As st Decembar 31, 2018, DPRC has already paid B84.6 million, which represents
4% of the total purchase price,

The Group expects to settle the fall purchase price of both propesties in 2019
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11. Laans Payable

20158 2017

Short-term, loans P31.848,015,068 P1,648,530,000
Long-term loan 963,330,444 -
Mortgage loans 3,127,545 1,321,773
4814473057 1,649911,773

Less current portion of loans payabla 3.840.608,994  1.649,124684
Noncurrent pottion of loans pavable P94, 864,063 B787.080

Shortterm loans

On Jupe 7, 2017, L3 obtained bank loans from CBC to fund the escrow requirement of the Provisional
Licenee (goe Notes 5 and 20) and to fund the construction of the first phase of the integratad resort,
hotel and casino in Lapu Lapu City, Cebu, The loan amounting to U$$15.0 million that was used to
finance the escrow reguirement bears an annual interest of 3.5% to 6.25% while the second [oan
amounting o 2900.0 million that was used to mainly fund the construction bears an agmual interest of

4.75% 10 8.25%.

On Qetober 2018, in connection with the refinancing of the U.8.313 million and B0 million taeilities,
CBC approved a one-year bridge loan facility that extended the tenor of L3%s short-term facilities to
fund (i) the escrow required 1o be maintained by L3 pursuant to the Emerald Provisional License and
(ii) the construction of the Project, The facility is comprised of {(a) a Peso loan facility in the aggregate
principal amount of up to B3, 1 hillion, and (b) a Dollar loan facility in the aggregate principal amount
of up to U.5.515.0 million. The Peso and Dollar facilities were fully drawn on November 26, 2018
bearing interest rates of 9.55% and 6.25%, respectively.

The details of the short-term 1oans, which will be due for payment on. November 21, 2019, as at
December 21, 2018 are as follows:

Principal B3,888, 700,000
Less unamortized debt issue eosts 40,684 932
23,848,015 068

As at December 31, 2018, resiricted fund of #140.0 million from the proceeds of the short-term loans
as construction costs account by CBC is presented as “Restricted Fund™ in the conselidated staiements
of financial position. This will be released in installments upon presentation of invoices for the payment
of relevant construction costs in relation to the investiment comeitment as part of the requirements of
PAGCOR (see Note 20).

The terms of the CBC bridge loan facility contain covenants that restrict the ability of each of LLC and
L3 to, among other things, create or Incur certain indebtedness or liens in respect of its property or
assets, consolidate or merge with other entities, redesm shares or repay subordinated indebtedness if
* such rodemption or repayment would result in a debt to equity ratio of preater than 23310 L.O{on a
combined basis), lend money or eredit or pmwde any guarantes, enfer into certain profit-sharing
“arrangernents, make voluntary prepayments in respect of its long-term mdebted:l:lms ehgage in certain
o ac,tmtlas ot incatparate subsidiaries, maintain certain hank ascounis, incur certain gap1tal expenditure,
' isne additional shares without consent, pay interest and dividends, or amend the de’velopmmt or project
implementation plans of the Project without consent. In addition, each of LLC and L3 is required to
maifitaih on a combined basis a debt to equity ratio of not more than 2.33 to 130, g intain its property
and insurance, and ensvre exchusive use of the Project siic.
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L3’s loans are secured by a corporate guaranty of Udenna and by certain stockholders through a
Contimuing Svrety Agraement with CBC (see Noie 7). Failure by Udenna or by certam sioclkcholders
10 repay indebtedness pursuant to agreements unrelated to L3 could irgger a cross default provision.

The camying value of properties used as collateral amounted to B2,786.% million and to
2469.8 million as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (see Note 9).

The Group, through L3, and CBC are in the process of syndication for a term loan facility. Upon
seciring this term loan facility, the Group expects to usa the proceeds of such loan to refinance the
CBC bridge loan facility and in part fund the ongoing construction and fit-out of the first phase of the
Project.

Interest charges incurred on these loans for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, amouwnted 1o
P118.7 million and 26.2 million, respectively. The capitalized borrowing costs from the total interest
charges amounted to P80.8 million and B10.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, equivalent to the effective interest of the B3.1 billion loans. Capitalized borrowing costs
are included as part of CIP under the “Propetty and aquipment’” account in the consolidated statements
of financial position (see Note 9).

Long-term loan
On September 3, 2018, UCPB granted DHPC a B975.0 million term lean with a term of 1¢ years,
DHPC used the proceeds to refinance {he acquisition ofthe hotel resort in Tawala, Panglao Bohol which

was initially funded using the advances from DHPC's related parties.

The detzils of the long-term loan as at December 31, 2018 [s as follows:

Principal B975,000,0)
Less unamottized debt issue costs 11,669,556
P9G3,330,444

The loan will be repaid in 32 equal quarterly installments commencing on the 27th month from lean
drawdown. In the event of voluntary prepayvment of the loans, the DHPC shall pay the principal and
accrued interest. In addition, any prepayment made before the second anniversary date of the loan from
the date of the initial availment shall be subject to A penalty equivalent to two percent (2%) of the
amount to be prepaid, per ammm. Each partial voluntary prepayment shall be applied against
repayment installments of the loan in the inverse order of their maturity.

The loan bears an annusal interest rate based on the one-year Philippine Dealing System Treasury-
Reference Rate PM (PDST-R2) at the time of availment or resetting, as the case maybe, plus a sproad
of 3.0% per annum. In no case, however, shall the interest be lower than 6.6% per annum. Interest
shall be subject to resaiting on the anmiversary drte of the aveilment and every year thereafter, Interest
expense incurred on this loay for the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted to #25.9 million.

The loan is securad by & real cstate mortgage over tha ﬁnanccd properties and the pladge of all the
shares of stock issued by DHPC (see Note 9).

DHPC must comply with certain financial cnveﬂaﬂtsﬁ)r the term of the loan, including maintaining a
Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1 25y arid'a Debt to Equity Ratio of not exceeding 2.33x.
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The performance of the obligations of DHPC due to UCPB at any titne under the loan agreement and
the payment of the availments therein shall be the joint and several ligbility of the PH Travel aod DHPC
(see Note 7).

Mortgage loans :
In 2018 and 2017, the Group entered into various mortzage loan agreemants with local banks to finance

the acquisitions of fransportation equipment amounting o B3.7 million and 1.9 million, respectively.
The loans bear effective interest rate of 11.86% and 8.50% per anmum, and B.50% per annum for the
years ended Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively and will maturs in 3 years.

The defails of the loans ate as follows:

2018 2017
Mortgags loans B3,127,545 P1.321.773
Less cutrent portion of mortgage loans payable 1,593,925 524,684
Nonewrent portion of the mortgage loans payable P1,533,620 BY97,089

Interest expense incurred on these loans for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, arnounted
10 B2 million atnd 80,1 million, respectively.

12.

Accounts Payable and (hher Current Liahilities

2018 2017
Payable to contractors {see Note 9) B309,651,085 £102,387,744
Inierest payable {see Notes 7 and 11) £4.241 605 -
Statutory pavables 10,317,848 23,140,959
Trade pavables 0,680,371 -
Management fees payable (see Note 7) 3,472,533 -
Advances from gustomenrs 1,384,958 -
Others 8,507,883 4470

P397,256313  P125,533,173

Below are the terms and conditions of the Liabilities:

* Payable fo contractors are noninierest-bearing and normally seftled within three months.

*  Interest payables, statutory payables, irade pavables, and management fees pavable are noninteresi-
hearing and are normally settled within the following month.

s Advances from customers and other pavables are noninterest-bearing and are nonmally settled
within the following menth,
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13, Equity

Capital Stock

The Parent Company’s comrmon shares (at P1 par valus per shara) as at December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 cansist of the following:

2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Antharized 8.000,000,000 B8, 004,084,000 243,241 504 £243,241,504
Subsrribed 4,703, 266,804 4,795,266, 804 243 241,504 243,241,504
Subscription receivables {406,376,651) (#406,376.4691) - -
Izsued and outetanding 4,356,889,813 4,386,089,813 243,241 504 243,241,504
Agdditional paid-in caplial — - - 58,073,612
Paid-up capital, 4,386,989,313 4,386,889,8123 243,241 504 301,315,116

On June 25, 201 8, the BOD and the stockhelders approved the increase in anthorized capital stock from
2500,000,000, consisting of 500,000,000 common shares with a par value of B1.00 per share to
£8.000,000,000 consisting of §,000,000,000 comrmen shares with a par value of B1.OO per share.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 2, Udenna and PH Resorts executed a deed of assignment an
Tune 27, 201§ wherein Udenna assigned, wransferred and cotveyed 100% equity interests of Udenma in
PH Travel consisting of 500,000,000 issued and outstanding common shares with a par value of
£1.00 per ghare in exchange for (a) 4,143,648,30% shares with a par value of RB1.00 per share to be
issued by the Parent Company to Udenna out of the Parent Company’s increase in authorized capital
stock, and (b) cash of B406.38 million,

On December 10, 2018, the SEC approved the application of increase in authorized capital stock
(sce Note 1), The ismuance of 4,143,648,309 shares of the Parent Company occurmed on
December 26, 2018 and on the same date, the gasignment of shares and equity share swap transaction
became effective. Consequently, as at December 26, 2018, PH Travel became a legal subsidiacry of
PH Rezorts. :

Incremental costs of P6%.2 million directly attributabie to the issuance of shares was deducted from the
additional peid-in capital of P38.1 million. The excess of P11.1 million was added to deficit as at
December 31, 2018, .

On December 21, 2018, 406,376,691 shares were subscribed with a par value of B1.00 per shace, The
subseription receivables amounting to B406,376,691 remain uncollected as at December 31, 20138.
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Equity Reserve

The amount of equity reserve consists of the net difference between the cost of PH Resorts to acquire
FH Travel Group and the legal capital of the latter {i.e., common stock and additional paid-in capital)
at the date of reverse acquisiion of PH Resorts as at Decerber 26, 20138, the date of effectivity of the

share swap transaction,

The equity reserve is accounted for as follows:

218 2017

Issnance of additional shares of PH Resorts P4,143,648,309 B301,315,116
Cash congideration 406,351,691 -
Total consideration transferred by PH Resorts 4,550000,000  R301,315116
Elimination of PH Travel Group’s legal capital (G00,000,000)  (500,000,000)
(P4,056,000,000)  B198 684 884

14. Other Direet Costs and Expenses

2018 2017

Commissions 3,141,803 -
Departmental expenses 1,073,167 -
Recreation and entertainment JBZ,488 —
Travel and transportation 167,957 -
Miscellaneous 198,122 —
B4.963,537 B

15. Operating Expenses

2018 2017

Salaries and wapes (Note 7} Bn3,714,054 B10,142,510
Taxes and liconses 34,609,756 22,380,289
Managoment fees (INote 7) 10,282,630 -
Professional fees 9,761,974 10,474,747
Transportation and travel 9,017,535 5,128,166
Utilities and communications 8,782,327 -
Chatside Services 7,403,162 -
Repairs and mainfenance 7,070,415 -
Sales matketing and advertising 5,389,905 -
Organization fees 4,706,286 -
Representation and entertainment 1,641,007 2,908,302
Depreciation (see Note 9) 3,848,296 507,512
Rentals 2,711,197 440,000
Office supplics 1,433,826 -
Insurance 1,333,782 —
Miscellaneous 1,435,952 2,917,249
#175,162,104 B55,398,775
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16. Incomea Taxes
a. The curremt provision for income tax pettains to final withholding taxes on imerest income,

b. The components of the Group’s net deferred income tax assets and labilities are as follows:

2018 017
Deferred tax assets:

Advances from a customer 415497 P
NOLCO _ — 503,124
415,497 503,124

Detarred tax liabilities:
Diebt issuance costs 15,706,458 -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 353,740 —
16,060,198 —
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitics) F13.644,701) B303 124

The deferred tax asset and liahilities were measured using tha appropriate corporate income tax rate
on the year these are expected to be reversed.

¢. The reconciliation betwean the benefit from income tax computed at statutory income tax rate and
(he provision for income tax shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is as

follows:
2018 2017
Benefit from income tax computed at statutory income
tax rate of 3% (B61,514,883)  (B22,698,51))
Tax effects of;
Movement in NOLCO for which no deferred tax
asset was recognized 50,119,490 25,811,534
Dbt issuance costs 15,706,458 -
Nondeductible expenses 8,163,547 -
Interest income subjected to final tax (3,089,009 (2,327,382)
Share issuance costs 1,051,481 -
Nontazable income (185,111} —
B19.251.973 B785.608

The Uroup did not recognize DTA amounting t© P84.9 million and P25.8 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, on the temperary difference arising from NOLCO since
management believes that it is not probable that sufficient futtire taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible tamporary differences can be utilized. The NOLCO incurred by the Group can
be claimed against future taxable income vntil 2021 and 2020, respeciively.

Az at December 31, 2018 and ﬁﬂl?, NOLCO of the Group for which deferred tax asset bas noi been
recognized, can be applied against future taxable incotne within the perioda shown below!

: Mpnlied/
Year Incurred Bxpiry Diate Amonint Expired Uized
e EALT December 31, 2020 BE6,038,446 P- - PRA, 038445
20k o December 31, 2021 107 064,064 ~- 187,064,964

$2483,105,410 P P283,103,410

i,
ISP
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17. Financial Risks Manapement Objeetives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprize cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these finencial instruments is to finance the Group’s operaticns. The other financial assets and
[iabilities ansing from its opermtions are trade and other receivables, security deposits, advances from
and o Telated parties, restricted fund, cash in escrow, trade and other ligbilities, loans payable and
retention payabled.

The main risks arising from the Group’s finanecial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency Tisk. The BOD reviews and approves policics for managing each of these risks and they are
summiarized below:

Credit Risk, Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a Joss because its customers or
counterparties failed to discharge their contrectual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit
risk by trading ondy with recognized, creditworthy third parties. Il is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit tarms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored op an ongoing basig with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group’s financial assets, without
taking account of any collateral and othet credit enhancements:

2018 2017

Cash and cash equivalents® F6R6,386,451 B163,575,718
Trade and other receivables 13,986,884 5,124,797
Advances to related parties 45,068,343 351,404,302
Security deposit™* 16,329,758 -
Restricted fund 139,955,985 -
Cash in escrow 1,315518.771 731,913,965
Total credit risk exposure B2 217,646,192 B1,274.019,802

Excfuding cosh on Ao d
aPreganiad wnder “Prapaid and odier current nrsets " ond "Other moncirrent amseis ™ acoornls i1 e consolidated sextements of

Fianrial positan,

The finamcial assets of the Group are neither past due nor impaired and have high probability of
eollection as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
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Credit Quality per Class of Finanoiaf Asset. The credit quality of financial asset is being managed by
the Group using internal eredit ratings, The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for
the Group's financial instruments by credit rating grades:

2014
Lifetime
Stage 2 StageJ  Purchased ECL
Stagel Lifetime LiHeme of credit-  Simplifled 2017
12-month ECL ICL ECL Impaired Approach Total
High grade B2, 143,340,151 — - - P PN 40151 BU22615,500
b adium 351,404,503
grade 4,306,041 - — - — 74,306,041
Atandard
prade - - - - - - -
Deefault - - - - - _ -
{Iross
CATTYTHE
amount 2,217,646,102 - - - - N7646,102 1,274,019,802
Lass
allowance - - - - - - —
{arrying
BNl #£1,. 117,646,192 $- P- £- B- B1217.646,191 ¥1.274.019.802

Financial pssets classified as “high grade” are those cash and cash equivalents, accrued imerest,
testricted fund and cash in escrow transacted with reputable local banks and financial assets with no
history of default on the agreed contract terms while “medium, grads™ includes those financial assets
being collecied on due dates with an effort of collection. Financial instruments classified as “standard
prade™ are those financial assety with little history of defanlt on the agreed terms of the contract,

A finencial asset is considered past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
confractually dve. “Past due but not impaired™ financial assets are items with history of frequert
defaylt, Nevertheless, the amounis due are still collectible, Lastly, “Impaired™ items are those that are
long outstanding and have been specifically identified a8 impaited.

An aging anatysis of financial assets per class are as follows:

2018
Nelther Past Due  Pase Dme hne

mor Impaired not impaired Imipaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents* P636,386,451 B - P636,385,451
Trade and oiher receivables 11,9485 884 - - 13,986,884
Advances to related parties 45 068343 - - 45048343
Security deposits*® 16,329,758 - - 16,329,738
Restricted fund 139,955 985 - - 139,955,985
Cagh in escrow 1315,918,771 - - 1,315938,771
P2.217 646,192 B B-  P2217.640,192

*Exciucling carh on hond

*APrasenten mder ' Prepaid emd oiher crarent asets " ard “Other nonearvent aurels™ avcouns i the cossolideted stalemenis af
Jinareind pogifion,
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2017
Meither Past Dme Past Dye bm

ot Impaired not impaired Impaired Total
{ash and cash equivalents* B165,576,738 - B B165,576,738
Trade and other receivebles 5,124,797 - - 5,124,797
Advances to related parties 351,404,302 - - 351,404,302
Cash in escrow 751,913,965 - - 781,913,065
£1,274,019,802 B £- P1,274.019,802

*Erefhding cash on fand

Liguidity Risk  Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group may encounter difficulties in
raiging funds to meet or zettle its obligations at a reazonable price.

The Group’s objective is to mainiain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of advances to related parties, The Group maintains sufficient cash to finance its operations.

The Group maintains a fnancial strategy thet the scheduled debts are within the Group®s ability to
generate cash from its business operations. In addition, suffieient volume of sales is pursued through
its operating ootity to create enough profit and cesh flows to meet all of the Group’s maturing

cbligations.

The table below summarizes the matuwrity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (principal and
interest) as at Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017, based on contractual undiscounted payments, The table
also analvses the maturity profile of the Group's financial asses in order 1o provide a complete view
of the Group’s contractval commitments and lquidity.

rES e luding combracthal inferest end excluding unanorficed dely e coris

Deeember 31, 2018
Do amd Lesy Than More than

Demandable One Year One Year Total

Cash and cash aqurivalenta ¥586.386 451 E P Pako, 386,451
Trade and other teceivables 10,000,000 3,984, 804 - 14,008,404
Advances to relsted parties 45,068,343 - - 45,068,343
Security dapogits™* - 9,329 758 6,200,000 16,320,758
Restricted fund - 139,055,085 - 139,955,985
Cash in esrow - - 1315913,771 1,315,918,771
F741,454,794 F153.472.627 P1322 718771  PII1T7 646092

Loang payablett*® - 4241851910 1,648,107 310 5,591,950,.220
Trade and other liabilities*** - 386,038,353 - 386,938,143
Retention peyable - - 55, 7TH,468 B5.776,468
Advances from related parties 1,279,330,685 — - 1,279,332.676
1,279,330,655 £,630,7090.263  1,7331,881.778 7,644 004,506

Liquidity gap (337,875,861  (R4,477.317.636)  (B411,165807) (P5,426,358,504}

*Eafuding cashk on kand
w*Pregerifed under “Frepaid and other currant aosts” aud “Othier hotcurrent assefls " decounts n the conrofidated sisementr of
{finardal positicn
Fuiieliding sramiary payed les
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Desember 31, 2017
Due and Lese Than Ilows than

Demandable One Year One Year Total

Cash and cash equivalents* B165,575, TR £ P~ 2165,5T, 738
Trade and other receivehles - 5,124,797 - 5 124,797
Advances to redamd parties 351,404 302 - - 151 404,300
Cash In escrow - — 751,913,965 751,013,565
2516981 040 B5 124 797 B7SLOI3 965 #1374 019 802

Loans payablet* - 1, 718,167,146 787,089 1, 718,934,235
Trade and other cuerent Habilities® - (02392214 - 102302214
Adlvances frow velated parties 129,367,293 - — 129,367 293
129,307,293 1,320,559 360 787,089 2,446,062,5339

Liquddity zap P392, 738,344  (B1.B20.559 3600 BTSLIZ6876)  (RSTE.693.9400

*Excluding cast on fond
Y Exe bading statictory payebles

e lnding contrciual fteres! and excluding unarortized debt ifzne corra

orei Ris
Foreign cwrrency risk is the rigk that the fair value of future cash flows from the Group's foreign
currency-denaminated assets and Habilitics may fluctaate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group continuously evaluates the movements of foreign exchange rates with the possible risk given
its financial position.

The Group’s objective 18 to keep transactional currencies at an acceptable level to its operations to
minimize forgign exchange ¢xposures. To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign cumrency risk, cash
flows denominated in foreign currencies are monitored.

Foreign Currency-denominated Financial Assets and Financial Licbilities
Information on the Group®s forsign cuorrency-denominated menetary financial assets and Bnancial
liabilities and their Peso equivalents are as follows:

December 31, 208 Drecember 30, 2017
USS Paso L Poso
Value Equivalent Value Equivalent
Assels
Cash $447575 P23,533,503 $903,640 P4Y612 445
Recaivables 2520 1,078,944 102,640 5,124,797
Cash in escrow 25,026,983  1,315,018,771 15,059,362 751,913,065
25405078 1,340,%31,218 16,155,642 806,651,207
Liablliries
Loans payable 15,000,000 THE,700,000 13,000,000 T4E 930 04
Total PeE1 431218 837,701,207

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the clozing

U.8%, respectively.

exchange rate was 252 58 and P49.93 for each
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the foreign
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to revaluation
of monetary assets and liabilities). There iz no impact on equity other than those sheady affecting
pretax loss.

Changes in Foreign Impact on Loss

Exchange Rates Before Income Tax

December 31, 2018 Increase by 5.31% $29,302,238
Drecrease by 5.31% {29,302,238)

December 31, 2017 Increase by 10.78% 6,220,190
Decrease by 10.78% [£,220,100}

Capital Mansgement
The primary objechive of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to

continie as a going concern, so that it can provide returns to stockholders and benefits (o others
stakeholders and o maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The Group manages its capiial structure and makes adjustments to if, in light of chanpes in ecemomic
conditiens. To mainigin or adjust the capital structure, the Group adjusts the dividend payment to
stockhalders, naturn capital to stockhnlders or issue new shares. The Group’s debt-to-equity ratios are
g3 follows:

2018 2017

Tortal Tiabilities P6,592,481,194 P1,904,812,239
Tatal equity 226,168,001 423 552,617
29.15:1 4,50:1

The Group’s goal in capital menagement is to maintain a debt — equity siructurs of not higher than 70%
debt — 30% equity ratio. This will be addressed upon the completion of follow-on offering and
expansion projects. The debt 70% debt — 30% equily capital management goal is also in line with L3
and CGLC’s Provisional License Agreement with PAGCOR. (see Note 20).

18.

Fair ¥alue Information

Fair value i3 defined as the amount at which the financial instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between lmowledgeable willing parfies in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced
ar liquidation sales.

Financial Instruments Whose Carrying Amoumts Approximate Faoir Value. Management has
determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivabies,
advances o and from related parties, restrictzd fund, cash in escrow, security deposits, trade and other
current liabilities, and retention payable, based on their notional amounts, reascnably approsimates
their fair values because these are mosily short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.

Long-term logn payebfs, The fair value of long4erm loan payable amcunting to B594,287,474 is
determined by discounting the expected cash flows ucing the discount rate of 9.07%1 as at
Decembar 31, 2018, Fsir value measirement is categorized undsr Level 3 with signiflicant cbservable

unputs,
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19, Deconsnlidation of & Subsidiary

a. Analysis of assets and liabilitics of AAPT as at January 12, 2018 arc as follows;

Assels
Cash and cash equivalents B7,251,958
Advances to a related party 189,785
Prepayments and other curment assets 208,963
Property and equipment - net 1,653,882
Deferred input VAT 145,786
Total Assets 9,454,376
Liabilities
Acgcounts payable and other current Habilitics 71,413
Net assets of deconsolidated subsidiary 9,382,563

b, Gain on sale of investment in a subsidiary

Considemation 210,000,000
Less net assets of deconsolidated subsidiary 9,382,963
Gain on sale of investment in a subsidiaty 8417037

As at December 31, 2018, the consideration remains due fromn a related party (presented as part of
“Trade and other receivabies™ in the cansolidated statements of financial position).

20. Commitments and Contingencics

License Apreement with PAGCTOR

As discussed in Note 1, on May 3, 2017, PAGCOR issued a Provisional License (License) anthorizing
L3 to develop of approximately 13.5 bectares in Mactan Islands, LapuLapu City, Cebu and 10 establish
and opemte casinos and engage in gaming activities. The term of L3's License shall be for a period of
15 years oruntil May 3, 2032, which may be renewed subject to the terms of conditions of the License.

{a} Debr-Equity Ratio Requivement

The License provides, among others, that L3’s License may be revoked or suspended upon failure
of L3 to comply with the 70% Debt - 30% Bquity ratio requirement of PAGCOR,, Teating date as
stated in the License i to be performed every June and December, As at December 31, 2017, L2’
debt-equity ratio was 78% - 22%, which exceoded the required debi to equity ratic of PAGCOR.
On February 19, 2018, the SEC approved (he application for the increase in the authorized capital
stock of L3 from B500.0 million to £1,500.0 million. Suvbsequently, on March 3, 2018, L3 was
given an extension by PAGCOR until April 30, 2018 to comply with the 70% debt - 30% equity
ratio requiremnent. '

On April 17, 2018, 1.3 and Udenna Development Corp. (URDEVCQ) submitted a requaat to

PAGCOR to: .. . m

a. Amend the Provisional License to remove UDEVCO as & co-licensee and replace: it w1th ltﬁ o
wholly-owioed subsidaary, LLC.

b, Lse the pro- forma consolidated financial statements of the co-licensees in the calculat;lm of
the 70% Debt - 30% Equity ratio.
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On April 23, 2018, PH Travel has fully subscribed the remainming £1,000.0 million authorized
capilal stock of L3,

As at June 30, 2018, L3 has complied with the required 76% debt to 30% equity ratic requirement
of PAGCOR. .

On July 19, 2018, PAGCOR approved the amendments of the Provisional License to remove
UDEVCO ag a co-licenses and replace it with its wholly-owned subsidiary, LLC.

L3 defines “Debt” for this pwpost as sum of all its imterest-bearing debts. Az at
December 31, 2018, the combined debt-equity ratio of L3 and LLC is 69% - 31%.

(B} lnvestmernt Commeitrents
As required by (he License, 1.3 is required to complete its US$300.0 million (approximataly
P14.976.9 million) investment commitment in phases. The cost af the Project includes land
acquisition costs, costs related to sescuring development rights, construction, equipment acquisition,
development costs, financing costs and all other expenses directly related to the completion of the
Project. As at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, capitalized costs related to the Project
amounted to B2, 786.9 million and P469.8 million, respectively (s8¢ Note 93,

A3 a reguirement in developing the aforementioned Project, L3 opened an escrow account with a
local bank mutnally agresd by PAGCOR and L3, At any given time, the escrow account shatl have
a roaintaining balance of not lower than US$15.0 million (about F748.8 million) {see Note 5). For
failure to comply with such maintaining balance requirement, L3 shall be charged by PAGCOR an
amount equal to 21,0 milllon for every 13 calendar day period, ot a fraction thereof, until the
noncompliance is corrgoted. Withdrawals from the escrow deposit can be made only for the
construction coste and other fees for the development of the investment commitment. The
investment amount shall be exhausted for each phase of the project. The escrow deposit
requirement is offsctive until the completion of the Projest and/or upon the receipt of a written
natice from the Licensee, duly acknowledged by PAGCOR, instructing the full withdrawal of the
deposit and termination of the escrow agreement, whichever comes first,

{c} Requirement to Extablish a Foundation

L3, with the approval of PAGCOR, is required to incorporate and regisier a foundation for the
restoration of cultural heritage (“Foundation™) not later than 60 days from the signing of the Licenss
Agreement. The Foundation shall be funded by L3 by setting aside, on a monthly basis, a certain
pereentage of toiz] gross gaming revenues generated from non-junket tables. The funds set aside
for such purpose shall be remitted to the Foundation on or bafore the 10th day of the succeeding

month,

On Aupust 16, 2017, LapuLapu Cultural Heritage Foundation, Ing, was incorporated. However,
1o fimd has been set aside by L3 as no gaming revenue has been recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and for the period from Augast 16, 2017 to December 31, 2017,
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As discussed in Note 1, on August 6, 2018, PAGCOR issued a Provisional License to CGLC for the
development of an integrated tourism resort and to establish and operate a casino within Clark Freeport
Zone, Under the Claric Provisional License, CULC shall, among others, comply with the fellowing:

a. Iovest a mimimumn of U.8.3200 million in the approved development (the “Clark Investment
Commitment™), provided that 4094 of the Clark Jovesiment Commitment is spent within two years
after the issuance of the Clark Provisional License, subject to an extension that PAGCOR may
grant at its diseretion.

b. Maintain an escrow account into which all funds for devslopment of Clack rmust be deposited and
all funds withdrawn from this account must be used only for such development,

¢. Issue a certification from the Comptroller together with the certification from its independent
external aunditor that COLC complies with the 70% Debt — 30% Equily ratio requirsrnent of
PAGCOR within sixty (6d) calendar days after the end of each semi-annual period of each year.
Furthermare, CGLC shall submit its semi-annual nnaudited financial statements sixty (60} calendar
days after the end of the applicable semi-aonual period and an aonval avdited financial statements,
within one hutidred twenty (120) days after CGLC's year end.

CGLC defines “Debt” for this purpose as sum of all its interest-bearing debts.
As at December 31, 2018, CGLC has complied with the required 70% debt to 30% equity ratio
requirement of PAGCOR.

d. COLC is required, on a moothly besis, to remit 2% of casine revenuss generated from non—junket
tables to a foundation devoted to the restoration of Philippine cultural hetitage, ag selected by
COLC and approved by PAGCOR. On November 29, 2018, CGLC Cultural Heritags Foundation,
Inc. was meorperated. However, no fund has been set aside by CGLLC as nio gaming revenue has
been recognized for the peried March 7, 2018 to December 31, 2018,

21. Loss Per Share

Basic Loss Per Share amounts are caloulated by dividing the net loss for the period artributable to
common sharsholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period.

The following talle presents infortnation necessary to calculate Loss Per Share:

2018 2017
Net loss attributable tothe squaty bolders of the Parent
Conmpany (P224,301,582) (P76,447,381)
Divided by weiphted average number of common
shares 289,282,041 243,241,504
(PG, 7754 (20.3143)

The Parent Company has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding, thercfom basic loss per
share is the same s diluted loss per shate.
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22. Segment Information
Segment information is prepared on the following bases:
Busingss Segmenis

The business segments pertatn mainly to hotel and restaurant activities, Assets and processes related to
other business activities such as gaming are still not operational a3 of reporting period.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into two business activitizs - Hovel and restavrant
and others, This segmentation is the basis upon which the Group reperts its primary segment
information,

Business Sggment Data
Hotel and restaurant segment comprise revenues from hotel and restaurant activities and other

incidental services related thereto. Information presented for the year ended December 31, 2017
pertains to the consolidated operations of the Group sines the hotel and restaurant operstions

commenced only at the beginning of 2018,

The following table presents the revenue and cxpense infornation and certain assets and liabilities
information regarding business segments for the years ended December 51, 2018 and 2017;

018 27
Heotels and
Restanrant Oihers Elirminatlons Tatal Tiotal
Revenne FRY 758,452 . P~ P82,758.452 -
Fesultz
Direct costs and expenses {16,022,089) - \ - {36,022.08%) -
Operating expenses QAL019,03T) (14,204,771 - (171,515,808} (54,391,20%)
Toreign exchenpe
ggin (loss) « net (367,475) (15,817,628) ~  (16,185103)  (16,613,053)
Depreciation (2,043,972} (1,304,224} - (3,348,295) (507,512)
Intewest expense (25,76%,117) (55,586,700) - (81,334,913) (15 634,300
Interest neoma 68,204 20,575,285 - I8,643, 485 12,053,748
Income tWx expenae (3,509, 825) (1E652 148} - (15,251 862} {785,608)
Other non-epereting
ingome (expense) - nek 214,094) £130,281) — (344,375) (49 3913
Met loss (P22, 707.956) {PX02,210G63) - (#224.918,508) (P76,447,383)
Assetz and iabilities
Operating assats F1,509 751,&1]5 F14,232 szs,sm (P8,623,528 914} PE 018,649,195 82328 364,856
Defervad tax asset - 503,124
Totel asseta FIEEDBETS&GU! mﬁzs Einﬂ gggmggzsgug PG!SI-Bg!’éQS H&lﬂ,ﬂﬁ?,?&(}
Dpesting Lisbilities #®140,688,831  W3,570,G03,519 (P1,MB928914) PL762,363436  B254,900,466
Lomma payable 464,860,196 5,849,612,861 - 48144730587 1640911778
Deferred tax liabilities 3 I)GS,ISI 12,5502 - 15,6440t
Tota) liabilities PLIGR,634,508 PTA3LTI5,600 (1, M48928014) P6,502.4%1,194 B1.504 §12 239

23, Net Losw/Total Comprehensive Loss

The Group’s net loss and total comprehensive loss for the years ended Decetnber 31, 2018 and 2017
arc the same since the Group does not have other comprehensive income or ]pss



PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Philippine H20 Ventures, Corp.)
SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS
DBECEMBER 31, 2018

Framework for the Preparation and Presamtation of Finaneial
Statements v
Conceptyal Framework Phase A: Objectdver pad qualitative
characteristics

PFRS3 Practics Statement Management Commentary v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards -

FFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Thilippine Financial Reporting 7
(Revised) Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Inyealment in & Subsidiary, Jointly Controflad Eniily or v
Associate '

Ameodment o PFRS 1; Additional Excmptions for ’
Fiest-timg Adoptars

Amandment (o PERS 1: Limited Exsmption fom v
Comparative PFRS 7 Discloaurss for Firat-tims Adopters

Amendments ta PFRS [: Sevete Hyperinflation and
Removel of Fixed Date for First-tims Adapters

Amendments to PFRE 1: Government Loans
Amendment to PFRS 1: Borrowing Coste
Amendmeant 10 PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFESs

FFRS 2 Share-based Payient

Amendments to PERS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Caneellationa

Amendments o PFRS 2: Group Cash-satiled Share-based v
Payment Transactions

Amendment to FFRS 2: Definition of Vesting Condition v

Amendments to FERS 2: Classification and Measurement v
of Share-based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 Business Combinations Cw

{Revised) Amendment to PEFRS 3: Accouniing for Contingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination

Amendiment to PFRS 2: Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Arrangemeanis -

_ | FFES 4 Insweance Cootracts v
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Amendments to PAS 39 and FFRS 4: Financial
Guaranee Comlracts

Applyving PEFRS 9 Financial Instruments with PTRS 4
Insurence Contracts

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Changes in Method of Dizposal

PEFRS d

Expioration for and Bvaluation of Mingral Resources

PFES 7

Finaneiel Instrumenis: Disclosares

Amendments to PAS 39 and FFRS 7: Reclassification of
Fmnaocial Asseis

Amandments o PAS 19 and PFRS 7 Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effectve Date and Teansiton

Amecndmenis 1o PFRS 7: Improving Disclomres atiout
Financial Instruments

Asnendments to PFRS 7¢ Disclosures - Transfers of
Finanrial Agsets

Amendments to FFRS 7: Dieclosores — Offsatting
Financial Assets and Financial Lighilitics

Amendrments to FFRS T: Mandatory Effective Date of
FFRS 2 and Transition Dvsclosures

Amendments to PFRS T: Servicing Contracta

Amendments to PFES T Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Staterments

PFRS §

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS §: Agerepstion of Oparating
Seginents and Reconciliation of the Totel of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets 1o the Bntity's Asvels

PFRE O

Finetedal Instruments

Amendments to PFRS &: Mandaiory Effestive Date af
PFRS ¢ and Transition Discloanres

Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Nepative Compengation

PIES 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments o PFRS 10: Investment Futities

Amendments o PFR3 19: Bale or Conttibution of Asssis

Between and Investor and its Associate of Toint Venture - |-




Amendments 1o PFRS 10: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

PFRS 11

Juint Armangements

Amendment to FFRS I1; Accounting for Acquisitions of
Intexests in Joint Operationg

Not Enrly Adopted

PFRS 12

Disclpsurs of Tnterests in Other Entities

Amendmerrts fo PFRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendment to FFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of the
Standard (Part of Annual Immrgvements to PFR3s 2014
2016 Cyele)

Not Early Adopted

FFRE 13

Fair Value Measuremani

Amendment to PFRS 13; Short-term Receivahbles and
Payables

Not Early Adoptad

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolic Exception

FIRS 14

Repulatory Deferral Accounta

ﬂ\‘

FFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 16

Leases

Not Early Adopted

Thllippine Accounting Standards

PaS1
{Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statesments

Amendment to PAS |; Capital Disclosures

Amendinents to PAS 32 and PAR 1: Puttable Finaneial
Instoments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1; Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments 1o PAS 1; Clarification of the requirements
of comparative information

Mot Early Adopted

Amendmenta o PAS [: Disclosnre Initlative

PAE 2

Inventories

PAS Y

3 talement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: 3tatement of Cash Flows,
Disclosure Tniliative

PAS 8

Accoumnting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates -
and Errors

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Pericgd

PAS 11

Comstraction Contracis

PAS 12

Income Taxes




Amendment to PAS 12: Defarred Tax: Recovery of
Tnderlying Assets
Amendments to PAS 12: Incomne Taxes, Recopnition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Lasses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16 Classification of 3ervicing
Equipsmsit
Amendmens 1o PAS 16: Revaluation Method —
Proportionate Restatement of Accurtmlated Depreeiation
Amendment to PAS 18: ClariBoation of Acospighle v
Methods of Depreciation
Amendment to FAS 16: Bearer Flants
FAS 17 Leases +
PAS 18 Revere <
PAS 19 Employee Benefits ¥
Amendments 1o PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Togses,
Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Banefits ¥
(Amended)
Amendmenis to PAS 19: Defined Bensfit Plans:
Employee Contribution
Amendments to PAS 19; Regional Market Issue
Regarding Dascount Rate
PAS 20 Accounting for Govamment Grands and Disclogure of
Goverment Assistance
TAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreigit Exchange Rates v
Attendment: Wet [vestment in a Foreign Operation
PAS 23 Barmwing Costs s
{Reviged)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosurcs ¥
( ) Amendinents to PAS 24: Key Management Fersonnel ¥
PAS 24 Accounting and Reparting by Retirement Benefit Plans
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements v
PAS 27 Separate Fioancizl Statemenis
(Amended) |4 o endments to PAS 27: Tnvestinient Entities
Amevdments to PAS 27 Equity Mcthod in Scparate
Financial Staléhents™ " 7 -. . -
PAS 23 | Investments T Asscioiated " 7




PAS I8 Tuvestments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures
(Amended) Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Coniribution of Assets 7
Batwean and Invesnor and it Associzte of Joint Venture
Meazuring an Associale or Joint Venfure at Fair Value
(Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 20142015 v
Cyele)
Long-term Intereats in Assoeiates and Joint Yentures ¥
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
FAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Fimancial Instruments; Pisclosure and Presentation
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttabla Financial v
Instruments and Chligations Arising on Liguidation
Amendmend to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issuss v
Amendments 1o PAS 32: Offaetling Financial Assetz and
Financial 1iatvilitiea
Amendments to PAS 32- Tax Effect of Distrilnrtion to -
Hoklers of Equity Instruments
PAS 33 Earnings per Sharg
PAS 34 Interim Pinancial Reporting v
Amendments (o PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and v
Sepment Information for Total Assats and Liabilitkes
Amendments 0 PAS 34: Disclosurs of Information v
Elsewhere in the Interim Flnancial Repott
FAS 36 Impairment of Azsefs v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount v
Prizclosures for Mon-Financial Assete
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets +
PAS 38 Intangible Assets 4
Amendments 1o PAS 38 Clarification of acceptabla v
methonds of smortization
Amendments to PAS 33: Revaluation Method - y
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization
PAS 30 Fitoncial Fstruments: Recognition and Measursment
Amsndm&?:lls 10 PAS 39: Transition and [ndfial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Fioancinl Liabitities
Amendments to PAS 39; Cash Flow Hedge Accounting \,
.| of Forecast Tntragroup Transactions
4

. | Athendments to FAS 39: The Fair Value Option




Amendmerrta to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantes Contracts

dmendments to PAS 3¢ and PFRS 7T: Reclaazification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets — Effactive Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Intetpretation IFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embeddad Derivativea

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Ttems

Amendments o PAS 39: Novation of Detivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accoumiing

PAS 40

Invearment Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifving the Interrelationship
betwesn PERS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifving Property
as Inveatment Froperty or Ovmer-Occupied Froperty

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers
of Invastment Propetty

PAS 41

ApTiculture

Amendment to PAS 41; Bearer Flants

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Sirmilar Lighilities

IFRIC 2

Meambers’ Share in Co-operative Enditics and Similar
Instruments

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Areemgement Contains e Lease

IFRIC 5

Rights to Interests ariging from Decommissioning,
Rasteration and Envircnmental Eehabilitation Funds

IFRIC &

Liabilitias arising from Participating in o Specific Market
- Waste Electrical and Bleciranic Equipment

IFRIC 7

Applving ihe Restetement Approach wunder PAS 29
Finoncinl Reporting In Hyperinfiationgry Economies

IFRIC 8

Scope of PFRS 2

IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivativea

Amendments to Philipping Intecpretation TFRIC-9 and
BAR 30 Embedded T.'ll-s'li'u_'ht'_ivea

IFRIC 10

Irizrin Finareiat Repqr:.:‘.ng and Fmpairiient

I[FRIC 11

PFRA 2 - Growp and Tredsury Share Tramsactions

|IFRIC 12

Service Congession Amrangentents

i
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IFRIC 12 Custamer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimm Funding /
Racmirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC - 14, v
Prepayments of & Mininm Funding Requirement

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Constryction of Resl Eatate” v

IFRIC 16 Hedgea of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distribwticns of Non-cash Asseis to Dwhets v

IFRIC 18 Transfars of Asects from Customers ¥

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity -
Instraments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Produetion Phase of a Burface v
Mineg

IFRIC 21 Leviss ¥

IFRIC 22 Foteign Currency Transactions and Advance s
Congideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty sver Income Tax Treatments v

BIC-7 Introduction of the Bure v

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to »
Operating Activities

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to 31C - 12 Scope of SIC 12 v

SIC-13 Joimly Controlled Entities - Non-Mooetary Coniributions -
by Veuturers

SIC-18 Cperating | eases — Incentives +

SIC-28 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or v
its Shareholders

SIC-17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving tha v
Legal Form of a Lease

s1C-29 Serviee Concession Arrangements: Disclosurcs <

s1C-M Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Adventising v
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Wehb Site Costs 4




ANNEX B

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The information hersin should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its eirely by
reference o, the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained In this
Raport,

Short Backgrourd of Business of Reglstrant

PH Resorts Group Moldings, Inc. {farmetly Philippine H20 Ventures Corp. *PH Rasorts”,
“Parant Company™ “Campany™ or “H20" [s the parent company of PH Travel and Leisure
Holdings Corp., the holding company for the gaming and hespitality arm of the Udenna
Group, which includes Lapuiapu Lelsure, Inc., Clark Grand Lefsure Corp., and Donatela
Hotal Paryglan Corp.

Lapul.apu Leisure, Inc. [LLL]) & the developer of The Emereld Bay, an intsgrated tourism
resort 1o be located on a 13.5-hectare sile in Lapu-Lapu Clty, Mactan Islend, Cebu,
Fhilppines. ©On May 3, 2017, LapulLapu Leisure and its co-licensee were granted a
pravisional license by the Philipping Amusement and Gaming Corporatlon ("PAGCZOR™),

Clark Grand Leisure Corp. {CGLC) is the developer of The Base, an integrated tourism resort
to be lacated on 2 4.4-hectare site in Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga,
Philippines. On August 8, 2018, CGLC was granted a provisional license by PAGCQOR,

Donatela Hotel Panglao Cerp (DHPC) is the owner of the Donatela Hotel, a boutique-styls,
upscale hotel in Tewala, Panglae Island, Bohol. DHPC acquired the Donalela Hotel in 2Q17.
The Dohatela Hotel commenced operations on November 7, 2017 and currently has 12
upscale villas with pools, fine-dining restaurants and a wine cellar. H is localed on a 7.5~
heclara property approximately a 10-minute drive from the Bohol-Pangao International
Airport.

Business and General Information
am 1. Businessa Development

PH Resorts Group Holdings, Ine. was Incarporated in the Phillppines and was reglstarad with
the Securiiies and Exchange Cemmission {SEC) on January 30, 2009, The common shares
of the Parent Company are lisled and traded In the Phillpplne Stock Exchangs (PSE). The
registered office address of the Parent Company is at GGDC Administrative Services
Building, Clark Glabal City, Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga.

As of Decembar 31, 2018, the Parent Company is @ majority-ovned subsidiary of Udenna
Corporetion ("Ultimate Parent Company” or "Udenna’), & company incorparated in the
Fhillppines.

On June 25, 2018, the Beard of Directors (BOD} and the stockholders approved the following
amendments to the Parant Company's Articles of Incorporation (RO

« Change in corporale name from Fhiiippine H20 Vantures Comp. to PH Resorts Group
Holdings, Ing,

+ Change in the primary purpose of H20 from "o invesl in, purchase, or otherwise
acguire and own, hold, use, develop, lease, sall, assign, transfer, morigage, pledge,
sxchange, operate, enjoy or otharwise dispese of, as may be pemmitled by law, il
properties of every kind, nalure and descriplion and wherever sitused, including but
not limlted bo real estale, whaether improved or unimproved, agricultural and natural
resourcg projects, buildings, warehouses, factories, Industrial complexes and
facilifies; shares of stock, subscripllons, bhonds, warrent, debenfures, noies,



evidences of indebtedness, and other aacurities and obligations of any comoration
or corporations, essoclations, domesilc or foreign, for whatever lawful 1o pay
tharafore stocks, bonds, dabentures, contracts, or obligations, to receive, collacl,
and disposa of interesl, dividands, and income arising from such praperty: and to
possess and exerclse in respect thereof all the rights, powers, and privileges of
ocwnership, including comgplying with the provisions of Raevised Securities Act’ fo "o
subscrine, acquire, hold, seall, assign, or dispose of shargs of siock and other
securitles of any carporatlon including thoge engaged In the hotel andfor gaming and
entertainment business, withoul however engaging in the dealership of securities or
In the slock brokeraga businass or in the business of an Invastment company, to the
axlent permitted by law, and o be involved in the management and operations of
such investee companies; and to guaraniec the cbligations of its subsidiaries or
afflliates or any enlity In which the Corporatien has lawful intereat”,

= Changa in registerad principal office address from 4/F, 20 Lansbergh Place Bldg.,
170 Tomas Morato Ave, Quezon City 1103 to GGDC Administrative Services
Building, Clark Global City, Clark Freepoit Zone, Pampanga, 2023.

» Change in the number of directors from seven 0 nine.

« Incresss in aulhaorized capital stock from PS00.0 million, consisting of 5G0.0 million
common shares with a par value of P1.00 per share to P8.0 billion censisting of B.0
hillion commaon shares with a par value of P1.00 per share.

On December 13, 2017, the Parent Company was notified by Jolliville Holklings Carporation
(JHC, former parent company of H20) that tha atter, along with its subsidiaries and related
parties, wlll be selling all thelr shareholdings in the Parent Company representing 62.008%
of the issued and outstanding capital of the Parent Company to Udenna Development
Corporation (UDEYCO), or to any of the |alter's subsidiaries or affiliates (the H20 Sale).
One of the conditlons for the H2O Sale 13 tha Implementation and completion by H20 of a
apin-off by sefling all of its exisling business and assets, incuding shares and interesl in its
subsidiaries. The Parent Company shall also ¢ollect all recsivables, selffe all its obligations,
assign its contractual Interesls, transfer or reagsign all of its employees and setie and
dizsolve its retirement fund.

Cn February 21, 2018, Tubig Pilipinas Corp. {formerly Tabuk Waler Corp, “TPC”, 8 wholly-
owned subsidiary of JHC), entered inte a purchase agreement, subjecl io conditions, with
the Parant Company 1o purchase the latter's shares and Interests, in Calapan Waterworks
Corporalion {CWWEC) consisting of 137 045,308 shares representing 99.75% of the issuad
and oulstanding capital stock of CWWC for a total considaralion of P442.0 millien, On April
4, 2018, the Farent Company's stockholders approved the CWWC sale. On June 1, 2018,
the Parent Company sold all of its shares and interests in CWWEC to Tubig Pilipinas Corp.
Accardingly, \he Parent Company lost ite control over CWWHC,

On February 28, 2018, JHC and UDEVIZO ertered into a Share Purchaze Agreement (SPA)
" for.lhe latter to acquire 150,524,800 commaon shares from the former representing §2.006%
of the issued and outstanding common shares of H2O for a total purchase price.of PE47.9
.- million or P4.30 per share. On April 25, 2018, UDEVCQO subsequently assigned el of its
"rights and-chligations undar the SPA to the ulfimate parent company, Udenna Corporation.
Consequently, H20 became the holding company for the tourism-related businesses of
Udenna.

1 Udenna conducted a tender offer fram April 30, 2018 fo May 29, 2018 to buy the r_é_mainlng
92 418,614 common shares, representing approximately 37.994% of the issued and
outstanding sommeon shares of H20, Ne shareholder terwered their shares.

Gn .]u'ria 1, 2018, upon completion of the tendar offer and fulfillmert of the conditions as
.. provided in the SPA, the common shares of H2OQ were transferred to Udenna ihrough &

speclal block sale In the PSE. Aecordingly, on the same dale, the Parent Company became
a EUhEIdIaI’y’ of Udanna, a company incorporatad i in the Phll|pp|nus All the assets and



liabilities as of May 31, 2018 of the subsidiaries of tha Farent. Company were disposed
through a spin-off ot June 1, 2018 as part of the conditions set forth in the SPA,

From June 13 fo July 3, 2018, Udenna acquired additionsl 19,457,486 shares through &
special block sals In the PSE, affactively owning an additional 7.984% interest in H20.

On June 27, 2018, Udenna and PH Resorls executed a daed of assignment wherein
Udenna assigned, transferred, and conveyed 44,654,000 sharea of PH Travel and Lelsure
Holdings Corp. (PH Travel, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lkdenna), representing its 8.83%
intarest ownership, 1o PH Resorls in exchange for cash consideration in the amount of
P4o6.4 milllon,

On the same date, Udennz and PH Resorts also executed a deed of assignment wherein
Udenna asslgned, transferred, and conveyed 455,346,000 shares of PH Travel, representing
ils 81.07% interest ownership, to PH Resorts in exchangs for the issuance of 4,143,648,309
shares of FH Resorls to be issued al P1.00 par valug per share for a tatal share swap
consideration of P4,14%.6 million (Share Swap Conskierailon). The Ulimate Parent
Company shall apply the share swap consideration in payment of its subscription to the
addiional sharez in the capital steck of PFH Resorts fo be issued et the price of P1.00 per
share from the proposed ncrease in the authorized capifal stock of PH Resorts. Upon
effectivity, PH Travel will bacome a dirsct wholly ownead subsidiary of PH Rezorts,

Meither the Company nor its subsidiaries are the subject of any bankrupicy, receivership or
similar proceedings.

Item 2. Business of Issuer

PH Resorts Group Holdings, Inc. was incorperaled primarily {o subscribe, acquire, hold,
sell, assign, or dispose of shares of stock and other securities of any corparation including
those engaged [n the hatel and/or gaming and entertalnment business, without however
engaging in the desbership of =zecurities or in the stock brokerzge busziness or in the
business of an investment company, to the extent permitted by law, and to be invalved in
the management and operaions of such investee companies; and {o guarantee the
obligations of ifs subsidiaries or gffiliates or any entity in which the Corporalion has lawhul
interest”,

FH Resorts CGroup Holdings, Ine. is the parent company of PH Travel and Leisure Holdings
Corp., tha haolding campany for the gaming and hoespitality arm af the Udenna Group, which
includes Lapulapu Leigure, Inc., Clark Grand Leisure Corp., and Donatefa Hetel Panglao
Corp. LapuLapu Leisure is the devaloper of The Emerald Bay, an integrated tourism resort
o be located In Mactan Island, Lapu-Lapu City, Cabu, Fhilipplines, On May 3, 2017,
LapulLapu Lefsure and UDEVCO were granted a provisional license by the Philippine
Amusermnent end Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR®) o establish The Emarald Bay on a

co prime beachfront area on Lapu-Lapu City, Macten Island, Cebu, In July 2018, upon the

request of the Company, PAGCOR approved the subsfitilion of Lapulepu Land Corp. as a
- nenw co-liceness of The Emerald Bay Provisicnal License in place of UDEVCO. The

- Emerald Bay will be located on a 13.5-hectare site located on the Punta Engafin peninsula
.- of Mactan lsland, which 8 approximately six kilometers away from Mectan-Cebu

2 nbernational Airport {MCIA)Y (CEB}. Lapulapu Leisure lesses the site on which The

-~ Emerald Bay will be located frem Lapulapu Land Corp. Construction of The Emerald Bay
commenced in December 2017 and is expecied o be completed in lime for the antlmpated
" gpening of The Emerald Bay in the third quarier of 2020,

CGLC is the daveloper of The Base, an integrated tourism resort to be located in Clark
Global City, Clark Fresporl Zone, Pampanga. O August § 2018, CELG was granted a
pravisional license by PAGCOR to establish The Base in Glark Global Clty, The Base will
e Ipcated an a 4.4-hactare site lacated in Clark Global City, Clark: Fresport Zane, which is



approximately seven kliometers away from the Clark Intemational Airport {(CRK). CGLC
leases the site on which The Base wil be localed from Global Gateway Development
Corporation, Groundbraaking of The Base is scheduled to commance before the end of
2019 and is expected to ba completed by 2022,

PHFG I3 the owner of the Donatela Hotel, & boutique-ste, upscala hote! in Tawala,
Panglae Island, Bohal. DHPC acquired the Donatela Hotel in 2017, The Donatala Hatel
tommenced operalions on Movember 7, 2017 and currenly has 12 upscale villas with
paols, flne-dining rastaurants and a wine cellar. It is localad on a 7.5-hectara property
approximately & 10-minute drive frorn the Bohol-Panglag Intermational Airport {TAG).

The Parent Company's other indirect subsidiaries have no malerial operalions as of the
date of this annuai report.

PH Resorls expacts the Inlegratad Resorts to take advantage of the growing market for
gaming in Asia, as evidenced by Macau, the world’s larges! gaming markst in 2017,
recording tofel casine revenues of USH33.2 billlen in 2017 accerding te The Innovation
Group, franslating to a CAGR of total casino ravenues of 7.9% from 2015 ta 2017, The
Company belisves that the Integraled Resorts will be able to take advantage of this strong
demand by providing an attraciive gaming option for Philippine and reglonal Mass Market
and VIP players, with its combination of high-end dasign, varied gaming and non-gaming
offerings, luxurious amenitles and high-qualily customer service.

The Company belisves that The Emerald Bay and Tha Basa will ba bwo of the Philippines’
premier integrated tourism resort and gaming complexes, offering @ premivm gaming
sxpearience to all of its customers in a gaming facility designed and operated acconding to
world-class standards. Morsover, the Company believes the Dohatela Hotsl will enhancs
the Company's luxury offerings and complement the establishment of The Emerald Bay by
offering additional upscale facilities 1o its gaming and non-gaming guests.

item 3. Propertles

The Emerald Eay

The aggregate fand area for The Emerald Bay site comprises 13.6 hectares. Lapulapu
Land Corp. owns the land on which The Emerald Bay is being construcled following the
purchzse of several lots of land from third parties. Pursuant to the |sase agreements
entered Into in July 2017 and August 2018 (the "Emerald Bay Lease Agreements”),
Lapulapu Leisure hes leased the relevant land from LapuLapu Land Corp, for a period of
25 yaars, subject to renewal for an additional 25 years al the option of Lapulapu Leisure.
The Emerald Bay Leass Agreements wers entered into on arm’s-length arrangements.

The Bass
The Base is kcated In a 4.4-hectare propery in Clark Global Ctty, part of Clark Freapert
Zane in Angeles City, PFampanga. In January 2019, CGLC entered Into-a memeorandum of
agreement with Global Galaway Developmenl Corp., & ]iihully—ﬂwned subsidiary of
UDEVGCO and a related party of the Company {the “Clark MOA”™), pursuarnit to which CGLC
has agreed fo enter inte an egreement to lease the land on which The Base is o be
constructed from Global Gateway Development Corp. by March 1, 2019. Such lesse
agreement would be for the period 1o Aprf 2085, unless it is othermise extended by the
paries pursuant to the terms thereof. The land is owred and controlled by Clark
International Airpart Corp., which has entered into & lsase agreement with Global Gataway
Development Corp., which is due to expire In 2085. Under the Clark MOA, CGILC also has
.+ tha imevocable oplion exercisable within five years from the date of the Iease agre-amant to

7 lease an agditional 2.7 hectares from Glohal Gateway Davek;:-pment Curp o




The Donatela Holef

Tha aggregale land araa of the Donatela Hotal comprises 7.6 hectaras, which is sufficient
for the Donatela Hotel's currend operations and its planned expanslon. The Company has
entered into arrangemenis which would have PH Travel purchase the land, and
gubseguanlly assign the same i favor of DHPC. Apart fromm being 2 standalona upscale
hotel cffering in Bohol, the Dongteta Hotel has also been envisicned fo serve as &
complementary property to The Emerald Bay, offering a quieter, more famiby-friendly option
in closa proximity io The Emerald Bay's gaming and enteartainment offerings. ¥han The
Emarald Bay sommences operations, the Company Is planning to offer a privets ferry
service for guests to and from the two properties, which is a short minety minute boat ride
away fram each other.

Item 4. Legal Proceedings

Nelther the Campany nor any of its subsidiaries are involved In, or the subject of, any legal
proceedings which, if determined adversely 1o the Company or the relevant subsidiary's
Intarasts, would have a material effect on the businese or financial position of tha Gompany or
any of fts subsidiarles.

Item 5. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operation

The information hargin should be read in conjunciion with, and is qualified in its antirety by
reference to the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto containgd in this

Report,

Acquisition of PH Travel Group by PH Resarts through Partial Cash Payment and Share

Swap Transaction
As gt December 28, 2018, the equily share awap transaction between PH Resorts and PH

Travel became offective. Because PH Resoris did not meat the definition of a businass, PH
Travel was deemad to he the acouirer for sccounting purposes.  The acquisitien was
accounted for similar 10 a reverse acquisition following the guidance provided by the standard,
In a reverse acquisition, the legal parent, PH Resorts, is identified as the acquiree for
accounting purposes because based on the substance of the ransaction, the lagal subsidiary,
PH Travel, is adjudged to be the entity that gained control over tha legal parent. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of PH Resorts have been prepared as a conlinuation of
the financial statements of the PH Travel and subsidiaries. The PH Travel Group has
accounted for the acquisition of PH Resorts on December 28, 2018, which was the date when
FH Travel acquired control of PH Resorts,

The comparative financial information for the year ended Dacember 31, 2016 has not been
presented in the conzolidated financial statements as al-companigs within the FH Travel
Group were Incorporated In or after January 2017 and (he éffective date which PH Travel
gained control on PH Resorls as described above was on December 28, 2018 The
consolidated balance sheat as of Decambar 31 '20'1? prasanbted in the consalidated financlal
statements as of Decomber 31, 2018, far comparativa purpases, is retroactively adjustad to
reflect the legal capital {i.e. the number_and ’_cypelof_ capital stock gsued, and additionsl pald-in
capltal) of PH Rasorts. The adjustment, which is the difference betwean the sapital structura
of PH Travel and PH Resons, Is recagnized as part of. equity reserve in the cansalidated
halance sheets a5 of Decamber 31, 20’1& and 291? ﬁaspactwaly

In accounting for this 1ransacuon 1he cunsdidatad F nanclai :nfcrmatmn will reflact the
following: S L



(a) The consolidated assets and liabiitkse of PH Travel Group {legal
subsidiaryfaceounting acquirer) will be recognized and measured al carrying amount
and the assels and liabilities of PH Resorts {legal parent/accounting acquiree) which
only consist of ¢ash and cash equivalents will be recognized and measured at

acquisition cost,

(b} The equity will reflect the combined equity of FH Travel Group and FH Resorts.
Howaver, the |egal capital of PH Travel Group will be efiminated as the legal capital
that will be reflected would be that of PH Reaorts {legat parent):

{23 Tha Inceme statement far the current period should reflect thal of FH Travel for the
full period together with the post-acquisition results of PH Resarts: and

{d) Any differenca batween 1he consideralion transferred by PH Resorts and the |agal
capital of PH Travel Group that is eliminated s reflected as "Equity Reserve”.

Reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial statements of PiH Resorts. The
Farent Cempany financial statements will continue to represent PH Resorts as a stand-alona
entity as of Decamber 31, 2018 and 2017,

The Company |s expected to rely on the following sources of liquidity for the next 12 months:
{1} financing lines provided by various craditors, {2) paid-up gapital, and, to a cerain extent,
{3} cash flow from operations of the Donatela Hotel, The Company knows of no demands,
commitments, events, or uncertainties thal are reasonably likely o resull in & material
increase of decreasa in liquidity.

Please refer to ltem 2 Buainezs lasuer for ohgolng projects.



Results of Operations

Qperating Results for the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2018 Compared to the Year Ended

December 31, 2017
VERTICAL ANALTSIS| HORZONTAL ANALYSIS
For v year Ferthe year
anded, andad, % o Revanues Change I Prior Year
Dacomber ¥ | Degembar 34
2018 217 208 M7 Inc {Dac) S
NET OPERATING REVENUES
Food and beverage 43885,024 - 53% - 43 285,021 100%
Rooims 36,148 BET - 43% - 35,148 627 100%
|Cthern 3,720,304 - 4% - 3720 504 100%
82,758,452 - 190% - 82,758 452 100%
DIRECT COSTS AND EXPENSES
Imventornes consumed 19,78€070 - 24% 19,786 070 100%
Selares and weades 11,272 482 14% 11,2712 482 100%
Chhar costs and axpenses 4 563 837 % 4963537 100%
26.022043 44% 45,022 530 100
GROSE INCOME 40,736 353 - S6% 45,736,383 100%
OPERATING EXPENSES 175,162,104 55,308 275 212% 118,762,529 208%
OPERATING LO3S (1284d5,741)| (D5308,770) -168% (730608 4) 12
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXFENSES)
Iiets 51 sxpenee 1,34 31 15,854,302 -4a% - {65,760,511 ) 4205%
Interest ncome 20843 486 12053 748 250 - &589,738 %
Gain an disposal of a subskdiany §17.037 - 1% - 817,047 1630%
Farign exchenge gain (ssh- net {16,185 103} {18 513/055) 2% . 477 952 -3%
Ciar Inenma (aipenses ) {344,3T5) {4927 0% {294.884) 597%
(TAZ3RHE8)] 120263000 -B3% (58 330 268 2T8%,
LSS BEFJRE INCOME TAX {205.040,800)]  (FEAB1.77A)  -P48% (128,387 83d) 1T1%
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 13,261,873 785,608 23% - 18,466,265 2351%
INETLOGS (224301 582)|  (76447,385]| ~211% (147 854,199) 03t
OTHER COMPREENSIVE INCONE 0% - 0%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOZS {224.301.582]| (76447 363))  -271% {147,054,169) 183%
Banlc and Dllted Loss Per Share [D.7754) {0.3143)




NET OPERATING REVENUES

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group generaled net operating revenygsz
amounting to ®82.4 millon, 2 100% Increased from the previcus perlod ending December 31,
2017, Ineréased in nef operaling revenues is altributable to the opening of Donatala Hote)
located In Bohol which commenced it's commerclal operation In 2018, The hotel curently has
12 upscale villas with pools, fine-ding reslaurants and wina callar. The Group ta dale has
anly ang oparational busineas throughaut the year 2018 with main contribution of Donztela
Hotel. Other tourism and hospitality projects of the Group are still in the process or
conslructian. With the opening and firet year commerglal aperation of Dongtela Hotel, the
Group posted total net aperating revenue In varous hotel services which composed of foed
and boverage services amounting 1o P43.89 milion and room accomodallon services
amauniing to B35,15 million representing 53% and 43%. respectively, Cther hotel revenues
generated amounted to R3.7Z2 milion which represents 4% of the total net operating
revenues.

DIRECT COST AND EXPENSES

Pirect cost and expense of the Group for the period ended December 31, 2018 increased [k
R36.02 million which shows a ratio of 44% based on net oporating revenyes genarated |
Increased I3 generally attributable {o the commencement of operation of Denatela Hotel which
is in line with increased in revenues. Donatels Hotel is the only hetel arm of the Group which
started its operation throughout 2018, thus all direct cost and expenses incurred is a result of
the Group’s operation funclion of the hotel. No direct expansss wara Incurred for the pravious
year ended December 31, 2017,

Invanforiss consurnad

For the perod ended December 31, 2018, the Group's reported inventoriss consumption
amounting o RF19.79 million representing 55% of the tolal direct operating cost and 24%
based on revenues. These consumption Is malnly atirbutable to the operations of the
restaurants and bars of the holel in which guest ara hefng accammodated.

Salar]

For the period ended December 31, 2018, {he Group incumed tofal salarles and wages
expanses amounting ko E11.27 millicnh representing short terin benefits to it's employess
directly invelved in providing hotel services and food and beverages. The salaries and wages
expenses represents 31% of the total direct opearating cost and 14%basad an revenues.

Othet gostand expenses

Other cost and sxpensss incwred Tor the pariod ended December 31, 2018 amounted to P
4.97 mllllon which represents 14% of total direct cost and 6% based on revenues, Increased
in expenses is brought by commisions and olher deparfmental axpenses incurrad an Ihe
operation of the hotel. Refer to Note 14 of the audited financial statement for detailed
breakdown of othar expanses.

OPERATING EXPENSES .

The Group reported operating expenses amounting to B175.1 mllion for the year ended
December 31, 2018 resuling to Increasad by B119.76 milllen or an increased by 216% year
on ysar. Increased is mainly attributable to the commencement and ongoing eonstruction
related expensas of the The Emeraid Hotal and Casine and operaticns of Donatela Hatel.

Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages for the period anded Decamber 31, 2018 incraazed to RPE3.71 millian
representing 38% of total operaling expenses. Increased in expenses I3 atfribulable to fabor
expenses Incumed In the conatruction of The Emerald Hotel and Casine as well as
rationalization of manpower rtequirements for the supervision, management, direction and
administration of the praject. '

Taxes and lleenses
Taxes and licenses for the pennd en:ﬂed Becembar 31, 2018 increased to P34.80 million

vepresenting 20% of the total operating expense. Such Increased is atfrtbutable to payment of



share issuance related expenses, documentary stamp taxes and other permits, taxes and
licenses related to borrowings and construction of The Emerald Hotel and Casine.

DOther operating expenses
Of the total operating cost, expenses incurred representing 44% includes expenses related to

the operation of Donatela Hotel such 2s management feas, profassional fees transportation,
utillies expense and other operational expenses, Refer to Mote 15 of the audiled financial
statement for the detailed composition of balances.

NONOPERATING EXPENSES

Interest Expense
Interesi expense (net of capialized interest) represents interest charges for borrowings made

from banks for short term, long term and morigage loans. The Groups' Inferesl expense
Increased by RG5.70 million same as 420% increased from pravious year andad Decembar
31, 2017, In 2018, the company i)entered into bridge loan agreement to extend the tenor of
loan with the purposs of funding the escrow acceunt as required by PAGCOR. and fasilitate
construction of The Emsrald Hotel and Casino and iijabtained long tarm loan agreement with
a bank to refinance the acguisilion of Donatela Hotel resart,

Interest income

Interest income increased to B20.84 million for the period endad Dacember 31, 2018 same as
71% increased year on year compariscn. Increased is attibutable to Interest Ihcome
recognized from escrow account openad by the Group to finance construction of The Emaerald

Hotel and Casina.

Foreign exchange gain/ (loss)

Fareign exchange gainfloss for the perlod has only minimal movemeant amounting to R0.43
million same as 3% decreased year on year. Foreign exchanga loss racognized by tha Group
was influenced by substantial holdings of U.S dollar denom nated escrow account In 2018
and cash in bank in 2017.

n both years, foreign denominated cash in bank and escrow account of the Gioup were
exposed {0 short term fluctuations of exchange rates due to strengthsning of Pesc to US
dollar towards year end resulting to foreign exchange loss.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX

The Group reported increased in provision for income tax mainly due to recognition of
deferred tax liabilities on debt issuance cost. The deforred lax liabilities will be amorlized over
the term of the loan which will benefit the Group In the succeading periods by redusing the

current tax Fahilties,

NET LOSS
The Graup incurred net loss for the period amaunting to P224,30 milllion. Thiz reprazents

Increased in net loss by 193% year-on-year samea as increased in nst (053 by Php147.85
million. Loss for the period is attributable to expenses ralated to the ongoing construction of
The Emerald Hotel and Casine, nkerest expanses incurred to finance the project of the Graup
and operational expensas of Donatala Hotal.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The less per share increased from R0.31d3 from December 31, 2017 to BO.7754 for

December 31, 2018. Increasad in loss per share is dua to highar net loss posted by the Group
for the period then ended. :




Flnancial Position
(Comparison of Dacember 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017}

HORIZDHTAL ANALYSS YERTIAL ANALYGIS
Dacambar 31 Movewout from prioryear %of Tolal AssdaLlablifeshEmly

oM AT Changa i Peso Changain % 2k 217
ASSETS
Camrant Awts
Cash ared Cash o) dyalents FOBBROISIES| M G5ETIE PSRBT M5% {0L07% L%
Trade and ahher recchabias 1398 554 B, 124,797 4362087 1Tk 1.21% 0.27%
Advenoes to related perties 45 063, 343 943 06 RG AR 4Th (16E% 1500%
Irenitmiss 1,701 268 - 1,081,388 100% 0.43% 0.00%
Reticiad Ond 135,265 985 - 110,66508 10% 205% 0.00%
Prapapman s and ather gurent sssel 6253121 3,077 481 £O,485,640)  1H5E% 0508, {.13%
Total Cume psats 50, 182037 526,183,316 4M B0 TR M 1264 228
Nomcarrent Assats
Propary, piant and equipmeni 3,652, 279 A62 AroinOny  3dmadmes  Fa0W 5.0 20.3%5%
Duposit for Rilure proparty acquisHian 111,430,404 A0RTA%]  [PRI6NATIE 6% 1.63% 20.22%
Cash In o 151868, 77 51,13, BB ERA00d 808 75 0% EVRIS
put velve-aok e ta 200 192,336 73114 ERLEMT 1™ L% {.93%
Ihdkancas to auppllars M3 3 AT &4, 242 255 120,024,062  153% LM% L62%
Dofarmad tax assat 80414 GOR 1R  -I0% .0 002
Qthat nantuTant aasaT 16,347, 149,786 R19E12 WE% 0.3% 0.03%
Todz! Noncurmend Assals 0,866 48T, 104 10011 B8 4 0ARMEAT0 2% B0 TrASH
TOTAl ASSETS FGRIGGH 198 P 252 164366 P 4400284330  103% TG LT
LIABIUTIES AND ECLNTY
Curren Liabilties
Cument porlion of laans payalle P OABMOARON P R4 124 504 P 204N 123% 54 480% T4
Accounts payahle end slher curenl Nabllifles 297,251,283 125,533,173 AT ME% B.4T% Btk
Achaness Fam related parss 1,278 332 675 e R T T 18, 76% 5,56
Total Corverd LiabHice 526195042  1i4pniRl  3EZLIFSET? 1804 81 1155 B1.78%
Namcurrant Lahilit as
Honzunent partion of Inane payable i, Bed, baa 767,08 95«1,1]?5,9?4 123406%, 14.5% 0.05%
Retantisn paysate 85 FT6.480 - B.T0408  100% 120% 0.004
Deferrad 16m Fabllllns 16, M4 71 - 15,544,701 100% LI1%% 0%
Tolal Moreurant Liabilies 1,068, 2058.232 BT LLER4EA, 143 1353TE% 15 H% 0.03%
Total Lizkod tlex BES2AALIM M B122  4ARITAEROSS  DdAN OE.63% 2%
Bqulty
Woapital stack 4,35 340,413 MM 4 4RA49308 1RO B, 244 10.45%
Addtienal palddn capltal - 59,07 (BEO73E2)  -100% 0% 2.40%
Equity rasare {4,050, 000, 00 SIOTTEGE (4 10ZATZA56) AR | SEAT% 2 8%
Rztaned eamings [defieH) (19,721,612 Ba2omody  (178980385F -260% 162% 20T%
ot Equity 226,168,001 4ZLEZE? 19TSReE 4% 8% 18,1554
TOTAL LIABILITIES AMD EQUITY F GBIESME,195 P SLAIEARE 440 LI 1ETR 100.00% M.
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The total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2018 significartly increased by B4.50
billion ar by 183% compared to the prior yvear balance of F2.33 billion. The assets, lisbilities
and equily presented in the balance shest as at Decomber 31, 2018 and 2017 resulted mainly
from the business acquisitions and group restructuring, capital investments, project
conatructions, loan borrowlngs and pre-operaling activities of the Group.

Gurment Asaels

The Group's curent assets increased by 81% from B525,19 million as of Dacamber 31, 2017
to ®950.18 million as of December 31, 2018. The substantlal Increase in current assals In
2018 is attribulabie 1o the increase in czsh and cash equivalants by 315%, rade and othar
recelvables by 173%, Inventorles by 100%, restricted fund by 100% and prepayments sind
other current assets by 1,367% which wera partially offset by the decrease in advances to
ralsted parties compared to the prior vear 2017,

Cash and cash equivalents increesed to FG26.35 millon as of December 31, 2018 from B
166.58 millen as of Decembar 31, 2016, This is equivalent to 315% increase dus ta the
additional loan borrowings obtained from several lenders and advances recealved from related
parties. Morsover, the increase was primarily resulted from the net cash inflows provided by
the finangcing activitkes as presented in the Group's consolidated cash flows as shown in the
“Liquidity and Gapilal Sources” section.

Trade and other receivables incressed by B3.88 millon a8 of December 31, 2018. The
increass is atiributable to the frade receivables resulted from the business operations of
DHPC and the culstanding recelvable amounted {o B10.0 milign from the sale of AAPIL.

Advances to related paries decreased by 8T% or by B308.24 million primarly 8s a result of
the collactions of advances auistanding during the year and for the priar year 2017,

Inventorles consists of food, beverage and operating supplles which hereased by 100% or by
F1.76 million as of Decembear 31, 2018 from nil as of Decamber 31, 2017. The inventaries
accourt |s attributable to DHPC'a business aperations which started only in 2018,

Restricted fund zmounted to 135,96 million as of Decamber 31, 2018 az a result of the
proceeds of the shortterm loans and was hald in the construction costs accourt which will be
raleasad in installments upen presentation of invoicas for the payment of relevant project
construction costs,

Prapayments and other current assets significantly Increased to R82.68 million as of
Decambar 31, 2018 from R3.08 miion as of Decembear 31, 2017 due to the increases in
prepald expenses parllcularly on prepald rental payments on the lease of the land. There Is
alse an increase in 1he payments made 85 security and rentals deposits for various
conlracts o suppliers.

Noncurrant Assets

The Group's noncurrent assels increased by EB4.07 billion from ®1.80 billion as of December
31, 217 to  P5.AT billion as of December 31, 2018, The significant increase in nencurrent
assels is attributable lo the Increass in property, plant and equipmeant by 730%, cash i
ascrow by 768%, input valug-added tax by 1,187%, advances to suppliers by 153% and other
nencurrent assets by 10,147%, which were partially reduced by the decrease in the depaosit
for fulurs properky acquisition and deferred tax asset compared to the prior year 2017,

Froperty, planl and equipment increased to B3 .93 billion as of Decembier 31, 2018 from B
473.81 million as of December 31, 2017 due to the acquisition of the Donatela properties In
Behol and the accumulated costs incurred from the on-going censtruction of The Emerald

Bay. '

Deposit for future property acquisition decreased to 111,43 million &3 of Deceinber 3, 2016
from R470.69 million as of December 31, 2017. The deposit for acquisition of the Donatela
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properies wae already reclassified as cosis of the property, plant end equipment as the deed
of absolule sale was executed in August 2018. The decrease was parilally offset by the
additional deposit made by DPRC o acquire various parcels of land in Lanang, Davao Gity.

Cash in escrow increased by ®564.00 million or by 76% as of December 31, 2018 stibutable
to the new escrow fund maintained by GGLC primarily 1o meet the requirements of the
License Agreement with Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporafion (PAGCOR) in
relation fo ils invastment commitmaents.,

Input-value added tax increased to R280.12 million as of December 21, 2018 from B21{.76
million as of December 31, 2017. The Increase was mainly dus to the increasa in VAT paid
on purchases of goods and services of the Group which will be utilized against the Group's

outpul VAT,

Advances to suppliers Increased to B213.33 million 23 of December 31, 20158 from #8424
million as of December 31, 2017 which was attribulable 1o the increase in the construction
eost reguirements of the L3 project.

The defarred tax asset decreasad to nil as of Decembier 341, 2018 since the deferred tax asget
far 2018 was presented as an offsel to the delerred 1ax llablitles In the balance sheet. The
deferred lzx liabilities were much higher than the defarred tax ssset (n 2018,

Cther noncwrent assets increased to F15.35 million as of Dacember 31, 2018 from B(.15
million as of December 31, 2017. The increase was due to the increase in the long-term

security deposits made (¢ suppliers and other long-temn prepaym ants.
Current Liabilities

The Group's cument lfabilities increased by R3.62 billien fram B1.90 hilfion as of
December 3, 2017 fo  ®5.53 billion as of Decamber 31, 2018, The significant incraase in
current liabilities is attributable to the Increase in current portion of lozans pavable by 133%,
accourds pavable and other current liabilities by 216%, and advances from related parties by
888% cornpared to the prior year 2017,

Curranl portion of loans paysble increasad to B3.45 hillion as of December 31, 2018 from B
1.656 bliticn as of December 31, 2017. The incresse was attribiiable to the short-term oans
reffnanced and additional drawdown of ®2.2 hillion was made and used to fund the
construction of The Emerald Bay project on November 26, 201B.

Accounts payeble and other current ligbilities increased to ®397.25 millon as of Decembar
31, 2018 from RP125.53 milion as of December 31, 2017 because of the increase in
outslanding payable lo contractors, acerued expenses such as accrued Interast and taxes,
manzagement fees payable and advances from customers.

Noncurrent Liabllities

The Group's noncurrent ligbilities increased by Wt1.07 hilion from R0.7¢ millon as of
December 31, 2017 to R1.07 billion as of December 31, 2018. The significant increase in
noncurrent llabilities compared to the prior year 2017 ig atiributable 1o the increase in the
nencyrrant parfion of koans payable by ®264.08 million, retention payable by P85.78 million,
and deferrad tax liabilities by P15.84 milion,

Nencurrent portion of loans payable increased by R64.08 million from BD.79 millllon as of
December 31, 2017 tv FD64.96 miltion as of December 31, 2018. The increase was
attributable to long-term koans payable availed by DHPC on September 3, 2018 to refinance
the acquisition of the hotel and resort in Bohol, net of debt issuance costs to be amortized
within the term of the lvan. A
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Retention payable amounted lo RE5.78 milion as of Decernber 31, 2018, This consists of
outstanding payablas to suppliers and eontracfors related to the construction of The Emarald

Bay project,

Daferred tax llablitles increased to B15.64 milllon as of December 31, 2018 as a resulf of the
deferred tax sffect of the debl issuance costs related to the short-tsrm and long-term loans
evailed in 2018 and the deferred tax on unrealized forgign exchange gain, net of any deferred
tax assats recognized.

Equity

The Group's equity decreased by R167.38 milion from R423.55 milion as of Dacember 31,
2017 to B226.17 milion as of Dacember 31, 2018. The decreasa in equity is attributable to
the effect of the reverse acquisition resulting to the recognition of negatlve equity reserve
amounted to B4.05 billion ofisatting the increase in capital stock. In axdidition, the Group alsc
ingurrad net losses or defigit in 2018 resolting from the Group's pre-aperating and non-
operating expensas. Share issuance costs were also Incurred which reduced the amount of
additional pard-in capital to nil in 2018.

Capital steck increased to @4 38 billicn as of Decamber 31, 2012 from B243.24 million as of
December 31, 2017 as a result of the shares swap transactian between PH Resorts and
Udanna which was fully completed on December 26, 2018. A total of 4.14 billion shares of PH
Resorts was issued at B1.00 par value per share for a tolal share swap consideration of
®4.14 billion. In addition, on Decembsr 21, 2018, 406.38 mllllon shares wera subscribed with
a par value of #1.00 par shara.

Subscription receivables amounted to R406.38 milion as of December 31, 2018 was
uncellected and is preaented as a confra-equity accound In the balance sheet. Thus, the effect
in equity of the subscription of shares on Degember 31, 2018 was nil.

Additlonal paid-in capital decreased to nil as of Decamber 31, 2018 from R3E.07 milfan as of
December 31, 2017 which was atfributable fo the share lssuance costs amounted to BGS.16
milllon and incurred by the Group In relation to the shares swap transaction betwesn PH
Resorts and Udenna, of which P58.07 million was presented as a direct deduction in the
additlonal paid-in capital while B11.08 milion was presenied as & direst deduction In the
ratained eamings as at Decambar 31, 2018.

Equity reserve amountad to B4.05 billion resultad frem the shares swap Iransaction executed
on December 28, 2018. Moreover, the transactlon was sccounted for slmilar fo a reverse
acquisilion. The equity reserve represents the net difference between the cost of PH Resorts
to scquire PH Travel Group and ihe legel capitel of the latier at the date of reverse
acquisitlon. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of PH Resarts have bean
prepared a8 a continuation of the financial statemeante of the PH Travel and subsidiaries.
Thus, for 2017, an equlty reserve amounted to ®52. 98 million was recognized to account the
difference inthe prior year balances after the effect of the reverse acquisifion.

The retained sarnings amounted te FG0.26 million as of Detember 31, 2M7 decreasad and
resulted 1o a defict amounted to B110.72 million as of December 31, 2018. The deficit is
attributable o the nel comprahensive loss reported of 224,30 million and share issuance
costs amounted to B11.08 milkion, nel of ihe effect of reverse scquisition of RS540 million.

Financlal Risk
Flazase refer to Notes 19 and 20 of e Notes to Cansolidatad Financial Statemeants for He

dascriplion, classtfication and measurements applied for financkal Instruments and Hhe
financial risk management ohjectives and policies of the group.
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Key Performance Indicators

. PROFITABILITY

Basic Loss per Shars =

It Ia the rough measursmant of the
amount af a compary's profit thet
zan ba alloceted to one share of its
slock.

Return on Total Assets =

It measuras afficlsncy of the Group
in using its assats o ganarate ned
income.

Return an Equity =

Itis & measure of profabllity of
glockholders’ Investmesis, it shows
net Income as percentage of
sharahalkier equfty.

December
2013 2017
[Wetincome — Prafened

dividancs) (224,301,582) {78,447,383)
Waighted average number of 300,003 B10 243 241 8504

cornrmgn shares ouistandng
{0747 {0.3143}

NI+ {irferest exp x {1-tax

tatel} [2R1,250.02 1) (B87,405,394)
Ave, Tolal Assets 4,573,526,227  2,328,364,85¢
({0.0615) (0.0375)
Annual Met incomefLoss (234,301,582) (76,447 383

Ave, Stockhaolder's Equily

Il. FINANCIAL LEVERAGE

Debt Ratio =

Itis & maeasure of prafitability of
stockholclers' Imvastmants. (L shows
nat income as parcentage of
shareholder equily.

Debt 1o Equity _
Ratlo B

It measuras the dagree lo which tha
assets of the business ars financed

by the debis and the shareholders’
aquity of a business

324,860,422 423,552,617

{0.8RAS) [0.1208)

Tedal Liabilies 6502481 194 1,904,812, 29
Total Assats 5,818,840 185 2,328,364 856
0.08GS 08181

Total Liahilitias 8,502 431 154 1,904 812220
Sharehald=r’s Equilty 22_6. 168,0H 423 552,617
29,1486 44972
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MARKET YALUATION

Marlief valuafshare 5.45 B.15
Price to Bocok Ratlo =
Book valuedshare .05 1.74
Relatea the Groug's stock markat
value to ita book val r sh
fa book value per share 106,71 3.62
Y. LICHROITY
Curvand assats 050,182,067 B96,193,318
Current Ratio =
Curreni liabRas 5526,195.962 1.204,025150
[t measures the Group's ablity o
pay its cument linbiliies with cash
L1718 0.2758

generated from ita current saseta.

Liquldity and Capital Structure

The Group's sources and uses of funds and the CGroup's debt and aquity proflle will be

discussed belaw.

Liquidity

Below is the table of consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year ended Decernbear 31,

2018 arnd 2017,

For tha Year Endad Dacember 31 Mowvement ffor priar peind

2018 a7 Change In Pase Changa in'H

Mel cash provided by fused in) operaling acivities P 372,248,002) (P 285477 856) P E5T7A25. 0880 2M%
Met cash used in inesting actiilies 19,958, 704, 70 (1,785,570,819)| (2173134218 122%
Mat cash prondded by Snancing actiibes 4 069,803,063 2,745, 848,08 1,016,854, 7858 A%
Mat incraswa in cash and cash equivalents 483, 346 X715 182,133,783 a0, 146,482 1655%
Effact of fraigh axchangs on cash and oaah aguwlents 473280 {16,613,065) 17,086,3351  -103%
Cash and cash equivalents at baglnning of period - |

effact of rverse acqulsition 37,440,093 STA40.098  100%
Cash and cagh equhalenta gt bepinning of partod 185,586,738 — 166,500,738  100%
Cash and cash aqulvalents at and of perlod P 356,846,085 * 15L.655,738 a2l 258,647 HE%
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Cash and cash equivalents increased by B321.26 million or by 315% from R165.58 million as
of Decembear 31, 2017 ta RE86_85 million as of December 31, 2018. The significant incraase
is attributable to tha nat cash provided in operating activities and the net cash provided by
financing activities which parllally offsel the net cash used in Investing activities. As a result of
the reverse aoquisiion, PH Resorts’ cash and cash equivalents ag at the date of reverse
acquisilon, Decambear 26, 2018, was recognized as a cash inflow amountad o B37.44 million
in the consolidaled cash flows of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018,

The ned cash provided by operaling activites amounted to R372 28 mllllon for the year ended
Decembar 31, 2018 rosulled from the collection of advances to related parties by R339.61
million from R3561.40 millien as of Decembear 31, Z2M7; and the increase in oulstanding
accounts payable and other current liabilties by ®209.19 million for the year ended Decembar
31, 2018.

The net cash used in investing activities amounted to ®3.28 billion for the year ended
Decamber 31, 2018 and R1.70 billion for the vear ended December 31, 2017. Thege Investing
activitles Include the acquisiion of propedy, plant and equipment; Increase in noncurrant
assets such as advances to suppliers, Inpt value-added tax, and ofher noncurrent aszets;
trensfer of cash to eacrow fund as part of PAGCOR requirements: and the cash darecognizad
as a result of the decansolidation of 2 subsidiary. These were parfially reduced by the interest
Incoma sarned and the decrease In the deposlt for futura property acquisition.

The nel cash provided by financing activities amounted to ®4.07 billion for the year enced
Decarmber 31, 2018 and ®2.25 billion for Ihe year ended Decembar 31, 2017. Thesa financing
aclivities mainly represent the advances recelved from related parties; increase in retention
payahble; proceeds from [oan borrowings, net of payments made; and the proceeds from {he
issuance of capital stock. These were parly lessened by the share issuance costs and debt
issuance costs for the year 2018,

Capital Sources

Balow is the table showing Ihe Group™ capital sourcas as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

For the ¥Year Ended Decomibar 3 Elovennent from prior perlod

it iy Charge in Pess  Thangs i %
Lanecturm et net P oEgARATEI @ 77 085 964 076974 1204869 |
E gty 235 168,276 ISR TR (F A.NT) AT ]
Toidl fong-term debt and eulty 10102080 P 424300706 Tee.RO2A83 Rt

Total long-term debt and equity increased by B786.70 million from R424.34 million for the
year 2017 and 1,19 hllion for the vear 2018, The increase was attributable to the long-term
lean borrowings oblzined by the Group in 2018 and partially reduced by tha net loss incurred
hy the Greup far the year ended Decembar 31, 2018,

Refer to Note 13 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the detaifed
discussian.
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Evants that will trigger Direct or Contingent Financial Obligation that is Mataral to the
Company, including any Default or Acceleration of an Obligation

Mong

Materlal Off-Balanca Shest Transactions, Arrangements, Obligations (including
Contingent Oblfyations), and Other Relatlonships of the Company with Unconsslidated
Entities or Other Persons created durlng the Reporting Pevied

Mone

Known Trends, Demands, Commitmants, Evenis or Uncaeriaintles that will have a
Matedal Impact on Llquidity or that are reasonably expescled tc have 2 Matarlal
Favorabla or Unfavorable Impact on Nat Sales/Revenuse/lncoma from Continuing

Operations

Mone

Cause for any Material Changes from period to period which shall include Vertical and
Horizontal Analyses of any Matarial lterm

This is already incorporated in the discussion under 'Results of Operations® and "Financial
Position”.

Seasonal Aspecis that has a Material Effect on 1he Financial Statemeants

None

Materlal Commitmanitz Tor Capltal Expenditures, Gensral Purppbse of susch
Commitmants, Expected Sources of Funds for such Expenditures

Tha Group has budgeted R34,177.0 million a3 the total cost associated with developing the
firsl phase of The Emerald Bay and P12670.8 millon =3 the total cosl assoclated with
developing the Clark Resort,

These projects are currently funded by the Cempany's existing equity of #1,906.4 million and
approxkimately B33,493,5 million is expected to be funded by debt. The Company already has
®3,888.7 millon In committag) loan facllities, comprising R3,100.0 milllen and R788.7 millien
under its faciliies wilh China Bank =nd is in e asdvanced stagas of nagotiating additional
-financing lines from various creditors, part of the procesds ef which will be used to in part
refinance the Company's existing committed loan facliities.

Any Significant Elemanis of Income or Loss that did not arise from Continufng
Operations

MNone
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Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure

There wera no significant changes in and disagreaments with acocountants on accounding and
flnanecial disclosures.

Restatameant of Accounts

None

Market Information

There are 243,241,501 common shares of the Company thal are listed on the Phillppine
Stock Exchange. There are 4,550,025 000 commaeon shares 1hat are issued and sutstanding
shares but are currently not listed in any exchange.

The high and low sales prices for each quarler within the last lwo years for each quarter are
Indicated in the table balow:

Quarter High Low
19 gquarter 2018 7.93 4.55
4% quarter 2018 5.80 418
3 quarter 2018 7.5 4.80
27 quarter 2018 T7.05 4.78
1% quarter 2018 6.80 5.00
4 quarter 2017 10.80 £.85
3™ quarler 2017 9.80 5.80
2nd quarter 2017 6.70 3.50
1% quarter 2017 3.95 3.68

The price of the shares as of 1 April 2018, or the |atest practiceble trading date, is P4.78 per
share. The market capitalization ¢f PHR a3 of 31 December 2018, based on the closing price
oh 28 December 2018 of F5.45 per share is B26,123 302,446 80. As of 31 Dacember 2017,
PHR's market capitalization stood &t R1,493,502,835 hased on the closing price of 5614 pear
sharg and a total issued and outstanding capital stock of 243,241,504 common shares.

Holders

As of 31 December 2018, the Company has over 100 beneficial shareholders. The top 20
sharsholders are the followlng:

Sharaholder Number of  Common | % of Dwnerahip
Sharas Subscrbad

Ldenna Corporation 4,313,927.702 80.00%
Novel Edge Investments | 225,283,530 4.70%
Limited
Conrado Rafael C. Alcantare | 95,865,330 1.99%
Marco Angelo G. Alcartara 85,227,831 1.78%
PCD Nominae Corp. | 60,003,822 1.39%
{Filipinc)
PCD Nomines Comp. {Non- | 12,759 801 ' G.27%
Flllpino) o
Yu Kok Sea 106,272 (.04%
Marclal T. Asturias 7,200 0.00%
Willigm W. Yap 5,300 o (.00%
Rogelio N_ Fascua a4 _0.00%

| Miguet de Castro Marana /| 3,000 e OO0%




Bituin de Castro Marana

Lillan G. Morglos 2,160 0.00%
Eric &, Reclo 1,000 .00%
Vicente L. Pang 432 0.00%
Shareholders Association of | 100 0.00%
tha Philippines

Dondi R. Limengca 111 0.00%
Nathaniel Au ITF Marcus Li 79 G.00%
Ernesto S. Isia 2 0.00%
Dexter E. Quiniana 2 0.00%
Dennis &, Uy 1 0.00%
Dividends

On 20 Februery 2018, the BOD of Philippine H20 Ventures Corp. declared cash dividends
amounting to 58,000,000 or ®0.42 per share out of the retaed samings as of 31 Dacember
2017,

Recent Sales of Unregisterad or Exempt Securities including Recent Issusnce of
Sacuritles Conatituting an Exempt Transaction

On 28 December 2018, the Company issued o tatal of 4,560, 035,000 shares, 4,143 848 300
af which wers isstied to Udenna Corporation and the balance of 406,376,691 to other
subscribers.

External Audit Fees

Constenting Cuadsalguiver and Co. {*CGLe"), independent certifled public accountarts,
audited lhe Company's consclidated financial statements without qualification as of and for

the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015, included in this report.

With the change of ownership and management, Audit Gommittee appointed Sycip, Gorras,
Velaye and Co. {("SGV"), independent certified public accountants, as the new sexbernal
audilor.  5GVY audited the Company's consolidated financial statements without qualification
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, included in this report.

Maria Pilar Hernandez is the current audit partner faor the Coampany and B3 subsidiares.
Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 3, Saries of 2003, the Company will either
change its Extarmal Auditor or rotate the angagement partnar svery five (b) yaars.

Thare have been no disagreements between the Company and SGV over the length of their
relationship with regard to any matter invalving accounting prinsiples or practices, financial
statement disclosuras, and audiing scopa and pr_cu»:'.eduras.

SGV has nather sharsholdings in the Company nor any right, whether legally enforceable or
fol, to neminate persons ar to subscrbe for the secunties in the Company. SGV will not
receive any direct or indirect interest in the Company or In.any securities theraof (including
optians, warranls, or rights thereta). The foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines sef bythe" Board of Accountaney and
approved by the Professlonal Regulation Cammission.

In conneclion with the audit of the Company's financlal statements, the Audit Cormmittes bad,
among other acllivitles, (2) svaluated significant issues reported by the extemnal suditor in
refation to tha adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of poligies, conlrols, processes and
activities of the-Company; (b) stisured (hat no other work is provided by the external auditor

1%




that would impair its independencs and conflict with #s function as Independent eccountants;
gnd {¢} ensured the compllance of the Company wih acceptable auditing and sccounting
standards and regulztions.

The exiernda audit service fees amounted to B2 50 million in 2018 and 2048 million in 2017
for the professional services rendered for the audit of the PH Resorts and its subsidlaries far
their anmual consolidated arnd standalone financial stalaments. The axtermal review service
fees amounted to B4.55 mllllon in 2018 and nil In 2017 for the review of the inferim and
proforma financial stalaments. Other non-audit sarvice fess amountad 1o m0.16 milllen In
2014 and BD.O3 millllgn In 2017 for the agreed-upon procedures engagements related to
PAGCOR's DE ratio cerification compllance. Qut-of-pocket expenses werg incurrad
amounted to B0.32 million in 2018 and nil in 2017 related to the other costs incurred
incidental to the servicas efgagements,

The services are thase normally provided by the external auditer in connection with statutory
end regulatory filings or engagements. There had baen no consulting or tax engagements

with SGV.
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MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF
PHILIPPINE H20 VENTURES CORP.

Held at Seda Hotel, Vertis North, Quezon City
On 25 June 2018

PRESENT

Dennis A. Uy

Cherylyn C. Uy

Raymundoe Martin M. Escalona
Lara . Lorenzana

Jose Angel Sueiro

L.eandro E. Abarquez

PROCEEDINGS

l. OPENING PRAYER AND CALL TO ORDER

After the opaning prayer led by the Chairman, Mr. Dennis A. Uy, he called the
meeting to order and presided over the same. The Gorporate Secretary, Atty.
Leandro E. Abarquez, recerded the minutes.

1. CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM

The Comorate Secretary cettified that notice of the meeting of the Board was
sent to all the directors of the Corporation, that at least a majarityof the directors
were present, and that thers was therefore a quorum to transact business in the
meeting.

. READING AND APPROVAL OF THE
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS

After reading the minutes of the regular meeting cf the Board of Directorsheld
on 1 June 2018, upon motion made and secconded, the directors approved the said

minutes as presented to them.

. ITEMS FOR APPROVAL

LUpon motion made and seconded, the Board passed and approved the
following resolutions:

4.1 Awhority to issue common shares out of the proposed increase in
capital stock



"RESOLVED, that the Corporation be, as it is hereby
authorized, to issue 4,143,548,209 common shares out of the
proposed increase In authorized capifal stock fo Udenna
Corporation, in exchange for the assignment by Udenna
Carporation of 455,348,000 shares of PH Travel and Leisure
Holdings Corp.

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Corporation be, as it is
hereby authorized, o issue 406,351,681 common shares, or
such number of shares to ensure continued compliance of the
Corporation of its minimum public float, aut of the shares of the
proposed increase in authorized capital stack to unrelated and
unaffiliated third parties to be identified by the President of the
Company.

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that Raymundo Martin
Eacalona, President of the Company, shall be, as he is hereby
authorized, to execute and sign, for and on behalf of the
Company, documents as may be necessary including but not
limited to the Deed of Assignment, cerdifications, authorization
letters, BIR Forms, etc., to implement the transfer of shares of
stock of the Company in exchange for the shares of stock of
Udenna Corporation in PH Travel and Leisure Heldings Corp.

“RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the foregoing resolution
shall continue and remain in full foerce and eflect until repealed
andfor amended by subsequent resolutions of the Board of

Directors.”
4.2  Authority to purchase shares of PH Travel and Leisure Holdings Corp.

*RESOLVED, that the Corporation is hereby authorized
and empowered to purchase 44,654 000 shares of PH Travel
and Leisure Holdings Cormp. from Udenna Corporation and
execute the appropriate Deed of Assignment for the purchase of

such shares,

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the President of the
Corporation, NMr. Raymundo Martin Escalona, be as hs is
hereby, authcrized and empowered, with Ml power of
delegation, for and on behalf of the Corporation to execute, sign
and deliver the Deed of Assignment and 1o take such action and
to execute and deliver any and all such agreements, transaction
documents, instruments, certificates, notices  and/or
communications in connection with the Deed of Assignment as
may be considered necessary or desirable to accomplish the
purpeses of these resolutions and to perform fully and effectively
the transactions contemplated thereby.”



4.3 Designation of Authorized Reprasentative to sign the Listing Application
of the Swap Shares and Authority to electronically lodge the swap shares with
the Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation (*FDTC")

“WHEREAS, the Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 25

June 2018, authorized the Corporation to issue 4,143,648,309
comman shares out of the proposed increase in its authorized
capital stock (the “Swap Shares™ to Udenna Corporation, in
exchange for the assignment of Udenna Corporation of
455346 000 common shares of PH Travel and Leisure
Heldings Corp. (the “Share Swap Transaction”);

‘NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESCLVED, AS IT HEREBY
RESOLVED, that, in the implementation of the Share Swap
Transaction, the Corporation is heraby authorized to apply with
the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) for listing of the Swap
Shares, subject to the registration requirements of the
Securities and  Exchange Commission and the listing
requirements of tha PSE; '

"*RESOLVED, FURTHER, that, in connaction with the application

far listing of the Swap Shares, the Corporation is hereby
autherized to file and submit the Application for Listing including
all necessary exhibits and annexes thersto, the Listing
Agraement, and any other such documents required by the
PSE;

‘RESOLVED, FURTHER, that MR. RAYMUNDO MARTIN M.
ESCALONA, President of the Corporation, be authorized, as he
1s hereby authorized, to sign, execute and file the Application
for Listing, Listing Agreement, and any and all required
agreements, certificates and other documents with the PSE
andother government agencies, as well as do allthings
necessary or appropriate to effect theforegoing resolutions:

"RESOLVED, FURTHERMORE, that the Corporation be
authorized 1o electronically lodge the Swap Shares with the
PHILIPPINE DEPOSITORY AND TRUST CORPORATION
[HFDTC”L

‘RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the Cormporation approves and
ratifies, as it hereby approves and ratifies, any and all acts
done by the Mznagement of the Corporation or any of the
authorized signatories in connection with the registration and
listing of the Swap Shares.”

44  Amendmant of the Comporation’s Articles of Incorporation



“‘RESOLVED, that Aricle Firs! of the Arlcles of
Incorporation of the Corporation be, as it is hereby amended, to
read as follows:

FIRST. That the name of the Corporation shall be:
PH Rasorts Group Holdings, Inc. (As amended on

<2 Jurne 2018)

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that Adicle Second of the
Articles of Incorporatien be as it is hereby amended to read as

follows:

SECOND: The purpese for which the Corporation is
formed are:

PRIMARY
"The primary purposa of the Corporation is 1o subscribe,
acguire, hold, sell i r di C
and other securities of any corporation including those

engaged in the hotel and/or garming and entertainment

business, without however angaging in the dealership of
securiies or in the stock brokerage business or in the
business of an investment company, to the extent
permitied by law, and to be involved in the management
and oparafions of such investee companies; and to
guarantee the gbligations of its subsidiaries or affiliates or
any entify in which the Corporation has lawful
interest.”(As amended on 25 June 2018)

“RESQLVED, FURTHER, that Article Third of the Articles
of Incorporation be as it is hereby amended to read as follows:

THIRD: The principal office of the Corporation shall
be esiablished or located in GGDC Adminisirative Sewvices
Building. Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga,
Philippines 2023{As amended on 25 June 2018)

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that Articla Sixth of the Articles
of Incorporation be as it is hereby amended to read as follows:

SIXTH; The number of directors of the Corporation
shall be Nine {9) {As Amanded on 25 June 2018}

“RESOLVED, FIMALLY, that Arficle Seventh of the
Articles of Incorporation of the Company ba as it is hereby
amsnded to read as follows:

SEVENTH: That the authorized capital stock of the
corporation " is Eight Billion {Php8.000 000000.00} pesos,
divided inte Eight Billion (8,000,000,000.00) shares wilh the par




value of One (Php1.00) peso per share. (As amended on 25
June 2018).”

V. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further matters to discuss, the meeting was, upon motlon
made and saconded, adjoumed.

Cerified Corract:

LEANDROE. AQUEZ

Corporate Secratary

Altestad by:
DENNIS A. UY
Chairman
Minutes Read and Approved:
Cherylyn C. Uy Raymundo Martin M. Escalona
Lara C. Lorenzana Jose Angel Sueiro



NAME OF CORPORATION: PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

Summary of Resolutions

Date

Contents

25 June 2018

Issuance of 4,143 648,309 common shares out of the proposed
increase in the autherized capital stock to Udenna Corporation, in
exchange for the assignment by Udenna Corparation of
454 346 000 sharss of PH Travel and Laisura Holdings Corp.

Purchase of 44,654 shares of PH Travel and Leisure Holdings
Corp. from Udenna Corporatian,

Cesignation of Raymundo Martin Escalona as the authorized officer
to sign, exacute, dellver any and all documents in connection with
the Deed of Assignment.

Amendment of Articla 1 of the Articles of Incorporation te reflect the
change in comperate name to PH Resorts Group Holdings, Inc.

Amendment of Artigle 2 of the Arficles of Incorparation 1o reflect the
change in the primary purpose of the Corporation to: “The primary
purpose of the Corporation is to subsecribg, acquire, hold, sell,
assign, or dispose of shares of stock and other securities of any
corporation including those engaged in the hetel and/er gaming and
entertainment business, without however engaging in the dealership
of securities or in the stock brokerage business or in the business of
an investmsnt company, to the extent permitted by law, and to be
involved in the management and operaticns of such investee
companies; and to guarantee the obligafions of its subsidiarias or
affiliates or any entity in which the Corporation has lawful interest.”

Amendment of Allicle 3 of the Articles of Incorporation to reflect the
change in address tc GGDC Administrative Sarvices Building, Clark
Global City, Giark Freeport zene, Pampanga, Philippines 2023.

Amendment of Articie & of the Articles of incorporation 1o reflect the
change in the number of directors to ning (8).

Amendment of Article 7 of the Ardicles of Incorporation to reflect the
incraasa in authorized capital stock to Php8,000,000,000.00 divided
into 8,000,000,000.00 shares with a par value of Php1.00 per share,
Authorlty glven fo the Corporate Secretary to file the requisite
documents and secure the necessary approvals to effectuate the
amendments in the Corporation's aricles.

24 .- October
2018

Authority to convey to China Banking Corporation — Trust and Asset
Management Group, as security tusiee and acting on behalf and
for the benefit of China Banking Garporation, by way of a first
ranking pledge, and as partial security for the prompt and full
payment of the Loan Facility and all oiher existing and fiture




obligations of any of Lapulapu Leisure, Ing, and Lapulapu Land
Cormp. or the Corporation with the Lender the following assats:

a. All the shares of the capital steck of Lapulapu Land Corp.
(LLC) and Lapulapu Leisure, Ine. (LLI) that ara owned by the
Corporation and all the shares of stock in LLC and LL| that
are legally and beneficially owned by the Corporation.,

b. Any and zll additional shares of the capital stock LLC andfor
LLI that may be acquirsd by the Corporation in the future and
all the shares of stock in LLC and/or LLI that will be legally
and/or beneficially owned by the Corporation in the future.

Designation of Dennis A. Uy and Raymundo Martin M. Escalona as
the Corporation's authorized representatives |n connection with the
abovementionad pledge.

Designation of Authorized Signatories for all Comporate Bank
Accounts

Designation of Dennis A. Uy and Cherylyn C. Uy (Class A
sighatories), Raymundo Martin M. Escalona and Ma. Concepcion F.
De Claro (Class B signatories), Lara C. Lorenzana and Michael P.
Tejada (Class C signatorles) as authorized officers to enter into
arangements and to perform any and all acls nacessary for the
maintenance of the Corporation’s existing bank accounts.

Designation of Lara C. Lorenzana and Michael P. Tejada as the
Corporation’s authorized representatives to aFiles and ePay the
income tax returns and all other tax returns of the Corporation using
the EFPS of the BIR.

Designation of Janel Lagahit, lanna Ren Pandian, Raymart Jutbz to
sacure cerified true capies of the Corporation’s Cerlificate
Authorizing Registration (CAR) with the BUREAU OF INTERNAL
REVENUE ('BIR’) in connection with the sale of shares by Udenna
Corporation of PH Travel and Leisure Holdings Carp. to Philippine
H20 Ventures Corp., and to receive the certified true copies from
the BIR.

Resignation of Ms. Cherylyn C. Uy as the Comperation’s Treasurer
and subsequent designation of Ms. Lara C. Lorenzana as her
raplacement.

Designation of Michael P. Tejada as the Corporation’s authorized
signatory for all its applications, requests and other documents to
be submitted to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR).

Designation of Kristalane Joy S. Cruz and Marvin L, Agsalda, to
file, process, and claim for and in behalf of the Corpuratmn any and
all of its documents with the BIR.

29 November
2018
24  January
2019
11 February
2019
12  February
2019
14 March

2019

Authority to apply for the retirement of its businass registration
effective 14 March 2019 with Quezon City, and for the buginess
registration of the Corporation in the Clark (Global City, Clark




Freeport Zoneg, Pampanga;

Designation of Raymundo Martin M. Escalona, to sign, execute and
deliver, for and on behalf of the Comparation, the application forms,
and all other documents as may be required or necessary to secure

the foregeing application:

Certified Gorrect:

ks

Leandro E. A ﬁuez
Corporate Setrétary




PH RESORTS GROUP HOLDINGS INC.
ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
May 23, 2015 at 1100 A.M.

Quest Hetel and Canference Center, Clark
Fillnvest Mimasa + lelsure estate,
Mimasa Or, Clark Freeport, zone, 2023 Pampanga

PROXY

IYWE, the undersigned sharsholder of PH Resorts Group Holdings, Ine., henchby appoint, name, and constlbite:

Fl

or Inhls absence,

the Chairman of the Board, or in tha latter's absence, the $ecretary of the Mesting, as my attomey-In-fact and proxy, to
represent me at the annual stockhalders’ meeting of the Company on Monday, 23 May 2019 at 11:00 a.m, and any
adjourntn=ntis) thereef, 25 fully and to all intents and purposes as| might or could iF preseat and vating ina parsan, hareby
ratifylng and confirming any and all actlars taken on matters which may propery come before such meeting or

adjoumiment(s] thereoF.

In partlcular, |fWe hereby direct my/our said prosy to vote all my/aur sharas on the agenda items set ferth below as |/We
have expressly Indlcated by marking the same with an X",

Itams Action
Far Against Abstain
1. Approval of Minutes of Meeting of Stockholders held on
25 luna 2018
2. Approval of the A4 dfted Financlal Skatements as of 31
December 2018

2, Ratlficatlon and confirmadon of all acts and ressletions of
the Board and Management executed in the normal course of
business covering the period 25 June 2018 to 30 Aprit

4. Approval of the Amendments of the Articles of
Incorporstion of the Cerporation for tha following mattars:

+  Tocharge the princlpal offlce of the Corporation is
located from GGOC Admnlstrative Servicas Bullding,
Clark Global City, Clark Freeport Zone, Pampanga,
Phllipplnes 20232 to Udenna Tower, 4th Ave. cor. Rizal
Brive, Bonlaclo Global City, Taguig City

& ToIncrease the autharized capital stock of the
Corporatlan from Fhy 8,000,000,000 ta up to
Phpl5,000,000,000 divided inta 15,000,000,000
commen shares oras determnined by the Board of
Birectars.

5. Appraval of the Amendment of the By-lsws of the
Corporation to change date of the annual shareholders
meeting from the Ard Wednesday of Jume to the 3¢
Wedneasday of Way.

6. Appraval of the merger af the Cotngany with its subsidiary,
PH Travel and Lelsure Holdings Corp.

7. Approval of the acquisition of 100% of the issued and
outstanding somman shares of Lapulapu Land Corp. by the
Company’s subgidiary, Lapulapu Leisure, Inc. at the
consideration determined by the Board of Directors

5. Approval of the grant of authaorlty to the Bnard of Dirsctors
o Wswe such number of sharas of stock cut of the existing
caplital skeck and increas= In authorized capital stock and
at an lssue price of not less than par value as the Beard of
Directors may detsrming and to accapt cash or non-cash
properties as payment for such subscrlptior and the listing
of such shares with the Philipplne Stock Exchange,




S, Approval of issuance of shares pursuant to an equity
offaring, private placement, or similar transactlon te be
determined by the Board and the listing of such shares,

10. Approval of the Company's Employee Stock Incenthve
Plan.

11. Election of the Board of Directors far 2019,

12_ Appointrient of External Auditors

- Printed Name of Stockhalder = = Aythorized Signatary -

THIS PROXTY SHOUWLD BE RECEIVED BY THE CORPORATE SECRETARY ON DR BEFORE 17 MAY 2019, THIS PROXY WILL BE VALIDATED
BY A COMMITTEE OF INSPECTORS ON 20 MAY 2019 AT 10:00 Q'CLOCKE IN THE MORNING AT THE PRINCPAL OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY. THIS PROXY, WHEKN PROPEALY EXECUTED, WILL BE WOTED IN THE WMARMNER AS DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE
STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO [IRECTION |5 MADE, THIS PRONY YYILL BE %OTED FOR THE ELECTIDN OF ALL NOMINEES AND EAR THE
APPROVAL OF THE MATTERS STATED AROVE AND FOR 5UCH OTHER MATTERS AS MAY PROPERLY COME BEFQOPRE THE MEETING N
THE MANNER DESCRIBED I THE |HFORMATION STATEMENT. A STOCKHOLDER GIVING A PROXY HAS THE POYVER TQ REVDKE IT
AT AMY TIME BEFORE THE RIGHT GRANTED 1S EXERCISED, & PROXY IS ALSO CONSIDERED REVDKED IF THE STOCKHOLDER ATTENDS
THE MEETING IN PERSON ARD EXPRESSED HIS INTENTION TO VOTE IN PERYOMN. THIS PROKY DOES NQT NEED TQ BE NOTARIZED.
(Partnerships, Carporations and Assodations must attach certifled resolutlons desfgnating thelr proxlssfrepresentatives and
authorizad sipnatorles.)



